CONTRACTOR REPORT

SAND82-8192 UC-62d Unlimited Release

Final Report Sodium Solar Receiver Experiment

Rockwell International

Prepared by Sandia National Laboratories, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87185 and Livermore. California 94550 for the United States Department of Energy under Contract DE-AC04-76DP00789.

Printed December 1983

When printing a copy of any digitized SAND Report, you are required to update the markings to current standards.

NOTICE

THE ALL TELLION OF

In providing this information, Rockwell International Corporation makes no representation, either expressed or implied, as to its adequacy, sufficiency, or freedom from fault and incurs no responsibility or obligation whatsoever by reason thereof; and the furnishing of such information shall not convey any rights or license with respect thereto.

> Printed in the United States of America Available from National Technical Information Service 5285 Port Royal Road Springfield, VA 22161

NTIS price codes Printed copy: A13 Microfiche copy: A01

FINAL REPORT

SODIUM SOLAR RECEIVER EXPERIMENT

OCTOBER 1, 1982



CONTENTS

			Page
1.0	Intr	oduction and Summary	1
	1.1	Panel Description	2
	1.2	Sodium Loop Description	5
	1.3	Test Description	6
	1.4	Summary	13
	1.5	Recommendations	14
2.0	Sola	r Receiver Panel Description	17
	2.1	Genera1	17
	2.2	Panel Design	19
	2.3	Solar Panel Test Fixture	24
	2.4	Solar Panel-To-Test Fixture Assembly	24
	2.5	Design Verification	27
		2.5.1 Stress Analysis	27
		2.5.2 Thermal Analysis	28
	2.6	Panel Instrumentation	32
	2.7	Control System Design and Analysis	32
	2.8	Safety Analysis and Quality Assurance	40
3.0	Faci	lity and Test System Installation Description	45
	3.1	Central Receiver Test Facility	45
		3.1.1 Heliostat Array Subsystem	45
		3.1.2 Receiver Tower	51
	3.2	Sodium Loop	53
	3.3	Data Acquisition	56
		3.3.1 General Requirements	5 6
		3.3.2 Test Data Tape	59
		3.3.3 CRT Displays	63

CONTENTS

			Page
4.0	Test	Operation	71
	4.1	Test Objectives	71
	4.2	Test Procedure	71
		4.2.1 Low-Power Testing	75
		4.2.2 Isothermal Testing	75
		4.2.3 Intermediate-Power Testing	76
		4.2.4 Design-Power Testing	76
		4.2.5 High-Power Testing	78
5.0	Test	Results	79
	5.1	Startup and Shutdown	79
	5.2	Steady-State Performance	96
	5.3	Power Transients	109
	5.4	Panel Efficiency	124
	5.5	Panel Structure	139
6.0	Comme	ercial Receiver Design	151
	6.1	Commercial Panel Design Characteristics	151
	6.2	Comparison With Test Panel	155
Apper	ndix /	A - Solar Test Panel Requirements	A-1
Аррен	ndix I	3 - Pretest Checkout and Sodium Loading Procedure	B-1
Арре	ndix (C - Integrated Test Procedure for CRTF/ESG Sodium-Cooled Solar	
•••		Receiver Testing	C-1
Аррен	ndix l	D - Trace Heaters and Thermocouples Identification	D-1
Аррен	ndix I	E - Incident Flux Measuring System Data	E-1
Арреі	ndix H	- Assembly Drawings	F-1
Apper Sodi	ndix (um-Coo	G - Controls and Instrumentation Design for 2.5-MW bled Receiver Panel	G-1

TABLES

يز

		Page
1.	Major Test Results	8
2.	Incident Power and Absorbed Power	13
3.	Test Panel Requirements	18
4.	ESG Sodium-Cooled Receiver Thermal Conditions	30
5.	Test Conditions Across Panels for Normal Flux Distribution	31
6.	Instrument List	35
7.	Instrumentation Data	57
8.	Data Channel List	60
9.	Alarm Control LU12 Display	64
10.	Panel Performance Summary	65
11.	Test Article Data, Display LU9	66
12.	Temperature Profile Display, LU10	67
13.	CRT Displays 1 Through 8	69
14.	ESG Solar Panel Test - Summary	03
15.	Measured Flux Distribution	106
16.	Incident Power and Absorbed Power	133
17.	Receiver Subsystem Design Summary	153
18.	30-MWe Central Receiver Panel Scaleup	156

FIGURES

1,	ESG Sodium-Cooled Solar Receiver Panel Test	ו
2.	ESG Central Receiver Panel Design	3
3.	ESG Solar Panel as Assembled for Shipment to CRTF	3
4.	Flow Schematic for Sodium Loop at CRTF	6
5.	Test 19, Panel Flux Gage Readings	9
6.	Test 24, Power Steps	10
7.	Test 24, Panel Inlet and Outlet Temperatures	12
8.	Heat Flux for Normal Flux Distribution	12
9.	ESG Sodium-Cooled Solar Receiver Panel Test	17

v

FIGURES

		Page
10.	ESG Central Receiver Panel Design	19
11.	Tube-To-Manifold Butt-Weld Assembly	20
12.	Manifold Construction	21
13.	ESG Solar Panel as Assembled for Shipment to CRTF	22
14.	Panel Assembly Structural Support	23
15.	Hot-Leg Pipe Tree Assembly	25
16.	Cold-Leg Pipe Tree Assembly	26
17.	Vertical Flux Distribution - ESG Test Article Panel	29
18.	Solar Panel P&I	33
19.	EI&C Control Logic	38
20.	Control Cabinet Arrangement	41
21.	Control Cabinet Access Compartment Layout	42
22.	Annunciator Panel Layout	43
23.	Active Heliostat Distribution	46
24.	Active Heliostat Distribution	47
25.	Active Heliostat Distribution	48
26.	Active Heliostat Distribution	49
27.	Active Heliostat Distribution	50
28.	North Tower Elevation Showing Test Bays	51
29.	Panel and Sodium Loop Assembly	52
30.	Test Installation at the 200-ft Level Test Position	54
31.	Flow Schematic for Sodium Loop at CRTF	55
32.	Flow Schematic for Color Display	70
33.	Artist's Concept of ESG Test Article Installed in Sodium Loop at CRTF	73
34.	Panel at CRTF with Blanket	74
35.	Test 19, Panel Flux Gage Readings	83
36.	Sodium Inlet and Outlet Temperatures for Test 19	86
37.	Sodium Flow Rate for Test 19	87

FIGURES

_ _ _

-

.

		Page
38.	Preheat and Fill for Test 24	83
39.	Panel A Temperatures during Fill for Test 24	89
40.	Top Row Temperatures for Panel A during Fill for Test 24	90
41.	Tube C-21 Temperature, Test 22	93
42.	Sodium Flow Rate for Test 22	94
43.	Outboard Edge Panel C Temperatures during Preheat and Fill, Test 22	95
44.	Inboard Edge Panel C Temperatures during Preheat and Fill, Test 22	97
45.	Top Row Temperatures for Panel C during Preheat and Fill, Test 22.	98
46.	Incident Flux Measuring System Scan during Manual Control, Test 23	100
47.	Panel Outlet Temperatures during IFMS Scan, Test 23	101
48.	Valve Position during Manual Control, Test 23	102
49.	Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature, Test 23	103
50.	Panel Power and Dump Heat Exchanger Power, Test 23	104
51.	RTAF Measured Flux Profile	107
52.	Heat Flux for Normal Flux Distribution	107
53.	Pump Noise, Test 28	108
54.	Thermocouple Locations	110
55.	Comparison of Front-Side and Back-Side Thermocouples	111
56.	Typical Power Step, Test 21	114
57.	Panel Outlet Temperatures during Automatic Control, Test 21	115
58.	Panel Power and Dump Heat Exchanger Power, Test 21	116
59.	Panel Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature, Test 21	118
60.	Power Steps with Various Reset Values, Test 24	119
61.	Inlet and Outlet Temperatures, Test 24	120
62.	Power Steps 3, 4, 5, and 6, Test 24	121
63.	Flow Rate during Power Steps 3, 4, 5, and 6, Test 24	122
64.	Panel Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature, Test 24	123
65.	Power Steps 7 and 8, Test 24	125
66.	Flow Rate during Power Steps 7 and 8, Test 24	126

FIGURES

		Page
67.	Panel Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature,	127
69	Power Ruildun with Automatic Control Cloud Transient Test 27	120
00. CO	Panel Autlet Temperature during Douge Duildur and Cloud	120
09.	Transient, Test 27	129
70.	Valve Position during Power Buildup and Cloud Transient, Test 27.	130
71.	Panel Power and Dump Heat Exchanger Power, Test 27	131
72.	Panel Position during Power Buildup, Test 27	132
73.	Correction to TE-107	135
74.	Comparison of Inlet Temperature Measurements, Test 34	136
75.	Panel Cooldown Periods during Test 10	137
76.	Cooldown Period No. 2, Test 10	138
77.	ESG Solar Panel Mechanical Constraints	139
78.	Panel Motion during Test 19	141
79.	Flux on Panel during Test 19	142
80.	Panel Flux Transients during Test 24	143
81.	Panel Position during Power Steps, Test 24	144
82.	Panel Placement	145
83.	Panel Position at Ambient Temperature Prior to Each Test	146
84.	Panel Deflection versus Thermal Flux	148
85.	Commercial Solar Central Receiver Power Plant	152
86.	All Components Are State of the Art	152
87.	Commercial Solar Receiver	154
88.	Receiver Panel Detail Layout	154

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The test of a company-funded, sodium-cooled receiver panel was successfully conducted during the period from October 10, 1981, through March 12, 1982. Testing was accomplished at the Sandia Central Receiver Test Facility (CRTF) in Albuquerque under a test agreement between the Energy Systems Group (ESG) and Sandia. The test panel was connected to a sodium flow loop supplied by CRTF. Figure 1 shows the ESG receiver during a test at CRTF.



Figure 1. ESG Sodium-Cooled Solar Receiver Panel Test

The general objectives of this test were to provide:

- 1) A proof-of-principle test of sodium-cooled receiver panels
- 2) Fabrication experience
- 3) Practical operating experience.

The specific test goals that supported these objectives were to:

- Demonstrate satisfactory panel operations at the design heat flux and temperature
- 2) Demonstrate satisfactory diurnal startup and shutdown
- 3) Demonstrate control during insolation changes
- 4) Control several panels in parallel
- 5) Demonstrate panel dimensional stability
- 6) Achieve representative lateral power distributions
- 7) Demonstrate acceptable panel thermal losses
- 8) Accommodate various simulated emergency conditions.

The solar receiver was the only sodium component for a solar central receiver system that lacked development and test experience. This test provided the development experience leading to a commercial-type receiver panel.

1.1 PANEL DESCRIPTION

The ESG solar panel (Figure 2) consists of three subpanels operating in parallel. Each subpanel comprises 21 Type 316 stainless steel tubes, each 19 mm (3/4 in.) in diameter with a 1.2-mm (0.049-in.) wall. The tubes are butt-welded to 102-mm (4-in.) manifolds. The overall width of a subpanel is 40 cm (15.75 in.) with an overall length including manifolds of about 530 cm (208.5 in.). The three subpanels are assembled on a test frame with the center manifold nestled in the tube bend region of the outer panels (Figure 3).



Figure 2. ESG Central Receiver Panel Design



Figure 3. ESG Solar Panel as Assembled for Shipment to CRTF

This arrangement provides a continuous panel surface. The surface is curved on a radius of about 6 m to represent a segment of an external receiver for a repowering application. Figure 3 shows the completed test panel in the ESG manufacturing area.

The active aperture area of the panel exposed to solar radiant energy is 3 m high by 1.2 m wide. This area is surrounded by an insulated frame to protect the subpanel manifold ends and side areas of the loop from spillage energy. The active area of the panel is covered by Pyromark paint to enhance the absorptivity of the surface. The design absorbed-power capability of each panel is 1 MWt, for a total of 3 MWt for the test article. The operating power of 2.5 MWt was selected based on the expected heat rejection capability of the sodium loop.

Peak design absorbed heat flux for the test was 1.5 MWt/m^2 . The average flux level over the panel at the operating power of 2.5 MWt was 0.69 MWt/m².

The instrumentation on the solar panel consists of 57 thermocouples, three displacement transducers, and three heat flux sensors. Each subpanel has an electromagnetic flowmeter to measure flow rate and a flow control valve. The flow control valve can be operated manually or automatically by the flow control system. The control system contains the controllers, switches, indicators, and logic to control subpanel flow rate.

The primary control requirement is to maintain the panel outlet sodium temperature for each subpanel at the set-point value. For the design conditions, this value is $593 \pm 14^{\circ}$ C (1100 $\pm 25^{\circ}$ F) with an inlet temperature of 288° C (550° F). Since there is a direct relationship between the solar flux available to the panel and the flow required to achieve a given set of operating conditions, solar flux is used as the primary master signal in a feed-forward configuration. Panel exit sodium temperature is then processed through a controller and used as a trim to this master. The resulting summed signal is then used to modulate the sodium inlet valve position.

ESG-82-40

Extensive thermal and structural analyses were performed on the test design. The panel is designed to ASME Section VIII Division 1 and ANSI B31.1 with creep fatigue effects for the tubes evaluated according to the hightemperature Code Case ASME N-47. The design meets the specific test conditions and safety requirements imposed by CRTF on test articles for that facility. In addition, the panel tubes in the high-flux region were analyzed for commercial application with a reasonable expectation for a 30-year life.

1.2 SODIUM LOOP DESCRIPTION

The ESG test article was connected to a CRTF-installed sodium loop. A flow schematic for the sodium loop is shown in Figure 4. Sodium circulation through the test panel is provided by an electromagnetic (EM) pump at a design flow rate of 0.007 m^3/s (115 gal/min).

Liquid sodium enters the test panel at a temperature of $288^{\circ}C$ ($550^{\circ}F$) and under normal operation exits at a temperature of $593^{\circ}C$ ($1100^{\circ}F$). A flow-through surge tank is provided to accommodate changes in sodium volume in the system. Argon cover gas is provided in the surge and drain tanks. The sodium is cooled by the dump heat exchanger (DHX) from $593^{\circ}C$ ($1100^{\circ}F$) nominal temperature to $288^{\circ}C$ ($550^{\circ}F$) before circulating back to the EM pump. The heat removal capability of the DHX can be changed by varying the airflow through the unit.

At night, the sodium in the loop is drained into the drain tank, where it is maintained by the electrical heat tracing at a temperature of $204^{\circ}C$ $(400^{\circ}F)$. All sodium piping in the system is heat traced, insulated, and maintained at a temperature of $\sim 204^{\circ}C$ $(400^{\circ}F)$ throughout the night. The aperture area of the test panel is allowed to cool to ambient conditions.

ESG-82-40



Figure 4. Flow Schematic for Sodium Loop at CRTF

1.3 TEST DESCRIPTION

The test activity for the ESG solar panel comprised the following phases:

- 1) Dry checkout
- 2) Wet checkout

3) Testing

- a) Low power
- b) Intermediate power
- c) Design power.

The checkout tests, completed during October 1981, consisted of functional checkout of the mechanical, electrical, and instrumentation items in the system. About 200 gal of liquid sodium from 55-gal drums was loaded into the loop drain tank. Testing began on 30 October 1981.

The low- and the intermediate-power tests were conducted primarily to give the sodium system operating crew experience with the manual and automatic controls and in coordinating these activities with heliostat operation. Once this operating experience had been attained, the majority of the testing was accomplished at the design power conditions. Testing ended on 12 March 1982, 4-1/2 months after it had begun and with a total of 70 h of test time. All operational and performance goals were attained. The accumulation of test time during this period was substantially reduced by the poor weather and the necessity for frequent repair of the facility-installed high-temperature insulation around the test panel.

The test panel was drained of sodium each night and at any time that there was insufficient solar energy to maintain the solar-heated panel surface at a temperature of $204^{\circ}C$ ($400^{\circ}F$). The daily schedule was as follows:

- 1) Pretest briefing and safety review
- 2) Maintenance review
- 3) Panel preheat (four heliostats)
- 4) Pressure fill of system with sodium
- 5) Sodium flow and power buildup
- 6) Test activities
- 7) Decreasing power and shutdown
- 8) Sodium drain to drain tank
- 9) Activation of electrical preheat.

Table 1 compares the significant goals achieved during this test program with the design goals.

⁷

Parameter	Test	Design	
Power level (MWt)	2.85	2.5	
Maximum solar flux (MW/m ²)	1.53	1.5	
Panel inlet temperature (^O F)	550	550	
Panel outlet temperature (^O F)	1100	1100	
Time, start to full power (min)	29	30	
Automatic control	Stable at 1100 ⁰ F with -40%, +70% power changes	Stable at 1100 ⁰ F with ~50%, +100% power changes	
Daily startup and drain	Satisfactory	Planned operation	

TABLE 1 MAJOR TEST RESULTS

The maximum power level was expected to be limited by the capability of the air-blast heat exchanger associated with the sodium loop. Maximum-power testing was restricted even more when it was discovered that the maximum pump flow rate was limited essentially to the design flow rate of \sim ll5 gal/min.

Figure 5 shows the panel flux gage readings during a short-duration test. One flux gage was located in the center of each of the test panels. The flux gage on Panel A had not been adjusted properly and, when corrected, indicated values similar to those indicated by the gage on Panel C. The figure also shows the durations for the several phases of the startup activity. The total time from the initiation of panel preheat with four heliostats to design power (in this case, 175 heliostats on target) was 29 min. During this test, the facility high-temperature insulation deteriorated, and the test was terminated by removing the heliostats and draining the sodium system. Shutdown required 6 min, after which the sodium system was secured until the next test. ETEC DATA PLOT



Figure 5. Test 19, Panel Flux Gage Readings

Some flow-rate interaction among the three panels was observed during the testing. This interaction was not unexpected, since the panels had been designed with a very low pressure drop in order to maximize the total loop flow rate in case of inadequate pump power (as was the case). This flow-rate interaction caused panel outlet temperature to vary about $\pm 30^{\circ}$ F.

Figure 6 shows the response of the panel control system to a downward power step of 40% achieved by removing a preselected group of heliostats. This step lasted 7 s. After a brief dwell time, the preselected group of heliostats was returned to the panel in 15 s to give a 70% step up in power from the reduced power level. The control system responded with valve position closely following within about 6 s the shape of the flux sensor



Figure 6. Test 24, Power Steps

trace, indicating the controlling action of the flux sensor feed-forward signal. The set-point temperature of $1100^{\circ}F$ was maintained within $\pm 50^{\circ}F$ for each panel and with $\pm 30^{\circ}F$ for the mixed mean outlet temperature given in Figure 7. An excursion outside the $\pm 50^{\circ}F$ band for panel C is seen following the 70% flux increase. Some of the variation in outlet temperature was due to the variation in inlet temperature caused by the relatively poor DHX control capability for these power transients. The outlet temperature trace of Figure 7 also shows the cyclical variation due to flow interaction. Also shown in this figure is a 20% power step.

Before the test, a flux distribution with a rather flat maximum across the center of the panel was requested, as in Figure 8. The data points indicated on this figure show an actual distribution attained at the several nominal power levels for the test. The desired flux shapes gave power distributions across the edge panels that were typical of distributions on a full-size commercial receiver. The actual test distribution, while showing a greater variation than desired, was well within the capability of the test panel design.

Black Pyromark paint was used on the surface of the panel to enhance absorptivity. The paint tended to flake and lose adhesion, and the central and upper parts of the panel had to be repainted three times during the test.

One of the most interesting parameters to be determined from a receiver panel test is panel efficiency. This value is also difficult to determine with accuracy, since it is the ratio of absorbed power to incident power. Both absorbed power and incident power are calculated values. The absorbed power is calculated from the measured flow rate and the temperature difference from the bottom to top of the panel. Input power is determined from the CRTF flux measuring system by integrating the flux distribution over the panel area. A CRTF computer program was used to calculate a transfer function value of 1.02 in order to relate the flux distribution measured in a plane 14 in. in front of the panel to the distribution at the panel surface. The calculated



Figure 7. Test 24, Panel Inlet and Outlet Temperatures





panel efficiency for several power levels is given in Table 2. Panel efficiencies in the range of 90 to 93% were expected. The estimated uncertainty in the calculated values is shown in Table 2.

	Test	Flux Scan	Time	Number of Helio- stats	Peak Flux (MW/m ²)	Total Power From Field (MW)	Incident Power on Panel (MW)	Panel Power (MW)	Effi- ciency (%)
	18	135501	1018	110	0.71	2.10	1.33 ± 8%	1.26 ± 6%	94 ± 10%
		135502	1217	110	0.84	2.34	1.56	1.40	90
		035503	1400	158	0.98	2.9	1.89	1.75	93
	21	I01401	1200	173	1.27	3.7	2.48	2.36	95
	22	101501	1330	183	1.32	3.74	2.47	2.31	93
		101502	1350	188	1.34	3.81	2.48	2.29	92
	23	101801	1309	213	1.53	4.39	2.89	2.67	92
	24	I02601	1216	175	1.33	3.51	2.35	2.26	95
	34	I06901	1145	161	1.32	3.53	2.35	2.25	96
1	-								

TABLE 2 INCIDENT POWER AND ABSORBED POWER

1.4 SUMMARY

1) The panel test was successful and all significant goals and objectives were attained, although the accumulated test time was much less than expected. The low test time was due to poor weather conditions during the test period from October into March. Also contributing was the continuing problem of deterioration of the frame insulation around the panel due to the relatively high spillage flux.

- 2) Solar preheat and sodium fill occurred for each test. The panel headers were preheated during the entire test period, but the panel aperture surface cooled to ambient temperature between each test. The panel was drained at the end of the test day. This environment does not appear to have been deleterious for the test period.
- 3) The backside insulation, Cerafelt 600, was satisfactory. There is no evidence of over-temperature or damage to the backside insulation material.
- 4) Adequate preheat must be assured prior to fill.
- 5) The test panel tube material is 316 SS. The heated area of the test panel was designed for 10,000 cycles at a peak flux of 1.5 MWt/m². This is about one cycle daily over a 30-year period. The panel header region was designed for the test period duration. The commercial panel should be designed for several daily cycles or, say, 30,000 to 50,000 cycles for a 30-year life. The commercial design will have the headers located behind the panel. This desirable feature will accommodate more effectively any temperature gradients across the panel.

1.5 RECOMMENDATIONS

- A detailed stress analysis must be performed to evaluate the panel design for a 30-year life and the commercial receiver operating characteristics.
- 2) The Pyromark paint on the panel aperature surface required frequent replacement. The manufacturer should be contacted in order to identify the probable cause of the paint problems during this test. Other surface coatings should be examined. The testing at Barstow of the water/steam receiver should be monitored to determine paint durability.

3) On early commercial receivers, thermocouples on each tube may be desirable in order to verify acceptable preheat conditions by monitoring tube temperatures during the power buildup phase.

2.0 SOLAR RECEIVER PANEL DESCRIPTION

2.1 GENERAL

The ESG solar panel consists of three subpanels operating in parallel, mounted on a test fixture. The test fixture is attached to the CRTF sodium loop structure. Figure 9 shows an artist's concept of the test fixture and sodium loop on top of the tower at the Central Receiver Test Facility (CRTF). The solar panel test requirements are identified in Appendix A. Panel design requirements are summarized in Table 3.



Figure 9. ESG Sodium-Cooled Solar Receiver Panel Test

TABLE 3 TEST PANEL REQUIREMENTS

Environmental				
Seismic (g)	0.50			
Design wind,(mph)	10			
Maximum operating wind (mph)	50			
Maximum survival wind (mph)	100			
Ambient temperature range (⁰ F)	-20 to +120			
Cloud cover velocity (mph)	40			
Maximum rainfall (in./h and in./yr)	3 and 30			
Ice formation (in.)	5.0			
Maximum hailstone size (in.)	1.0			
Panel Life				
Test article life (month)	3.0			
Commercial panel design life (yr)	30			
Design number of startups and shutdowns	10 ⁴			
Temperature loss rate of hot but unheated and uncooled panel (^O F/s)	3.0			
Maximum temperature transient at upper manifold weld	550 ⁰ F in 10 s			
Maximum sodium flow rate (gal/min)	175			
Maximum panel inlet pressure (psia)	40			
Panel tube OD and wall (in.)	3/4 x 0.049			
Panel material	316 SS			
Design	Like commercial panel			
Applicable codes				
Pane1	ASME B&PV Sec. VIII Div. 1			
Tube creep-fatigue	ASME B&PV Sec. III, modified Code Case 1592, ANSI B31.1			
Temperatures (⁰ F)				
Inlet temperature	550 to 700			
Minimum loop	350			
Nominal mixed mean outlet	1100			
Maximum tube outlet temperature difference in one panel	200			
Maximum ∆T adjacent tubes in adjacent panels	200			
Maximum absorbed thermal power (MWt)	3.0			
Maximum throughput heat flux (MWt/m ²)	1.5			

2.2 PANEL DESIGN '

A sketch of the subpanel design is given in Figure 10. (See Assembly Drawing N001000399, Appendix F.) The subpanels are composed of 21 Type 316H stainless steel tubes (ASTM A213), each 3/4 in. in diameter with a 0.049-in. wall. The tubes are butt-welded to 4-in. manifolds as shown in Figure 11. The manifolds are constructed as shown by Figure 12. (See Drawing N001000429, Appendix F.) After the 4-in. manifolds are assembled from a tee, pipe sections, and end caps, two slots are cut for the two nozzle inserts. The inserts are welded into the manifold body. A consumable insert is used in assembling the tube to the nozzle in order to align the joint and to supply metal for the butt weld joint. The overall width of a subpanel is 40 cm (15.75 in.) with an overall length including manifolds of about 530 cm (208.5 in.). The three subpanels are assembled on a test frame with the center manifold nestled in the tube bend region of the outer subpanels (Figure 13). This arrangement provides a continuous panel surface. The surface is curved on a radius of about 6 m to represent a segment of an external receiver for a repowering application. Figure 13 shows the completed test panel in the ESG manufacturing area. Figure 14 shows the back side of the panel and test fixture. (See Drawings N001000397 and N001000426 in Appendix F.)







Figure 11. Tube-to-Manifold Butt-Weld Assembly



Figure 12. Manifold Construction



Figure 13. ESG Solar Panel as Assembled for Shipment to CRTF



Figure 14. Panel Assembly Structural Support

The active frontal area of the panel exposed to solar radiant energy is 3 m high by 1.2 m wide. This area is surrounded by an insulated frame to protect the subpanel manifold ends and the side areas of the loop from spillage energy. The active area of the panel is covered by Pyromark paint to enhance the absorptivity of the surface. The design absorbed-power capability of each panel is 1 MWt, for a total of 3 MWt for the test article, as described in Section 3.2. The panel subassembly (three panels) weighs about 500 lb.

2.3 SOLAR PANEL TEST FIXTURE

The test fixture serves the dual purpose of supporting the solar panel and as a structural mount for attachment to the sodium loop test structure. The fixture has a vertical height of ~ 200 in. and a width of 108 in. Structural support is derived from use of a 4-in.-square box beam for the fixture's lower base, 3.0-in. by 0.250-in. wall tubing for the vertical side, and 2.0-in. by 0.250-in. wall tubing for the horizontal cross supports. Structural carbon steel is used throughout the text fixture. The cross members supporting the panels are curved to an approximate radius of 19 ft, the same as would be used in a commercial 226-MWt solar receiver application (60-MWe plant size). The fixture weighs ~ 830 lb.

2.4 SOLAR PANEL-TO-TEST FIXTURE ASSEMBLY

The three subpanels are assembled on the face of the test fixture as shown in Figure 13. This assembly completes the solar panel test article (weight, 1575 lb). The hot- and cold-leg piping tree subassemblies, shown in Figures 15 and 16, are used to connect the test article to the sodium loop. The lower cold-leg piping tree contains the flow control valves for each panel.



Figure 15. Hot-Leg Pipe Tree Assembly



2.5 DESIGN VERIFICATION

Extensive thermal and structural analyses were performed on the test design. The panel is designed to ASME Section VIII Division 1 and ANSI B31.1 with creep fatigue effects for the tubes evaluated according to the hightemperature Code Case ASME N-47. The design meets the specific test conditions and safety requirements imposed by CRTF on test articles for that facility. In addition, the panel tubes in the high-flux region were analyzed for commercial application with a reasonable expectation for a 30-year life.

2.5.1 Stress Analysis

A stress analysis of the solar test panel was performed. Straincontrolled stresses in the tubes under the most severe heat flux were evaluated and cyclic life was determined. Stresses in the panel and the supports due to thermal, seismic, and wind loadings were studied. Calculations indicate a tube life of 30 years. Load-controlled stresses were shown to be generally low in the tube supports. The effects of thermal striping were determined to be of negligible consequence.

A laboratory testing program was conducted to select the mechanical support-to-tube attachment weld design. The selected design uses a gas tungsten arc weld (GTAW). The calculated tensile load on each weld joint is 8.9 lb maximum. The laboratory tensile tests at a metal temperature of 900°F resulted in tensile failure loads of 436, 522, and 630 lb for three tests of this weld design. This is a factor of 50 greater than the design load. Failure was in the parent metal of the support for two tests and in the weld material for the third. In the 25 tests for various designs, failure was always in the support material or joint; in no case was there a loss of tube material.

2.5.2 Thermal Analysis

Three sets of transient thermal analyses were made for the solar test panel:

- Solar panel tube with transient solar heat load and sodium flow: Preliminary thermal transient calculations were made to investigate the consequences of changing solar heat input and changing sodium coolant flow rate. Of particular interest is the transient resulting from loss of solar input due to rapid cloud cover.
- Panel tube-outlet manifold joint: Calculations were made to investigate the transient temperature distribution at the tube-manifold joint as input for thermal stress analysis.
- 3) Steady-state, two-dimensional (radial and circumferential) temperature distributions under concentrated solar heat flux loading were determined for 3/4-in.-OD tubes with 65-, 58-, 49-, 35-, and 28-mil walls. A solar heat flux of 1.5 MW/m², cosine distributed, was considered, with the sodium inside the tube at 900^oF. In addition, simplified stress calculations were made.

Figure 17 shows the theoretical heat flux distributions along the panel length for all collectors aimed at a single point on the panel aperture and for a multipoint aim. Table 4 shows the average thermal conditions within the sodium-cooled receiver at (0.049-in. tube wall) sodium flow rate, total power, and heat flux. Table 5 shows test conditions across the subpanels for a normal flux distribution (0.049-in. tube wall) and for low, intermediate, and 100% power levels.




TABLE 4

ESG SODIUM-COOLED RECEIVER THERMAL CONDITIONS (CALCULATED PARAMETERS FOR THREE COMBINED PANELS)

51.00	gal/min	50	75	100	125	150	175
FIUW	lb/s	6.11	9.16	12.21	15.26	18.32	21.37
Velocity (ft/s) Reynolds Number Peclet Number Nusselt Number Film Coefficient		0.71 12200 60 5.65 4120	1.15 18300 90 6.15 4485	1.54 24500 120 6.57 4791	1.92 30600 150 6.97 5083	2.30 36700 180 7.25 5287	2.69 42800 210 7.60 5542
				Q	(MWt)		
NG DI	50 150 250 350 450 550	0.099 0.296 0.493 0.690 0.887 1.084	0.148 0.443 0.739 1.035 1.330 1.626	0.197 0.591 0.985 1.379 1.774 2.168	0.246 0.739 1.232 1.724 2.217 2.710	0.296 0.887 1.478 2.069 2.660 3.251	0.345 1.035 1.724 2.414 3.104 3.793
				Film	∆ ^T f		
Flux (MWt/m	²) 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.50	39 58 77 96 115	35 53 71 88 106	33 50 66 83 99	31 47 62 78 94	30 45 60 75 90	29 43 57 72 86
				Tube	∆T _f		
flux (MWt/m	²) 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.50	83 133 177 221 240	85 129 171 213 231	83 127 166 208 224	81 125 162 203 219	80 124 160 200 215	79 123 157 197 211
0 —			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Na	ΔT		
ų ——	0.50 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5	254 507 761	169 338 507 677	127 254 381 507 634	101 203 304 406 507	85 169 254 338 423	72 145 217 290 362

Q in MWt = $\dot{w} \Delta T/25373$; \dot{w} (gal/min), ΔT (^OF)

V in ft/s = $\frac{1}{2}/65.16$

Reynolds Number = 15935 V

			TABL	E 5			
TEST	CONDITIONS	ACROSS	PANELS	FOR	NORMAL	FLUX	DISTRIBUTION

				Power Level					
		Low		Int	ermedi	ate	Design		
Total thermal power (MWt)		0.80			1.7		2.5		
Average heat flux (MWt/m ²)		0.23			0.46			0.70	
Peak heat flux (MWt/m ²)	-	0.50			1.0			1.50	
Lateral aim point separation (m)		0.40			0.40			0.40	
Inlet temperature (°F)	550				550			550	
Mixed-mean outlet temperature (^O F)		735			920			1100	
Overall flow rates (gal/min)	115				115		115		
Panel Distribution	1	2	3	1	2	3	1	2	3
Thermal power (MWt)	0.23	0.37	0.23	0.46	0.73	0.46	0.70	1.10	0.70
Average heat flux (MWt/m ²)	0.19	0.31	0.19	0.39	0.61	0.39	0.59	0.92	0.59
Peak heat flux (MWt/m ²)	0.33	0.50	0.33	0.67	1.0	0.67	1.0	1.50	1.0
Mixed-mean outlet temperature (^O F)	735	735	735	920	920	920	1100	1100	1100
Hot tube temper- ature (^O F)	765	750	765	980	950	980	1200	1150	1200
Cold tube temper- ature (^O F)	700	715	700	850	885	850	1000	1050	1000
Flow rate	32	51	32	32	51	32	32	51	32
Power ratio*	1.44	1.20	1.44	1.44	1.20	1.40	1.44	1.20	1.44

*Power ratio = ratio of power bewteen two panel tubes = $\frac{higher power tube}{lower power tube}$

2.6 PANEL INSTRUMENTATION

The instrumentation on the solar panel consists of 57 thermocouples, three displacement transducers, and three flux sensors. Each subpanel has a electromagnetic flowmeter to measure flow rate and a flow control valve. The flow control valve can be operated manually or automatically by the flow control system. The control system contains the controllers, switches, indicators, and logic to control subpanel flow rate. Figure 18 shows the location of the sensors on the panel assembly. Table 6 is the instrument list. The accuracies of the sensors are given below:

Thermocouples, Type K	±4 ⁰ F in range 32-530 ⁰ F
	±0.75% in range 530-2300 ⁰ F
Flux sensors	±3% of full range
Displacement sensors	±1% of full range
I/P converter	±0.5%
P/E transducer	±0.25% of span

2.7 CONTROL SYSTEM DESIGN AND ANALYSIS

The primary control requirement is to maintain the panel outlet sodium temperature for each subpanel at the set-point value. For the design conditions, this value is $593 \pm 14^{\circ}$ C (1100 $\pm 25^{\circ}$ F) with an inlet temperature of 288° C (550° F). Since there is a direct relationship between the solar flux available to the panel and the flow required to achieve a given set of operating conditions, solar flux is used as the primary master signal in a feed-forward configuration. Panel exit sodium temperature is then processed through a controller (TIC) and used as a trim to this master. The resulting summed signal is then used to modulate the sodium inlet valve position.

The ESG test article (solar receiver panel assembly) EI&C control panel contains the controllers, switches, indicators, and logic to control the test



TABLE 6 INSTRUMENT LIST (Sheet 1 of 2)

,

	······································	INSTRUME	NT SPE	CIFICATIO	N	M	ANUFACTURER	S DAT	•	PURCHA	EDATA
EQUIPMENT	DESCRIPTION	RANGE	INPUT	OUTPUT	POWER	NAME	& CATALOG NO.	DW	G NO.	PR	ю
FE 101	Flow Meter, Magnetic	11/2"		Approx. AMV/CPA		ESG S Vend	Sketch or Fab	.(2	\geq	18670	N 120114 AMA
FCV 101	Flow Control Valve	1 1/2" 35 GPM				VAL	VETEK			17716	N 110129 AMN
I/P 101	I/P Converter (Integral with FCV 101)		4-20Ma			Rob 44	ert shaw 3 I/P				
TE 101	Thermocouple (Integral with FE 101)	0-2300° I		K Type T/C							
ZE 101	Valve Position XDucer [#] (Integral with FCV 101)	0-100%	·	4-20Ma	24VDC	Moor 781 I	e Products P/I				
ZS 101	Valve Position Switch (Integral with FC 101)			DPDT Open/CL Switch							
FE 102	Flow Meter Magnetic	1 1/2"		Approx 4MV/GP	м	ESG Ven	Sketch dor Fab			18670	120114 AMA
FCV 102	Flow Control Valve	1 1/2" ; 35GPM				VAL	TEK			17716	110129 AMN
I/P 102	I/P Converter (Integral with FCV 102)		4-20Ma			Rob 44	ert ^s haw 3 I/P				
TE 102	Thermocouple (Integral with FE 102)	0-2300° I		K Type ·T/C	<u> </u>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
ZE 102	Valve Position Xducer (Integral with FCV 102)	0-100%		4-20Ma	24VDC	Moo 781	re Products P/1		2>		
ZS 102	Valve Position Switch (Integral with FC 102)			DPDT Open/CI Switch			•				
FE 103	Flow Meter, Magnetic	1 1/2"		Approx 4MV/GPI	x	ESG Ven	Sketch for Fab			18670	N 120114 AMA
FCV103	Flow Control Valve	ҙѹ҉ҙѿ				VAI	TEK			17716	N 10129 AMN
I'P 103	I/P Converter (Integral with FCV 102)	<u>`</u>	4-20Ma			Robe	ertshaw .				
TE 103	Thermocouple (Integral with FE 103)	0-2300 1		K Type T'C							
ZE 103	Valve Position Xducer (Integral with FCV 103)	0-100%		·	24VDC	Moor 781	e Products P/I				
ZS 103	Valve Position Switch (Integral with FC 103)			DPDT Open/CL Switch							
TE 104	Thermocouple (Ungrounded)	0-2300° I		К Туре	·	Ther .125 [mometrics Dia, . 062Tip			20411	N 179124 AMN
TE 105	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·										
HEMAHKS	& ID NO. 05000003			PREPARED	6Y	DATE	F F	lockwe	il Intern	ational	
(2) Ve	ndor Data Sheets 05077000001			DEPT/GRP	BY	DATE		nergy S	rsiems Gr	0up	
				DEPT/GRP REVISION	DATE		INSTRUMENT	INDE) SOLAI	(AND R PANE	EQUIPMEN L	T LIST
			•	RELEASING	3	·	LIST NO				
L				EO NO.							

TABLE 6

INSTRUMENT LIST (Sheet 2 of 2)

	T		INS	STRUME	INT SPE	CIFI	CATIO	N	W	ANUFACTURER	SDAT	j a	PUI	RCHA	E DA	TA
EQUIPMENT	DES	SCRIPTION	RAP	IGE	INPUT	OU	JTPUT	POWER	NAME	& CATALOG NO.	DW	IG NO.	P	R	<u></u>	ю
TE 106	Thermocor	uple (Ungrounded)	0-2	.300° I		К '	Туре		Therr .125D	nometrics ia, .062TIP	6	2)	204	•11	179	N 124 MN
TE 107																[!
TE111 - TE128 A B C	(54 totàl)								Ther. . 062	mometrics Dia,						
ZE 131	Deflection	Sensor _(LVDT)	±1,	. 00''		To ZT	.131	3V, 2-3KC From Z T131	Scha 1000	evitz HR			187	'33	N 181(Ab	1 093 MN
ZT 131	Deflection Signal Cond	Sensor itioning.Module	-		From ZE 131	±(NDC	±15VDC	Scha SMS	evitz IGPM-108						
ZE 132	Deflection	Sensor _(LVDT)	±1	. 00''		To Zi	r 132	3V, 2-KC From ZT132	Schi 1000	levitz)HR				\Box'		
ZT 132	Deflection Signal Cor	Sensor Iditioning Module	-		From ZE 132	±10	VDC	±15VDC	Scha SMS1	evitz GPM-108						
ZE 133	Deflection	Sensor _(LVDT)	±1.			Tc ZT	132	3V 2-3KC From Z T133	Scha 1000	evitz HR						
ZT 133	Deflection Signal Cor	Sensor Iditioning Module	-		From ZE133	±10	VDC	±15VDC	Scha SMS	evitz IGPM-108						
TE 134	Thermoc	ouple (Ungrounded)	0-	2300	r	к	Туре	·	Ther . 125	mometrics Dia.,.062Ti			20-	411	179 A	124 MN
XE 228A	Solar Flux	x Sensor	0-3	1000° I	-	0-	10MV	·	HYCA CI 341	L ENGR -D-1 50-36-780		2	201	68	181	N 1071 .MN
XE 228B				\Box		, [T					Γ				
XE 228C						-							\square	<u> </u>		
TE 229	Thermoco	uple (Ungrounded)	0-2	300° F		ĸ	Туре		Ther: . 0301	mometrics Dia Inconel	·		177	/03	1 180 AN	N 1945 4N
TE 230		· · ·		;	·								\prod		\Box	
TE 231		· · ·												·	\Box	
 		·				[-,:	·	·				•				
 	· ·															
		· · ·														
REMARKS	ደ 10 NO.	05000003	•			PRE	PARED) BY	DATE		lockwr	ell interr	vatiónal		· .	
	a 10,0044 (DEP	T/GRP		!		inny S	ysiems Ge	1849			
1.0"	endor Data J	heets 05011000000				AFF	ROVED	18Y	DATE	INSTRUMENT	INDE)	X AND	EQUI	PMENT	F LI	ST
1						DEF	TIGRP		!	ł	SOLA	R PANE	EL			
I							/1510m	DAIE	!	LIST NO.					—	
I						REL	EASING	G	1							

article subpanel inlet flow control valves. The operator can set the controllers for local manual or automatic valve operation. Figure 19 shows the logic employed in the valve control system.

The logic diagram shows the scram signals that will be sent to the facility system as well as the facility-generated scram signals for valve control. These signals are (1) the high-temperature limit alarms on the outlet thermocouples indicating excessive outlet sodium temperature, (2) a high differential temperature between the inlet and outlet sodium temperatures, (3) the closing of any of the inlet valves when insolation is impinging on the absorber panel, and (4) the loss of two or more of the flux sensors (computer programmed).

The Figure 18 P&ID shows the instrumentation for the above. It also shows the heater thermocouples and a typical heater. The heater thermocouples are not controlled via the ESG control panel.

The controllers utilized in the ESG control panel are a microprocessorbased design. The controllers receive their temperature signal from an immersion-type thermocouple located in each outlet duct of the absorber subpanel. These thermocouples are 0.125-in.-diameter ungrounded junction type that are reduced to a 0.060-in. diameter for faster response.

The controllers also have provision for receiving a feed-forward signal input as illustrated on the Figure 19 logic diagram. This allows the controller to drive the valve to a predetermined position with respect to the flux density. The immersion-type thermocouple located in the outlet duct provides the feedback signal to the controller. The feedback signal is compared to the set point; it works as a trimmer and controls the valve to obtain a minimum temperature deviation between set point and feedback. The controller also has the bumpless transfer feature.



Figure 19. EI&C Control Logic

The absorber panel flux sensors are the water-cooled type. The cooling water passages employ 1/4-in. tube lines and water passages with a 0.100-in. minimum diameter within the sensor proper. The passages are large enough to assure there will be no cooling water blockage due to contaminant buildup.

Each of the absorber subpanels has fourteen 0.060-in.-diameter ungrounded junction thermocouples strapped to the back of the absorber panel tubes with spot-welded clips. There are shown on the Figure 18 P&ID. The signals are not displayed on the ESG control panel but are multiplexed data channels. One centrally located back-of-tube thermocouple in each absorber subpanel is also brazed to the tube and was tested as a substitute for the flux sensors. However, the response time was too slow, and the measurement was influenced by sodium inlet temperature variations.

Three front-of-tube thermocouples, located in the panel edge tube were provided, also as a substitute for the flux sensors but with potentially more rapid response than the back-side thermocouples. These units were also influenced by sodium inlet temperature variations as well as by flux variation, an undesirable feature. They are 0.030-in.-diameter ungrounded junction Inconel stainless steel-sheathed units that are heat-sinked to the absorber panel tubes to prevent them from experiencing excessive temperatures. These were tested to determine the feasibility of using thermocouples as indicators of solar flux changes and to assess their reliability.

A magnetic flowmeter is provided in each of the absorber subpanels to measure sodium flow rate. The signal is not used for control; it is a multiplexed data channel and is also displayed on the ESG control panel. A thermocouple is provided for each of the flowmeters to measure flowmeter permanent magnet temperature to correct the magnet temperature-related signal error.

The center absorber subpanel has three deflection sensors from which the signals are fed to the main computer for recording. These are not displayed on the ESG panel.

The valve position signal is a multiplexed signal channel and is also displayed on the ESG control panel. The Valve Open-Closed lights for these valves are also displayed on the on-line ESG control panel.

The ESG control panel was fabricated at ESG's Canoga Park facility. It is a 69-5/16-in. by 22-in. steel cabinet with annunciator, valve-position digital indicators, digital flow indicators, valve full open and closed indicator lights, temperature indicator controllers, switches, relays, and other logic instruments required to control the valves to maintain a steady temperature. The control panel layout is shown on Figures 20, 21, and 22. Two selector switches and a digital meter were added at the site to monitor the flux sensors' signals.

Analysis of the control system is presented in Appendix G.

2.8 SAFETY ANALYSIS AND QUALITY ASSURANCE

Safety analyses for the test article were conducted. The ESG test article was designed to contain the sodium coolant safely under normal and upset test conditions. This was achieved by using a simplified design approach, incorporating well-demonstrated detail design and fabrication features and proven inspecting and testing criteria. A control system capable of maintaining the test conditions within design limits was provided.

The test article was designed to the applicable requirements of the ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code Section VIII Division 1 and ANSI B31.1, with large design margins. The accumulated creep and fatigue damage resulting from the elevated-temperature operating environment is evaluated using the elastic analysis methods of the B&PV elevated-temperature Code Case N-47. The construction materials and fabrication, inspection, and testing processes are within the above Code requirements. To assure reliable containment, all containment welds are of the simple-to-fabricate and inspect full-penetration butt type.



Figure 20. Control Cabinet Arrangement



Figure 21. Control Cabinet Access Compartment Layout



Figure 22. Annunciator Panel Layout

The control system for the test article was designed to maintain the maximum component temperatures within the design limits under the normal operational conditions, which include solar insolation variations and the performance fluctuation of the CRTF sodium test loop. Analysis verified that the failure of any control component will not result in the temperature of the containment components exceeding safe limits. Adequate instrumentation was provided to permit assessing the actual temperatures of the containment components during the tests. If necessary, the automatic control system can be overridden with manual control.

The control system was integrated with the control systems of the CRTF sodium loop and the heliostats to dump the sodium into the dump tank or defocus the heliostats under upset conditions, such as loss of solar input or loss of sodium flow through the test article. In the unlikely event of sodium leak from the test article, smoke detectors on the test loop would initiate the sodium dump into the dump tank, minimizing the effects of the sodium leak.

Quality assurance of the design and fabrication of the ESG sodium-cooled panel was verified in accordance with the QA plan. This included dyepenetrant inspection of all welds, helium leak checking, and proof pressure testing of the assembly before shipment to CRTF. Contracted inspectors were present to verify that these procedures were performed for the final integrated test assembly.

3.0 FACILITY AND TEST SYSTEM INSTALLATION DESCRIPTION

The receiver panel was tested at the Central Receiver Test Facility (CRTF) in Albuquerque, New Mexico. The facility is operated by Sandia Laboratories. The sodium test loop was also provided by Sandia Laboratories. This section describes these facilities and the data recording requirements.

3.1 CENTRAL RECEIVER TEST FACILITY

The CRTF is the primary solar test facility for component and subsystem evaluation within the Department of Energy's Solar Thermal Larger Power System (STLPS) program. The CRTF, with a thermal capability of about 5 MWt, is designed to perform a variety of functions ranging from testing collectors, receivers, thermal storage systems, instrumentation systems, direct-energyconversion cycles, fluid coolants, and materials to training personnel to operate solar facilities. A complete description is given in Sandia Laboratories Report SAND77-1173.

3.1.1 Heliostat Array Subsystem

The CRTF energy collection system consists of 222 heliostats. The total heliostat field can concentrate more than 5 MWt of power under optimal sun, heliostat, and target conditions. The approximate heliostat arrangements for the panel test program for panel preheat, low-power, intermediate-power, 100% power, and high-power operation are shown schematically in Figures 23 through 27. For this test series, 2.5 MWt is designated as 100% power. The preheat power level shown in Figure 23 is basically a 10% level. During checkout testing, four heliostats were found to be adequate to achieve a satisfactory preheat temperature. The test procedure document (Appendix C) identifies the sequence in which the various groups of heliostats are focused on the panel aperture.

ESG-82-40



Figure 23. Active Heliostat Distribution

3

x.

46

COLUMN NUMBER

ESG-82-40

47

*

Ŧ



Figure 24. Active Heliostat Distribution

COLUMN NUMBER

•

¢

,

7

14 13 12 11 10 8 ģ 10 11 12 13 14 14 Ð Ð Ð Ð Ð Φ \mathbf{O} Ð Ð Œ 600 ⊕⊕ œ ·(})-€Ð Ð Ð Ð 6) Ð 500 $\Theta - \Theta$ ⊕ Ð \oplus \oplus \oplus 12 Ð œ -@ Ð œ $\Theta \oplus \Phi \oplus \Phi_{11}$ 400 Ð Ð Ð $\Theta \Phi$ 10 Ð Ð DISTANCE, FEET • (D) (⊕ NUMBER 9 Ð Ð Ð Ð 8 300 \odot D ⊕-⊕ Ð Θ Ð 7 ROW Œ 0 Ð Ð O 0 6 Ð \odot Ð ഹ Ð 200 5 $\oplus \oplus$ ⊕-**⊕**-Ð Ð Ð 4 0 \odot \odot Ð 0 Ô $- \bigcirc \bigcirc$ \odot 100 Power 1.7 Mult 5pt. AIM 0 500 400 300 200 100 100 200 300 400 500 DISTANCE, FEET

Figure 25. Active Heliostat Distribution

۲

1

ESG-82-40 48 COLUMN NUMBER



Figure 26. Active Heliostat Distribution

ESG-82-40

49

.

COLUMN NUMBER

۲

,

7

;



Figure 27. Active Heliostat Distribution



3.1.2 Receiver Tower

The CRTF receiver tower rises 61 m (200 ft) above ground. The ESG panel experiment was conducted at this level.

Test bays for other experiments are located on platforms at the 36.6-, 42.7-, and 48.8-m (120-, 140-, and 160-ft) levels as shown in Figure 28.





For panel testing, the panel and sodium loop were assembled at ground level while mounted on the roof of an elevating module. Figure 29 shows the completed assembly within the ground-floor bay of the tower. Drawing NOO1000427 in Appendix F shows the solar panel assembly attached to the sodium loop enclosure. After completion of ground-level checkout tests with sodium in the system, the module was raised to the 61-m level for testing.

The elevating module, ~9.1 m (30 ft) wide by 7.6 m (25 ft) deep by 13.1 m (43 ft) high, is itself an enclosed three-story structure in which each story is a single room. The top room contains instrumentation patch panels, the middle room contains the data acquisition system, and the lowest room is a light machine shop.



Figure 29. Panel and Sodium Loop Assembly

Figure 30 shows the test assembly in test position at the 200-ft level.

3.2 SODIUM LOOP

The ESG test article was connected to a CRTF-installed sodium loop, as shown in Figure 28. Loop assembly was started in March 1981 by CRTF personnel, with assistance from ESG.

A flow schematic for the sodium loop is shown in Figure 31. Sodium circulation through the test panel is provided by an electromagnetic (EM) pump with a rated capacity of 0.01 m³/s (175 gal/min) at a developed heat of 200 kPa (30 psig). Nominal flow rate through the test panel is $0.007 \text{ m}^3/\text{s}$ (115 gal/min). The pump flow control system was largely inactive for these tests, and flow control was achieved by the panel flow control valves. During the early checkout tests, pump flow rate at maximum power was found to be limited to ~115 gal/min. Whether this limitation was due to a pump performance deficiency or due to a higher than expected loop pressure drop was not determined. This flow rate limit did restrict the maximum power to which the panel could be tested.

Liquid sodium enters the test panel at a temperature of $288^{\circ}C$ ($550^{\circ}F$) and under normal operation exits at a temperature of $593^{\circ}C$ ($1100^{\circ}F$). A flow-through surge tank is provided to accommodate changes in sodium volume in the system. Argon cover gas is provided in the surge and drain tanks. The sodium is cooled by the dump heat exchanger (DHX) from $593^{\circ}C$ nominal temperature to $288^{\circ}C$ before circulating back to the EM pump. The heat removal capability of the DHX is changed by varying the airflow through the unit through the use of two continuously variable-speed fans. Louvers are also provided for additional control. A preheat system and doors are provided on the unit to maintain a night-time temperature of about $204^{\circ}C$ ($400^{\circ}F$). The



Figure 30. Test Installation at the 200-ft Level Test Position



,

1

*

Figure 31. Flow Schematic for Sodium Loop at CRTF

ESG-82-40 55 >

,

DHX was rated at 2.5 MWt of heat removal capacity. An evaluation of the design parameters and the early testing indicated the actual capacity was at least 3.0 MWt and perhaps higher.

3.3 DATA ACQUISITION

3.3.1 General Requirements

Data are required from checkout and operations of the test article in the form of direct and derived measurements.

Direct Measurements

Direct measurement instrumentation consists of sensors that measure temperature, solar flux, sodium flow rate, and receiver tube displacement. The instrumentation data are summarized in Table 7. The instrumentation list is given in Table 6.

Derived Measurements

Measurements derived from the direct test measurements necessary for test article evaluation are:

- 1) Differential Temperatures (ΔTs)
 - a) Sodium $\triangle Ts$ derived from test article panel inlet and outlet manifold submerged temperature measurements
 - b) Metal ΔTs derived from tube back-side and front-side surface measurements (edge tubes only).

TABLE 7 INSTRUMENTATION DATA (Sheet 1 of 2)



							Tower Cont	rol Rm.	
		CRTF Int	ertace	CRIFE	ata Aquisi	1	Recorder/	ESG	·
Item	Quan. (Total)	TE Conductor	Copper Conductor	Main Computer	Recall (Limited)	CRT	Data Logger	Control Console	Notes
<u>Temperature C or F</u>	ł		· .			1			
Common Inlet Duct TE107	1	1	-	- 1	1	1	1	-	Note 1: Signal from ESG Control Panel Isolate.
Common Outlet Duct TE134	1	1	-	1	1	1	1	-	Reference Note 1. TE134-TE107 high delta = SCRAM signal
PNLs A, B, C Inlet FM TE101, 102, 103	3	3	-	3	-	-	-	-	FE Flow Temperature Compensation Data Input.
PNLs A, B, C Outlet Duct TE104, 105, 106	3	3	-	3	3	3	3	3	Reference Note 1 High = SCRAM Signal. Hi/Lo Annunciated
PNLs A, B, C Solar Sensor XE228A, B, and C	3.	· -	3	3	-	3	-	-	Reference Note 1 and Reference Note 7.
Bacr of Tube MTD TEs - PNL A TElllA through 124A	14	- 14		14	1 (Note 3)	1 (Note 3)	-	-	Note 3: TE120A will alternate as substi- tute for XE228A.
Back of Tube MTD TEs - PNL B TE111B through 124B	14	14	-	14	6 (Note 4)	6 (Note 4)	-	-	Note 4: TE120B alter- nates as substitute for XE228B. TE111B through 115B to be recorded only.
Back of Tube MTD TEs - PNL C TE111C through 124C	14	14	-	14	1 (Note 5)	1 (Note 5)	-	-	Note 5: TE120C will alternate as substi- tute for XE228C.
Following Tube and MDR TEs to be used for preheat control	4								Note 6: Data logger; used for preheat control.
. PNL A TE125A	4	4	-				4(Note 6)		
. PNL B TE1258 through -1288	4	4	-				4(Note 6)		
. PNL C TE125C through -128C	4	4	-				4(Note 6)		

Rev 5/13/81

TABLE 7	
---------	--

INSTRUMENTATION DATA (Sheet 2 of 2)

				CRTE Data Acuisition		Tower Cont	trol Rm.		
	l .	CRTF Int	erface	CRIFI	Jata Aquisi	tion	Recorder/	ESG	
Item	Quan. (Total)	TE Conductor	Copper Conductor	Main Computer	Recall (Limited)	CRT	Data Logger	Control Console	Notes
PNL A TE229	1	1	-		(See	TE 120A)		-	TE229 alternate to TE120A; reidentify Channel TE120A to TE229 when in use.
PNL C TE230	1	1	-		(See	TE120B)		-	TE230 alternate to TE120B; reidentify Channel TE120B to TE230 when in use.
PNL C TE231	1	1	-		(See	TE120C)			TE231 alternate to TE120C; reidentify Channel TE120C to TE231 when in use.
Flow Data, GPM									
PNLs A, B, C Inlet FE101, 102, 103	3	-	3	3	3	3	-	3	Reference Note 1 and TE101, 102, 103 Data (Assume Low-Flow SCRAM alarm supplied from Loop FE058)
Flow Control Valves (2) PNLS A, B, C Inlet FCV 101, 102, 103									
ZE101, 102, 103	3	-	3	3	-	3	-	3	Reference Note 1.
ZS101, 102, 103 <u>Deflection</u> (Inches)	3	-	3	-	-	-	-	3	Open-Close Lights Note 7: Any ZE closed with XE flux signal = SCRAM signal. Indication
Sensors PNL B only ZE131, ZE132, ZE133	3	-	3-4 Cond. (Note 8)	3	3	-	-	-	Note 8: Three signal conditioners in loop structure - MTD MP Box.

2) Power

Panel power (P) was computed for each panel as well as the total, using measured flow rates (\dot{w}) and temperatures (T).

$$P = \hat{w} \int C_p \, dt = 0.34574 \, (T_{out} - T_{in}) + \frac{0.079226}{2 \times 10^3} \, (T_{out}^2 - T_{in}^2) \\ + \frac{0.034086}{3 \times 10^6} \, (T_{out}^3 - T_{in}^3) \text{ in Btu/s} \\ P_1 = \frac{P}{947.8} \text{ in MWt} \\ \text{where} \\ \hat{w} = Q \, \frac{0.1337}{60} \, \rho \text{ in 1b/s where } \rho = f(T_{in}) \\ Q = \text{flow rate in gal/min} \\ C_p = 0.34574 - 0.079226 \times 10^{-3} \, T_F + 0.034086 \times 10^{-6} \, T_F^2, \text{ sodium} \\ \text{specific heat} \\ \rho = 59.566 - 7.9504 \times 10^{-3} \, T - 0.2872 \times 10^{-6} \, T^2 + 0.06035 \times 10^{-9} \, T^3, \\ \text{in 1b/ft}^3, \text{ sodium density} \end{cases}$$

3) <u>Differential Pressures (△Ps)</u>

Sodium $\triangle Ps$ derived from test article panel inlet and outlet pressure measurements

3.3.2 Test Data Tape

The format for test data tape supplied to ESG is given in Table 8.

Buff No.	Mnemonics	Channel No.	Unit	Low Value	High Value
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35	TE-050 TE-051 TE-070 TE-072 TE-030 TE-032 LE-042 LE-042 LE-061 PT-045 PT-062 PT-077 PT-078 PT-035 PT-036 FE-038 FE-101 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-102 ZE-101 ZE-101 ZE-102 ZE-101 ZE-102 ZE-101 ZE-102 ZE-101 ZE-102	19 20 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 33 34 35 46 37 38 39 40 41 42 49 50 51 52 53	OF OF OF OF OF OF in. in. psi psi psi psi psi psi psi gal/min gal/min % mil-in. mil-in. % open % open % open gal/min gal/min	400 400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	$ \begin{array}{r} 1200\\ 1200\\ 1500\\ 1500\\ 1500\\ 1500\\ 500\\ 500\\ $

TABLE 8 DATA CHANNEL LIST (Sheet 1 of 3)

IABLE O	TAB	LE	8
---------	-----	----	---

.

DATA CHANNEL LIST (Sheet 2 of 3)

Buff No.	Mnemonics	Channel No.	Unit	Low Value	High Value
36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70	FE-103 TE-111A TE-112A TE-113A TE-113A TE-114A TE-115A TE-116A TE-117A TE-120A TE-120A TE-121A TE-122A TE-122A TE-123A TE-124A TE-113B TE-114B TE-115B TE-116B TE-117B TE-117B TE-120B TE-120B TE-121B TE-122B	54 145 146 147 148 149 150 151 152 153 154 155 156 157 158 159 160 161 162 163 164 165 166 167 168 169 170 171 172 173 174 175 176 177 178	ga 1/min OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF OF		$\begin{array}{c} 60\\ 1500\\ 1$

Buff No.	Mnemonics	Channel No.	Unit	Low Value	High Value
71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98	TE-117C TE-118C TE-120C TE-121C TE-121C TE-122C TE-123C TE-229 TE-230 TE-231 TE-101 TE-102 TE-103 XE-228A XE-228B XE-228B XE-228C EPPLEY TIC-104 TIC-105 TIC-106 TE-107 TE-134	179 180 181 182 183 184 185 186 187 188 189 190 191 192 257 258 259 260 6 7 8 43 44	ንድ መስከ	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1500 1500 1500 1500 1500 1500 1500 1500
99 100 101 102 103 104 105	POWER DX POWER A POWER B POWER C DELT A DELT B DELT C		kW kW kW OF OF OF	0 0 0 0 0 0	5000 5000 5000 5000 800 800 800

TABLE 8 DATA CHANNEL LIST (Sheet 3 of 3)

62

3.3.3 CRT Displays

The CRT displays are for the purpose of presenting current panel operating and performance data and to indicate when limiting conditions are reached. Tables 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 present alarm/current information displays available to the ESG Panel Test Conductor. Figure 32 presents a flow schematic for a color graphic display.

		ALARM CONTI Contro	ROL LU12 DISPL D1 Mode M/A	AY		
OUTLET TEMP	134 104 105	^o F ^o F ^o F	INLET TEMP HIGH DELT TTMAX	107 134/107		⁰ F* ⁰ F
•	106	⁰ F	FLUX PANEL	Α		Mw
			FLUX PANEL	В		MW
			FLUX PANEL	С		MW
VALVE POSIT	101	PCT	PANEL BACK	А	104	⁰ F*
•	102	PCT			111A	⁰ F*
	103	PCT			115A	⁰ F*
FLOW RATE	101	GPM	PANEL BACK	В	105	⁰ F*
	102	GPM			111B	⁰ F*
	103	GPM			112B	⁰ F*
PRESSURE, IN	PT35	PSI			113B	*
OUT	PT36	PSI			114B	⁰ F*
△ P PT	36-PT35	PSI			115B	⁰ F*
EM PUMP		PCT	PANEL BACK	С	106	⁰ F*
DNX FAN		RPM			111C	⁰ F*
ST PRES <u>O</u> /HI		PSI			115C	⁰ F
DT PRES <u>O</u> /HI		PSI				
ST PRES <u>O</u> /HI		IN				

,

*Indicates low alarm 300⁰F, limit to flash

ESG-82-40 64 TABLE 9

TABLE 10 PANEL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Control Mode _____ TC 033 _____OF FE 058 _____gpm Power _____MWt

Panel A			Panel B			Panel C		
	TC104			TC105 0F			TC106 F	
TC111A °F		TC115A ⁰ F	TC111B ⁰ F	TC113B ^o f	TC115B F	TC111C		TC115C ⁰ F -
	TC117A ⁰ F			TC1176			TC117C F	
	TC120A			TC120B ⁰ F			TC120C ⁰ F	
	TC123A 0 _F			TC123B ⁰ F			TC123C	
	FE101 °F			FE102 ⁰ F			FE103 ⁰ F	
	XE228A ⁰ F			XE228B			XE228C	
			ZE ZE ZE	131 132 133	in. in. in.			
۵ Por	T ⁰ F wer!	MW	∆ Por	T ^O F wer M	w	∆ Po	T ^O F werM	W
Panel A	Panel B	Panel C						
-----------------------	--------------------------------	-----------------------						
(DELT)	(DELT)	(DELT)						
() ^O F	() ^O F	() ^o f						
	(TE134) () ^O F							
(TE104)	(TE105)	(TE106)						
() ^O F	() ^O F	() ^O F						
	(ZE131) () IN.							
(XF228A)	(XF228B)	(XF228C)						
() M\/m ²	() MW/m ²	() MW/m ²						
	(ZE132) () IN.							
	(ZE133) () IN.							
(TE123A)	(TE123B)	(TE123C)						
() ^O F	() ^O F	() ^O F						
(FI101)	(FI102)	(FI103)						
() GPM	() GPM	() GPM						

	TABLE 11							
TEST	ARTICLE	DATA,	DISPLAY	LU9				

· · · · · · · · ·	TEMF	PERATURE PRO	FILE DISPLAY,	LUIO	
	A (TE115A)	(TE118A)	(TE121A)	(TE124A)	
	B (TE115B)	(TE118B)	(TE121B)	(TE124B)	
	C (TE115C)	(TE118C)	(TE121C)	(TE124C)	
•	A (TE114A)				
	B (TE114B)				
	C (TE114C)				
A (TE104)	(TE113A)	(TE117A)	(TE120A)	(TE123A)	(TE125A)
B (TE105)	(TE113B)	(TE117B)	(TE120B)	(TE123B)	(TE125B)
C (TE106)	(TE113C)	(TE117C)	(TE120C)	(TE123C)	(TE125C)
OUTLET	A (TE112A)				INLET
(TE33 or	B (TE112B)				(TE30 or 107)
or 134)	C (TE112C)			ě	
	A (TE111A)	(TE116A)	(TE119A)	(TE122A)	
	B (TE111B)	(TE116B)	(TE119B)	(TE122B)	
	C (TE111C)	(TE116C)	(TE119C)	(TE122C)	
	Test Article	Temperature	Profile (^O F)	(Flow 🔶)	

TABLE 12 TEMPERATURE PROFILE DISPLAY, LU10

Each () designates XXXX

NOTES FOR ALARM DISPLAYS TABLES 9, 10, 11, and 12

- 1. Displays shall be easily interpreted by the test conductor with clear lettering recognizable 3 ft from the screen.
- 2. Alarm (limiting) conditions shall be indicated by a flashing reversed lettering display of the specific parameter.
- 3. TT MAX of Table 9 is the panel backside T/C with the highest temperature.

CRT No.	Title	Parameter Versus Time
1	Power - Panels A, B, C,	Calculated
2	Deflection - Panels A, B, C	ZE131, 132, 133
3	Flux - Panels A, B, E	XE228A, B, C,
4	flow - Panels A, B, C	FE101, FE102. FE103
5	ΔT - Panels A, B, C	(TE104-TE107), (TE105-TE107) (TE106-TE107)
6	Tube Temp along Panel A a b c	TE122A, TE116A, TE111A TE123A, TE117A, TE113A TE124A, TE118A, TE115A
7	Tube Temp along Panel B a b c	TE122B, TE116B, TE111B TE123B, TE117B, TE113A TE124B, TE118B, TE115A
8	Tube Temp along Panel C a b c	TE122C, TE116C, TE111C TE123C, TE117C, TE113C TE124C, TE118C, TE115C
	Tube Temp along Panel A d e f	TE111A, TE113A, TE115A TE111B, TE113B, TE115B TE111C, TE113C, TE115C

TABLE 13 CRT DISPLAYS 1 THROUGH 8

*Maximum of 3 parameters per display.



Figure 32. Flow Schematic for Color Display

4.0 TEST OPERATION

This section describes the test objectives and the operating procedures for panel testing. Appendices B and C give a detailed description of the procedures for pretest checkout, sodium loading, safety checks, emergency system checks, operating at the various power levels, obtaining the step increases and decreases in power level or sodium flow, and startup and shutdown.

4.1 TEST OBJECTIVES

The broad objective of the test program was to demonstrate satisfactory operation of a sodium-cooled receiver panel (that duplicates commercial panel construction and configuration) over a wide range of power levels, transient conditions, and emergency situations. Specific test goals that supported this objective were to:

- Demonstrate satisfactory panel operations at design heat flux and temperature
- 2) Achieve a maximum number of diurnal thermal cycles
- 3) Demonstrate satisfactory diurnal startup and shutdown
- 4) Demonstrate satisfactory nocturnal thermal control
- 5) Demonstrate control during insolation changes
- 6) Control several panels in parallel
- 7) Demonstrate panel dimensional stability
- 8) Achieve representative lateral power distribution
- 9) Demonstrate acceptable panel thermal losses
- 10) Accommodate various simulated emergency conditions.

4.2 TEST PROCEDURE

The ESG test article was tested at the 200-ft (top) level of the CRTF tower. The panel and test fixture were supported by the structural frame

surrounding the sodium loop. Figure 33 shows an artist's concept of the panel and loop arrangement.

The ESG panel assembly was connected to the loop assembly mounted on the CRTF tower elevating module while the module was at ground level. Prior to loading the loop with sodium, the loop piping was cleaned with TCTFE (trichloro-trifluoro-ethane). The panels were attached at this time. After draining the TCTFE from the system and drying, the loop drain tank was loaded with sodium.

Loop checkout, including flowing sodium, was also conducted at ground level. The panel preheat was accomplished with an electric blanket covering the test area of the panels as shown in Figure 34. Following successful checkout of the loop, including flowing sodium, the elevating module was raised to the 200-ft level.

The panel was drained at the end of each day and allowed to cool to ambient conditions. Panel sections not exposed to insolation during the test were trace-heated when sodium was drained. Preheat at the start of each day was accomplished using the reflected energy from several heliostats.

The test program was designed to achieve the following types of testing:

- 1) Low-power
- 2) Isothermal
- 3) Intermediate-power
- · 4) Design-power
 - 5) High-power.

A brief description of the procedures used in each of these categories follows.







Figure 34. Panel at CRTF with Blanket

4.2.1 Low-Power Testing

The purpose of testing the sodium-cooled solar receiver (SCSR) panel at lower power (0.8 MWt) was to demonstrate the operability of the sodium loop system and determine the characteristics of the system. Methods of operation during this testing phase included both manual and automatic control. The system was routinely operated to (1) demonstrate the use of solar preheat prior to filling; (2) selectively utilize the heliostat field, building up a normal flux distribution on the panel to achieve the desired power level; and (3) perform a series of tests which verify the characteristics of the system.

To demonstrate the operability and stability of the receiver, the system was switched to and from automatic control while operating at steady state. The effectiveness of emergency shutdown and system response was determined by initiating at least one of each of the following emergency shutdowns: (1) heliostat scram, (2) loss of sodium flow scram, (3) dump valve scram, and (4) loss of DHX blower scram during each test.

4.2.2 Isothermal Testing

The purpose of performing isothermal testing of the SCSR system was to determine the conductive and convective heat losses that result when the unheated solar panels are subjected to different environments. Tests were conducted during a low wind condition and during an intermediate wind condition.

Solar preheat of the panel was used while the loop was filling with sodium and to assist heating as the loop temperature was increased to $\sim 700^{\circ}$ F. Sodium flow was held constant during each test. When desired sodium flow and temperature conditions were achieved, solar heat and trace heat were terminated and then thermal decay characteristics recorded.

4.2.3 Intermediate-Power Testing

The purpose of performing intermediate power tests (1.7 MWt) on the SCSR receiver panel was to (1) demonstrate the operation of the system while developing a temperature differential of 370 and 550°F across the receiver panel; (2) determine the effects on the system of introducing either a power step (by means of increasing or decreasing the heliostat field) or a flow step (by means of increasing or decreasing sodium flow through the receiver panel). The intermediate-power test series included tests to:

- Demonstrate stable, steady-state operation of the receiver panel with a power input of 1.7 MWt. The loop operated with a total flow of 115 gal/min through the panels, which produced a sodium temperature increase of 370°F (550 to 920°F). Both manual and automatic operation were used.
- 2) Demonstrate stable, steady-state operation of the receiver panel with a power input of 1.7 MWt using a total flow of 78 gal/min to develop 1100°F outlet temperatures. Both manual and automatic operation were used.
- 3) Provide through a series of power and flow step tests additional data on transient operating characteristics while operating at 1.7 MWt with a normal flux distribution. Several power step tests were performed by removing groups of heliostats from the target. After allowing the system to stabilize at the lower flow conditions, the same groups of heliostats were returned to the panels.

4.2.4 Design-Power Testing

The purpose of performing design power tests (2.5 MWt) on the receiver panel was to (1) demonstrate the stability of the test article operating at design power conditions, (2) determine the effects on the system resulting from a series of power steps ranging from 20 to 60%, and (3) demonstrate system response to emergency shutdown.

The tests performed in the design power test series included:

- 1) Stable, steady-state operation of the receiver panel and system was demonstrated at a power input of 2.5 MWt. The loop was operated at a total flow through the panels of 115 gal/min producing an overall sodium temperature increase of $550^{\circ}F$ (550 to $1100^{\circ}F$). Both automatic and manual control of the receiver panel and DHX was used. During these tests, bumpless transfer of panel control sensors was demonstrated, i.e., flux sensor to thermocouple.
- 2) A series of power step tests was performed, allowing either natural cloud passage or preprogrammed heliostat removal and replacement to produce the power transient. The power transient tests were initiated from a steady-state power level of 2.5 MWt with system conditions as described in 1) above. The magnitude of the power steps ranged from 20 to 60%.
- 3) While the initial test plans included operation at steady state with a skewed flux distribution, this testing was considered unnecessary since the standard distribution gave a sufficiently large temperature gradient across the edge panels.
- 4) Open-loop tests were conducted from several steady-state power levels, increasing and decreasing the power in steps. Repeat tests were accomplished to establish sufficient data on the thermal characteristics of the system.
- 5) Additional operating experience was obtained by performing emergency shutdowns. These tests, initiated at the completion of a day's run, included (a) heliostat scram, (b) loss of sodium flow scram, and (c) dump valve scram.

4.2.5 High-Power Testing

The purpose of performing tests on the receiver panels at more than design power was to demonstrate that the panels and DHX can be safely operated at thermal power levels up to 20% greater than design. Unfortunately, because of the limitations of the EM pump, a flow rate higher than 115 gal/min could not be achieved and the first item below was not accomplished. Item 2 was conducted.

The tests to be performed in the high-power test series included:

- 1) Stable, steady-state operation of the receiver panel and system with the full field of heliostats on target (~3.0 MWt). The loop was to operate at a total flow of 140 gal/min, producing an overall sodium temperature increase of $550^{\circ}F$ (550 to $1100^{\circ}F$).
- 2) An investigation of the higher temperature characteristics of the panel. During this test, the overall temperature differential across the receiver panels was increased to $600^{\circ}F$ ΔT while maintaining a steady-state flow of 115 gal/min. A maximum power of 2.85 MWt was achieved.

5.0 TEST RESULTS

A summary of the 34 tests conducted during this program is shown in Table 14. The early tests were conducted at low power (0.8 MWt) in order to perform system and control checkout studies, to familiarize the crew with the operation characteristics of the system, and to verify the various alarm and scram conditions. After ten tests at low-power conditions, eight tests were performed at intermediate power levels (1.7 MWt). These tests tended to repeat many of the test activities conducted at the lower power level. The remainder of the testing was performed at nominal design power level conditions (2.5 MWt). However, because of the concern with the side panel insulation, power levels (and, hence, flux spillage) were reduced by about 10%.

The sodium flow system worked flawlessly throughout the tests, and no test delay or lost test time was attributed to the sodium flow system. Loss of test time was due primarily to the weather and to failure of the hightemperature insulation on the side frames. Some weather-related delays were the result of inadequate electric preheat temperature in the dump heat exchanger or, on occasion, in the header region of the test panel due to high winds and low ambient temperatures.

In general, testing was initiated whenever the weather conditions showed promise of adequate sunlight and the condition of the frame insulation was adequate.

5.1 STARTUP AND SHUTDOWN

The test startup activities consisted of preheating the test panel to a temperature of about 400° F prior to filling the loop with sodium. This was accomplished using four heliostats with a four-point aim pattern toward the corners. If the insulation was poor, additional heliostats would be used to achieve the necessary preheat. Figure 35 shows a startup sequence with a

.79

TABLE 14

ESG SOLAR PANEL TEST - SUMMARY (Sheet 1 of 3)

TEST	WEATHER	9 10	N00 11 12	N 13	14 15	16	MAX NO. HELIO.	PURPOSE	COMMENT
1	C/WIND	1981		10/	30	=>	15	HOT CHECKOUT-FLOW METER WETTING	· ·
2	C/HI-HAZE			11/5			22	HOT CHECKOUT-FLOW METER CALIBRATION	
3	PC						50	LOW POWER TESTING, DHX OPERATION PANEL AUTO CONTROL CHECKOUT	VALVES CLOSE TO LIMIT
4	C			11	1/9	נ	22	CONTROL CHECKOUT	VALVES CLOSE TO LIMIT - MANUAL SCRAM ON PANEL A OVER TEMP.
5	С			C	11/2		22	CONTROL TUNE - FLOW RATE MAP	O.K. CONTROL ACTION
6	C/HI-HAZE			C	11/13		48	FLOW RATE MAP - CONTROL TUNE	O.K. CONTROL ACTION
7	C	Ĩ.	11/1	16	כ		48	CONTROL TUNE, PB, RS, R, LL	AUTO SCRAM COMPLETE
8	C/HI-HAZE			ĩ	11/17	3	48	CONTROL TUNE, OPTIONAL FEED FWD	
9	C/WIND				/18		48	CONTROL TUNE, DHX AUTO CONTROL	
10	PC			11/19			48	ISOTHERMAL COOL DOWN	STOP - CLOUDS
11	C	1		1	1/20		108	INTERMEDIATÉ POWER - DHX CONTROLLER TUNE, PANEL CONTROL TUNE	POOR CONTROL
12	PC		11/2	5 1			110	DHX CONTROLLER TUNE	STOP - CLOUDS MALFUNCTION PANEL A CONTROL

1

э

× 4

C - CLEAR, PC - PARTIAL CLOUDY, I.P. - INTERMEDIATE POWER, D.P. - DESIGN POWER

ESG-82-40 80

6 (S

z

t e

•

.

ESG SOLAR PANEL TEST — SUMMARY (Sheet 2 of 3)

TEST	WEATHER	NOON 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MAX NO. HELIO.	PURPOSE	COMMENT
13	PC	12/5/1981		CURE PYROMARK, VIP DEMONSTRATION	
14	C	1278		TUNE CONTROLLER-C	TC106 DISCONNECTED
15	C	12/9	110	CONTROLLER CHECKOUT, BACKSIDE TC FOR FEED-FORWARD SIGNAL	FLUX SENSORS ARE BETTER FEED FORWARD
16	С	12/17	112	I.P. CURE PYROMARK CONTROLLER TUNE	GOOD DHX CONTROL
17	C -+ PC	12/18	110	I.P. CONTROLLER TUNE	CONTROL GOOD
18	C	12/21	213	DESIGN POWER (D.P.) CONTROLLER TUNE	CONTROL GOOD
19	С	12/22	189	D.P. 2.6-MW STEADY STATE WITH VALVES WIDE OPEN	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
20	C →PC	1982	112	I.P. CONTROLLER TUNE	THREE SCRAMS DUE TO LOSS OF COOLING WATER
21	C	1/14/82	175	D.P. POWER STEPS	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
22	C	1/15	212	D.P. POWER STEPS	OVERTEMP SCRAM ON PANEL C
23	С	1/18	212	D.P. MAX FLUX, 1.53 MW/m ²	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
24	С	1/26	201	D.P. POWER STEPS TO C/O CONTROL SYSTEM	GOOD CONTROL
25	PC	2/5	189	D.P. CONTROL SYSTEM TUNE	PANEL C CONTROLLER FAILURE
26	PC	279	214	D.P. POWER STEPS	STOP DUE TO CLOUD Cover

ESG-82-40 81 .

						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
TEST	WEATHER	9 10 11	NOON 12 13 14 15 1	MAX NO. 16 HELIO.	PURPOSE	COMMENT
27	С	2/12		202	D.P. POWER STEPS	CONTROLLER STUDY
28	С		2/16	16	FLOW CALIBRATION	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
29	PC		3/1	171	PUMP FLOWRATE CHECK	POOR INSOLATION
30	С	3/4		145	POWER STEPS-WORKSHOP	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
31	РС		375	. 81	WORKSHOP	STOP DUE TO CLOUD Cover
32	С	<u>3/8</u>		215	WORKSHOP	FRAME INSULATION FAILURE
33	С		3/9	218	POWER STEPS-WORKSHOP	RTAF NOT WORKING
34	PC		3/10	217	ISOTHERMAL TEST	END OF TEST

ĩ

. .

TABLE 14

ESG SOLAR PANEL TEST — SUMMARY (Sheet 3 of 3)





preheat phase lasting 13 min. With satisfactory preheat, the loop was filled with sodium using the sequence discussed in Section 3.0. Fill progress can be monitored by observing the temperature changes shown by pipe and panel thermocouples, which indicate the passage of the sodium level. Sodium fill is complete when the level probe in the surge tank indicates a 50% fill level. Figure 35 shows the fill time to be 7 min.

Immediately after the system is filled, power was applied to the pump and a flow rate of $\sim 25\%$ was established for a short period of time to establish uniform temperatures around the loop. Power was built up by moving predetermined groups of heliostats onto the panel to prearranged aim points. A fivepoint aim pattern was normal. Groups of heliostats were added in a continuous sequence until the desired power level was achieved. Figure 35 shows a power buildup phase of 9 min. The total startup time for the test recorded in Figure 35 was 29 min. This demonstrated a minimum startup of less than 30 min as one of the test goals. Typical startup times for clear weather were from 30 to 45 min.

Figure 35 also shows a shutdown time of 6 min from the time the heliostats were removed until the sodium loop was drained. Heliostats were removed, in general, using the scram mode. Frequently, this was done as a verification of various emergency automatic shutdown events. After the heliostats were removed, the EM pump continued to circulate sodium until the loop temperature was essentially uniform. The heat dump remained in operation at low power until the sodium temperature was reduced to about 600° F. At this point, the drain valve was opened and all sodium returned to the drain tank.

The active area of the test panel was allowed to cool to ambient air conditions. All other sodium equipment, piping, and tanks, including the panel headers and ends, were equipped with electric trace heating that maintained these items at a temperature above 400° F. The sodium outlet temperatures for each of the panels, as well as the sodium inlet temperature during startup and shutdown for the test discussed above, are given in Figure 36. The inlet temperature (TE-107) variation is due to cold spots in the loop piping such as at the EM flowmeter locations and the dump heat exchanger tube bundle. The heat exchanger is equipped with doors that close in order to prevent air flow through the unit, but the door seals were poor and maintaining preheat temperature was difficult, on windy days.

Figure 37 presents the three panel flow rates for Test 19. A large amount of noise existed on these signals throughout most of the testing, due in part to a mismatch between the low signal conditioning and the "hi level" data system card. This condition was corrected late in the testing and improved the signal substantially. At this time, it was also noted that the EM pump generated substantial flow oscillations at power levels between 90 and 100%, without increasing total flow rate. Most testing was accomplished at full pump power, with flow modulation using the panel control. When this was observed, pump power was reduced to about 90%. Occasional bursts of noise that remain unexplained were still observed.

Panel temperature characteristics during preheat and fill for Test 24 are shown in Figures 38 through 40. This startup was not as rapid as for Test 19, described above. Following the fill sequence, the heliostats were removed for a few minutes so that an operator could turn off some preheat switches that were located in the preheat electrical panel at the base of the loop structure. (Panel preheat circuits located between the inlet and outlet temperature measurements were switched off to allow a more accurate determination of panel absorbed power.)

On each panel, the two edge tubes and the center tubes were instrumented with four backside thermocouples at 1, 3/4, 1/2, and 1/4 times the aperture



Figure 36. Sodium Inlet and Outlet Temperatures for Test 19

۲

ESG-82-40

1 5

. **.** . .



*

,

۰.

4 (#

Figure 37. Sodium Flow Rate for Test 19

ESG-82-40

1 1

s 44



Figure 38. Preheat and Fill for Test 24









height. These temperatures are shown in Figures 38 and 39 for the outside edge tube and the center tube of Panel A. In general, it is noted that the outside edge tube (A-1) of Panel A has a lower preheat temperature than the center tubes, though still satisfactory. The preheat temperatures of Figure 39 are typical of the other center tubes, and Figure 37 is also typical of the outside edge tube (C-21) on Panel C. The top thermocouple on each panel was shaded by the high-temperature insulation that shielded the upper header region; consequently, preheat at this location was poor. A preheat temperature of above 200⁰F was considered satisfactory for fill since the temperature of the sodium filling the panel from bottom to top was adequate to heat this region without cooling enough to freeze. The upper header region was heated electrically to $\sim 400^{\circ}$ F, and the cool region at the top of the panel aperture was estimated to be less than 1 ft in length. The rapid increase in the tube top temperature in Figures 38 and 39 indicates the passing sodium level. Note that each of the thermocouples along the tube in Figure 39 shows the passage of the sodium with a sequential delay from bottom to top, TE-123A to TE-113A. Since the thermocouples were mechanically attached to the backside of the tubes, the variation in contact resistance tended to vary the response time.

With the four preheat heliostats, the sodium temperature is increased by about 50° F while sodium flows through the panel. When the preheat heliostats are removed (to allow topside access), the panel temperature tends to equalize since a low flow rate continued.

Figure 40 shows that the sodium fill level within the tubes of this panel (typical of all panels) is very uniform, as the temperature change response for each of these aperture top measurements is nearly identical.

During the fill and power buildup phase, Test 22 presented a special condition which appeared to be caused by the temporary blockage of the edge tube on Panel C (C-21). The over-temperature on this tube resulted in a test heliostat scram requested by the test conductor. The panel and surrounding frame insulation were inspected visually. Some insulating batting, normally between Tube C-21 and the high-temperature insulation board, was missing and was replaced. It was considered at the time that this missing insulation batting allowed high-flux insolation to have an impact on the backside thermocouples sufficient to cause the high temperature reading. The test was restarted and ran for about 3 h, until the end of the shift. Post-test examination indicated that high temperatures were reached on this tube and that the tube was moderately deformed at the top end of the panel.

Figure 41, the four temperature measurements along the backside of Tube C-21, shows that this edge tube experienced high-temperature conditions, with a peak of about 1700° F for ~ 2 min, at a point about 8 min after fill, during the power buildup phase. All four backside thermocouples show the high-temperature conditions. Also noted on this figure is the time that the EM pump flow was initiated. Figure 42 shows an initial flow rate of 35 gal/min through this panel, increasing later to 39 gal/min, the full capability of the pump. The solar flux on the panel at the time of this event was about 0.8 MW/m^2 . The cooldown was relatively slow after the heliostats were removed from the target. The other panels show a very rapid, sharp decrease in temperature after scram as the cold sodium enters from the bottom to the top of the panel. Figure 43 shows the preheat and fill conditions for Panel C. The preheat condition shown appears to be normal and typical as described above. Fill temperature is shown to be about 450⁰. This is typical of the other panels. This curve also shows a low thermocouple reading, number four of the sequence, which is TE-124. This thermocouple normally reads low and apparently has pulled away somewhat from the surface of the tube. For comparison purposes, the preheat and fill condition for the inboard



Figure 41. Tube C-21 Temperature, Test 22



Figure 42. Sodium Flow Rate for Test 22



Figure 43. Outboard Edge Panel C Temperatures during Preheat and Fill, Test 22

edge of Panel C is shown in Figure 44. For the inboard edge of Panel C, fill temperature is shown to be a uniform 450° , just as on the outboard edge. Figure 45 shows the backside thermocouples across the top of Panel C. CE-IIIC is the inboard edge of Panel C going from left to right to TE-II5C, which is on the outboard edge of Panel C. Note that all these thermocouples had low preheat because of the shading from the solar radiation but that all except TE-II5 show the evidences of fill at about the same time, whereas TE-II5 appears to be delayed about 30 s. However, the panel did fill completely, as all thermocouples indicate temperatures above 400° .

The conclusion from this data is that flow blockage occurred in Tube C-21. The reason is not clear, but it is most likely that blockage occurred in the lower panel region. In the past it had been difficult to preheat this region, particularly in strong wind conditions. During this test, the winds were not particularly strong but were from the west, which tends to expose the edge of Panel C to cooler conditions. A close visual examination of the panel indicated that the upper part of Tube C-21 is bowed outward nearly one tube diameter. The post-test examination section presents additional measurements on this tube.

The backside insulation blanket was removed from the upper header region of the panel to inspect for any damage. The tube-to-header joint appeared satisfactory and with difference compared to the adjacent tubes. A dye penetrant inspection was conducted and no anomalies were found. The mechanical support for this tube was distorted but otherwise in satisfactory condition. Testing was continued.

5.2 STEADY-STATE PERFORMANCE

Steady-state performance occurred on clear days under either manual or automatic control during periods when the power level was not being varied.



Figure 44. Inboard Edge Panel C Temperatures during Preheat and Fill, Test 22



Figure 45. Top Row Temperatures for Panel C during Preheat and Fill, Test 22

Figure 46, the three-panel flux sensor measurements during the latter part of Test 23, shows that the panel incident flux was relatively steady; also superimposed on this curve is the insolation data for that period of time. Toward the end of this run, a scan with the incident flux measuring system (IFMS) was made, which shows up on the plot as deep, sharp variations in the flux reading as the scan sensor bars pass over and shadow the flux sensors. The incident flux measuring system is discussed in an earlier section. During this scan, a maximum flux of 1.53 MW/m^2 was measured. The flux distribution is discussed later in this section. Figure 47 shows the panel outlet temperatures and the variation produced during the IFMS scan, which shows a dip in temperature of about 70° in outlet temperature. During this period of time, the panels were under manual control. This was a maximum power test. Figure 48 shows the valve position during this period of time. Initially, the valves were in the wide open position, and pump power was increased to obtain maximum flow rate. The valves on Panels 1 and 3 were then partially closed in order to equalize the temperatures on all three panels as shown in Figure 47. No attempt was made to control panel outlet temperature during the IFMS scan. The sodium inlet temperature was relatively constant, as shown in Figure 49. The mixed-mean outlet temperature is also shown on this figure. The difference between these two curves gives the temperature increase across the panel. This temperature difference across the panel together with the flow rate through the panel is used to calculate the absorbed power as shown in Section 3.3.1.

The absorbed power for each of the three panels is shown in Figure 50. Also shown in this figure is the heat rejected by the dump heat exchanger. The power rejected by the dump heat exchanger is calculated in a manner similar to that for the panels. Figure 50 indicates that a peak power of 2.85 MW was achieved during this test.







Figure 47. Panel Outlet Temperatures during IFMS Scan, Test 23












The power distribution on the test panel as measured by the IFMS is shown in Table 15. The flux measuring system covers an area greater than the aperture of the panel. The panel aperture area is represented as a boxed area in Table 15. Near the center of that boxed area is a maximum flux reading of 153.4 W/cm^2 , which is equivalent to 1.53 MW/m^2 . This flux distribution is also pictorially represented in Figure 51. Also represented in this figure is an outline of the panel aperture area. The flux distribution across the center of the panel is shown in Figure 52, as compared to the desired flux distribution. The distribution was not as flat as desired but was acceptable. Since the flux gradients across the edge panels were larger than planned, the alternative skewed distribution that was in the original test plan was no longer required. This flux distribution data are used in Section 5.4 to compute panel efficiencies.

It was noted from the very beginning of the test that the flow rate data were rather noisy, both for the main flowmeter and for the panel flowmeters. It was suspected that part of this problem was due to the way the pump flow rate signal was handled. The pump flow rate signal was amplified with a 0- to 1-V amplifier, and this signal was supplied to a high-level card as an interface with the data acquisition system (DAS). This was later modified using a 0- to 10-V amplifier for the pump signal, which then gave a better match with the DAS interface. During Test 28, the effect of pump power and flow rate on the quality of the signal was examined. Figure 53 shows flow rate being increased in steps by changing pump power. Note that the flow rate signal for the three panel flowmeters became very noisy when 100% power was achieved and that the signal became steadier at 90% power and then tended to show noise again at 95% power. The main flowmeter signal showed that between 90% pump power and 100% pump power, no change in total flow occurred. For this reason, subsequent tests were conducted at a pump power of about 90%.

ESG-82-40

105

						TEST 23						
101801 FII	LE FOR ESC	FLUX DATA								101801 FII	E FOR ESC	FLUX DATA
W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
1.42	1.77	2.10	2.61	2.49	1.87	2.41	2.47	2.14	1.71	1.44	2.59	1.73
1.52	1.87	2.20	2.71	3.11	3.15	3.86	3.75	3.41	3.01	2.62	2.79	2.48
2.29	2.74	3.22	3.97	4.64	4.66	5.63	5.42	5.01	4.74	4.11	4.02	3.64
3.06	4.00	4.85	6.07	6.98	7.21	8.41	8.17	7.65	7.33	6.58	6.10	5.55
4.61	6.03	7.40	9.01	10.76	11.15	12.74	12.49	11.84	11.54	10.11	8.97	7.88
6.25	8.35	10.46	12.79	15.45	15.91	18.18	17.69 TC	OP 16.72	16.51	14.39	12.34	10.85
9.05	12.02	15.25	18.51	22.02	22.64	25.50	24.86	23.26	23.10	20.06	16.80	14.67
12.91	17.19	21.72	26.28	31.09	31.57	35.38	34.15	31.95	31.63	27.33	22.75	19.75
16.52	22.60	29.17	35.73	42.93	\$4.05	49.32	47.50	44.40	43.79	37.78	30.68	26.33
19.89	28.02	37.12	46.12	55.64	57.62	64.42	61.55	57.48	56.32	48.48	38.66	33.00
26.17	,36.72	48.55	59.94	72.06	74.44	82.67	78.67	73.62	72.41	62.17	48.67	40.81
30.32	43.39	58.20	72.12	87.19	91.08	101.2	96.74	91.68	91.03	78.91	61.95	52.04
34.37	49.93	67.99	85.03	102.4	107.4	118.9	113.5	108.5	107.8	94.32	74.28	62.64
38.52	55.83	75.54	94.63	113.7	119.5	131.5	125.9	121.2	121.8	107.9	85.78	72.61
41.61	60.08	89.74	100.5	121.0	127.5	140.3	134.8	130.7	132.3	118.0	94.60	80.92
43.30	61.98	82.07	97.30	118.9	125.5	139.1	141.2	132.8	133.5	116.9	98.01	85.41
47.58	67.88	88.88	99.27	122.6	129.1	143.1	153.4	140.0	138.8	118.5	103.0	90.28
44.87	63.81	83.47	93.92	116.5	122.8	137.0	146.9	133.8	133.0	114.0	99.62	87.92
40.92	57.82	75.73	85.60	106.0	112.0	126.0	135.2	123.4	122.0	105.6	92.63	82.34
36.97	51.44	65.98	74.06	90.82	95.93	108.4	116.6	106.1	105.7	92.43	81.77	73.29
32.50	44.49	56.55	63.16	76.39	79.75	90.05	96.56	87.45	86.75	75.80	66.83	59.78
25.67	34.64	44.08	49.72	59.87	62.31	70.97	76.72	69.36	68.85	69.56	53.58	48.54
19.95	26.51	33.06	37.14	44.61	45.89	52.46	56.18	51.09	50.20	44.74	39.84	36.27
15.17	20.09	24.36	26.63	31.96	32.38	37.09	39.53	36.10	35.49	32.07	29.03	26.72
10.90	14.16	16.90	18.01	21.25	21.15	24.48	26.05	23.89	23.75	21.87	20.02	18.78
7.99	10.10	11.60	11.93	13.66	13.37	15.53	16.70	15.52	15.73	14.72	13.87	13.03
5.81	6.99	7.79	7.86	8.67	8.25	9.49	10.28	9.64	1 10.14	9.68	9.16	8.81
4.25	4.96	5.14	4.89	5.50	5.09	5.89	6.32 BC	6.09	6.26	5.97	5.77	5.71
3.10	3.46	3.55	3.21	3.36	3.12	3.56	3.96	3.65	3.87	3.81	3.76	3.73
2.27	2.50	2.27	2.02	2.14	1.92	2.28	2.36	2.31	2.39	2.47	2.38	2.49
0.71	0.68	0.68	0.73	0.81	0.83	1.01	1.18	1.20	1.36	1.33	1.32	1.25
									1			

1

	TABLE	E 15
MEASURED	FLUX	DISTRIBUTION

EAST

PROJECTED AREA OF TEST PANEL WEST

1.18

ESG-82-40 106

< †

<u>э</u> с



•





Figure 52. Heat Flux for Normal Flux Distribution (Two-point aim)







The three front-surface thermocouples were added to the panel for possible use as a feed-forward signal in place of the flux sensors. Measurements TE 229, on the edge tube of Panel A, and TE 230 and TE 231, on the edge tube of Panel C, are shown on Figure 54. These measurements were not used as part of the control system, since the flux sensors (once properly positioned) functioned satisfactorily throughout the test. Because the front-side measurements were not placed particularly close to a back-side measurement, a meaningful front- to back-side difference is not readily obtainable except for TE 231 and TE 124C, which are ~1 in. apart. Figure 55 shows a comparison of the front-side thermocouples and nearby backside measurements. Figure 55a shows a front-to-backside temperature difference of about 120°F at the higher power levels. A power step occurred at time 1452 on Run 22, Figure 55b. The above temperature difference is about as calculated for a temperature difference across a tube at this location.

5.3 POWER TRANSIENTS

<u>Open-Loop Control</u>: Open-loop control was used mainly during the power buildup phase and during the maximum power tests such as shown in Figure 48. Manual control was satisfactorily accomplished when the power input changes were relatively slow. The operator had to monitor and control three panels simultaneously with valves that responded slowly when under manual control. Manual control of the panel valves was through the setup buttons on the controllers operating at a fixed program rate that required about 60 s for full-range-of-valve travel. (With an automatic control valve, motion could be very rapid with only about 4 s required to travel full range.)

Manual control was used to stabilize the panel outlet temperatures when, under certain controller setup conditions, the panel flow interaction produced outlet temperatures that approached the trip limits. Manual control of a

FRONT VIEW

τ ¥





ESG-82-40 110

3 V

ε



عن ۲

.

£ .

1.1

ESG-82-40 111

•

8 v.

ж *с*



. .

ESG-82-40 112

1.1

single panel with the other two under automatic control was readily accomplished. The major goal of this testing was to obtain satisfactory operation under automatic control.

Automatic Control: Power transients either occurred naturally, due to the passage of clouds which shaded part of the collector field, or were produced by removing or adding groups of heliostats to give a change in power level. The latter method was used extensively to determine control-system response characteristics, e.g., a 20% power step downward followed by a return step (Figure 56). The insolation reading also shown on this figure indicates that the day was very clear and cloudless. The panel outlet temperature is shown in Figure 57. Control system tuning studies were still being made, but the set point temperature of 1100° was maintained to within $\pm 45^{\circ}$ F. This figure also shows the results of the flow-rate interaction among the three panels. The interaction is more pronounced in this figure around 20 min and following 25 min. This interaction was not unexpected, since the panels were designed with a very low pressure drop in order to maximize the total flow rate in case pump power was inadequate, as was the case. While it is not readily discernable in this plot, an expanded-scale plot would indicate that the interaction shown here is primarily between Panels 2 and 3. As explained elsewhere, a commercial panel would have a significantly higher pressure drop and this flow interaction would not occur. The power change produced by this step is shown in Figure 58. These are calculated parameters, as indicated above, using the measured flow rate and measured temperature difference across the panel or, similarly, across the dump heat exchanger. Consequently, the variations that appear in these measurements also show up in this calculated parameter. The change in power, most clearly indicated by the curve for the dump heat exchanger, was a step of about 20%. The power decrease step occurred over a period of about 1 min, while the power increase return step occurred in about 30 s. The sharpness of these steps was substantially



Figure 56. Typical Power Step, Test 21



Figure 57. Panel Outlet Temperatures during Automatic Control, Test 21



Figure 58. Panel Power and Dump Heat Exchanger Power, Test 21

increased in later tests. Figure 59 shows that the mixed-mean outlet temperature from the three panels, as indicated by Curve TE-134, was maintained to within ± 25 °F. The dump heat exchanger control, as indicated by outlet temperature TE-107, was also satisfactory, with relatively small inlet temperature variations of about ± 25 °F.

A total of eight power transients were conducted during Test 24, as shown in Figure 60. For these tests, the removal or addition of groups of heliostats was preprogrammed in such a way that relatively sharp-edged power steps would be obtained. The heliostat scram shown during the middle of this test period was due to facility problems. Control tuning studies continued during this test period. Except for very early in the test, automatic control was used throughout. Figure 61 shows panel outlet temperature and panel inlet temperature as a function of time throughout this test. Panel outlet temperature was maintained at the set point of 1100° with relatively small variations in response to the power steps that are shown in Figure 60. It was noted at this time that these sharper transients caused a greater variation in the DHX outlet temperature, as shown in Figure 61. This variation in inlet temperature to the panel was also reflected in the outlet temperature of the panel, since the control system was not equipped to sense variations in inlet temperature. An expanded section of the two previous curves that shows Power Steps 3, 4, 5, and 6 is shown in Figure 62. This composite figure shows the variation in flux, valve position, and outlet temperature. Note that for these nominal 20% steps, the set-point temperature of 1100° is held very constant. The feed forward portion of the panel control system uses the flux sensor input to change valve position. The valve position changes closely match the shape of the flux measurement changes, and the flow rate changes correspondingly as shown in Figure 63. The noise in this signal, as discussed earlier, is clearly evident. Again, the mixed-mean outlet temperature of Figure 64 is quite steady but does show the influence of the inlet temperature variation.





* +



•

*

x - *x*

۰.



Figure 61. Inlet and Outlet Temperatures, Test 24



Figure 62. Power Steps 3, 4, 5, and 6, Test 24

×







Figure 64. Panel Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature, Test 24

A 40% change in power was tested, with the results shown in Figure 65. The down step occurred in about 7 s, and the up step occurred over a period of about 15 s. Because of a change in the reference level, the 40% downward step would be indicated as a 70% upward step. Again, valve position closely followed the step change in flux, which also changed flow rate (Figure 66). The outlet temperature variation is nominally within 30°, although this variation must be due in large part to the inlet temperature variation indicated in Figure 67.

A power buildup phase using automatic control followed by a cloud transient is shown in Figures 68 through 72. The insolation characteristics and the panel flux sensor measurements for these events are shown in Figure 68. The three panel outlet temperatures are given in Figure 69. The control valves were equipped with low-limit stops and are shown in Figure 70 to be against these stops until about the 5-min time line. For this reason, the control system could not achieve the set-point outlet temperature of 1100° until adequate power and flow rate were attained to allow the valves to move into a controllable range. The power buildup is indicated in Figure 71. Figure 72 shows panel motion during this event. These three linear motion transducers were located vertically along the centerline of the center panel. ZE-131 was the lower gauge, ZE-132 was located in the center, and ZE-133 was centered in the upper half of the panel. This motion was typical throughout the test and indicates that the center of the panel moves outwards by ~1 in. during the power buildup phase.

5.4 PANEL EFFICIENCY

One of the most interesting parameters to be determined from a receiver panel test is panel efficiency. This value is also difficult to determine with accuracy, since it depends upon how well the absorbed power and incident



Figure 65. Power Steps 7 and 8, Test 24

-







Figure 67. Panel Inlet Temperature and Mixed Mean Outlet Temperature, Test 24







Figure 69. Panel Outlet Temperature during Power Buildup and Cloud Transient, Test 27

ĩ







Figure 71. Panel Power and Dump Heat Exchanger Power, Test 27



2

Figure 72. Panel Position during Power Buildup, Test 27

power are known. Absorbed power (MWt) is calculated from the flow rate \dot{w} (lb/s), the temperature difference ΔT (^OF) from the inlet to the outlet of the panel, and the specific heat C_p , as given in Section 3.3.1.

Temperatures and flow rates are measured parameters. Input power is determined from the CRTF flux measuring system by integrating the flux distribution over the panel area. A CRTF computer program was used to calculate a transfer function value of 1.02 in order to relate the flux distribution measured in a plane 14 in. in front of the panel to the distribution at the panel surface. The calculated panel efficiency for several power levels is given in Table 16.

Test	Flux Scan	Time	Number of Heliostats	Peak (MW/m ²)	Total Power -From Field (MW)	Incident Power on Panel (MW)	Panel Power (MW)	Effi ciency (%)
18	135501	1018	110	0.71	2.10 ± 8%	1.33 ± 8%	1.25 ± 6%	94 ± 10%
	I 35502	1217	110	0.84	2.34	1.56	1.40	90
	I35503	1400	158	0.98	2.9	1.89	1.75	93
21	102401	1200	173	1.27	3.7	2.48	2.36	95
22	101501	1330	183	1.32	3.74	2.47	2.31	93
	101502	1350	188	1.34	3.81	2.48	2.39	92
23	101801	1309	213	1.53	4.39	2.89	2.657	92
24	102601	1216	175	1.33	3.51	2.35	2.26	95
34	106901	1145	161	1.32	3.53	2.35	2.25	96

TABLE 16 INCIDENT POWER AND ABSORBED POWER

The incident flux measuring system data for each of the scans in Table 16 are given in Appendix E.

*

Since early calculations of panel efficiency gave an unrealistically high value (over 100%), the measured parameters used to calculate absorbed power were examined. The accuracies of these parameters were estimated to be:

Thermocouples: ±2% Flowmeter: ±5% Sodium properties Specific heat: ±0.4% Density: ±0.2%

If uncertainties in these parameters are random, the error in absorbed power is about 6%. In examining the characteristics of the panel inlet temperature measurement TE-107, a bias was noted between this measurement and, for example, the lower backside panel temperatures with the heliostats removed (no heat input) as shown by Figure 73. This bias cannot be explained by the line and header preheat. A bias was also noted between TE-107 and TE-130. TE-130 is a resistance temperature device (RTD) that is part of the sodium loop but not considered to be calibrated adequately. A spare RTD was calibrated and installed prior to Test 34. The bias in TE-107 was confirmed as shown in Figure 74, which compares TE-030 and TE-107. This comparison also confirms the temperature correction factor of Figure 73. The panel power calculations and efficiencies of Table 16 have been corrected for this bias, and the uncertainty in the thermocouple measurements has been increased to $\pm 2\%$. The reason for the bias in TE-107 is considered to be a result of the way in which the measurement was connected to the test panel control cabinet alarm system and to the data system.

The accuracy of the flux measuring system given above as 7% is currently being reevaluated at CRTF. As part of this effort, the flux gages are being recalibrated using the new solar furnace at CRTF. However, this effort will not be completed for several months.



Figure 73. Correction to TE-107 (difference between average backside panel temperature and TE-107)

The combined uncertainties in the input power and the absorbed power give an estimated uncertainty in the efficiency parameter of Table 16 of 10%.

Isothermal Tests

*

These tests, conducted during Test 10, were for the purpose of determining the heat loss characteristics from the test panel. The tests consisted of heating the sodium loop to between 700 and 800° F using the heliostats, then removing the heliostats and observing the panel temperatures over a 15-min period. Three such periods are shown in Figure 75. During the first cooldown period of Figure 75, the trace heaters on the inlet and outlet piping for the panel were on, which would tend to distort the results. These heaters were turned off for the next two cooldown periods. A constant flow rate was maintained during the cooldown periods. Figure 76 shows a representative temperature distribution along the center tube of Panel B. The data obtained during these cooldown periods were very difficult to analyze, and a meaningful heat



Figure 74. Comparison of Inlet Temperature Measurements, Test 34

,

ESG-82-40 136

1.4

• 44



*

د

Figure 75. Panel Cooldown Periods during Test 10

7 4

٤.,..


Figure 76. Cooldown Period No. 2, Test 10

* e

3

1.6

ESG-82-40

y \$

138

loss estimate could not be made. The difficulty results from (1) the relatively small temperature differences involved, (2) the bias in the inlet temperature measurement that was identified late in the test program, (3) the variable inlet temperature, and (4) the transit time for the sodium between the various temperature measurement locations. Test 34, which was scheduled to include cooldown tests, was terminated early due to cloud cover before the test conditions could be established.

5.5 PANEL STRUCTURE

The tubes of each of the three subpanels are held in alignment by mechanical constraints located every 4 ft along the length of the panel. These mechanical constraints allow the tube to expand differentially in the longitudinal direction but restrict the motion of the tubes in the lateral direction. The locations of the mechanical constraints are indicated in Figure 77.



Figure 77. ESG Solar Panel Mechanical Constraints

The panel mounting on the test frame is described in Section 2.

ESG-82-40

139

The center panel was equipped with three linear motion transducers to indicate panel movement in the forward or backward (north or south) direction. As described in Section 2, forward panel motion was constrained by the three sets of tie rods. These rods did not particularly constrain backward movement.

ę.

Figure 78 shows the panel motion during Test 19. During power buildup, the panel center moves northward by about 3/4 in. The top of the panel tends to move backward a small distance, and the bottom transducer location shows a forward movement. The flux profile during this test is shown in Figure 79 over a greater time period than for Figure 78.

The panel movement is shown to closely follow the incident flux profile as seen by the comparison of Figures 80 and 81 for Test 24.

During the latter portions of the test, it was observed that at ambient temperatures, the panel had a permanent set in the backward direction. This position was measured after the test, as given in Figure 82. All three panels had a similar shape. Also shown in this figure is the shape of the edge tube (C-21) of Panel C. The reason for the shape of Tube C-21 is given in Section 5.1.

The panel location prior to each test at ambient temperature conditions is given in Figure 83. While these gages were not intentionally reset during the testing, some shifts may have occurred during the repainting activity or during repair of the frame insulation. For the low- and intermediate-power tests, the recorded panel deflections (north-south direction) of Figure 83 indicated very little change in panel position at ambient conditions.



ESG-82-40 141 * 1

.

1

1

1.0





Figure 79. Flux on Panel during Test 19

~







*





£

۹. с

٠,







٠,

۲

`.¢

* *

ESG-82-40 146

1.5 F. 2

During later portions of testing at full power, it was observed, between tests, that at ambient temperature, the panel was significantly bowed in a southerly direction in the thermal window area and slightly bowed in the northerly direction near the inlet region, as shown in Figure 83. Inspection of the panel after testing also indicated that the upper set of tie rods (both sides) between the panel and its support structure had elastically buckled.

Previous structural analysis of the panels indicated that during fullpower operation, the panel tubes developed stresses beyond yield and, therefore, behaved inelastically. Figure 84 presents a diagram of the anticipated displacement behavior of the panel during heatup and cooldown cycles.

If the panel were not restrained by the tie rods, the panel would displace a specified distance and return to its original position during heatup and cooldown. This is shown by Line 1 of Figure 84. However, since the tie rods do restrain the panel and analysis indicates that the tubes act inelastically, the displacement of the panel during heatup follows Lines 2 and 3 and puts the tie rods in tension. During cooldown, the panel develops a reverse bow due to the restrained plastic strain and the unloading follows Line 4. During this unloading phase, the panel support tie-rod tension load becomes compressive. This load is sufficient to elastically bend these relatively flexible rods, which allows the panel to displace as if not restrained and results in a permenent reverse set. This condition is represented by Line 5.

Visual inspection of the tube mechanical supports after testing did not reveal any damage, except for the unusual conditions on Tube C-21. Analysis indicates that the compressive strength (buckling) of the mechanical supports is much greater than that of the tie rods; therefore, during unloading, when both the supports and tie rods are in compression, the tie rods will buckle, thus relieving the compression load on the supports.

*



7

*

The inelastic behavior of the tubes and the reversed permanent set of the panel is small relative to the size of the panels and should not affect the commercial applicability of the design or its capabilities to meet its performance criteria.

0025C/1ad

6.0 COMMERCIAL RECEIVER DESIGN

In May 1982, Rockwell submitted a proposal to DOE for the preliminary design of a 30-MWe power plant using the sodium-cooled solar central receiver concept. The central receiver design for this plant is based upon the results obtained from the solar panel tests at CRTF and is configured as a northfacing billboard (Figure 85). The successful completion of this panel test program has enabled Rockwell to present a design concept for which all components have been thoroughly tested and component fabrication capability has been demonstrated (Figure 86). This has prompted the prediction (in the proposal) that a fixed-price construction contract with performance warranties could be offered at the conclusion of the plant design study. The specific design details of the proposed receiver concept and a comparison of these details with the solar test panel are presented in the following paragraphs.

6.1 COMMERCIAL PANEL DESIGN CHARACTERISTICS

ž

2

The performance of a commercial receiver subsystem is summarized in Table 17. The receiver selected for this plant is an external flat panel configuration, which is cost effective for plants of this size using a compact sodium receiver. The receiver and its support structure are located atop a 111-m (365-ft) steel tower. The midplane of the receiver is at 125 m (410 ft) above ground elevation. The receiver assembly consists of eight panels as shown in Figure 87. Each panel consists of 102 19-mm (3/4-in.) diameter, Type 316 stainless steel tubes with a wall thickness of 1.24 mm (0.049 in.). The panel is constructed using a Rockwell proprietary system that reduces thermal stresses and extends operating life. This system was used and proven in the successful CRTF test of the prototype panel. The inlet and outlet manifolds at each end of the tubes are made of Type 316 stainless steel tubing. The inlet manifold is anchored to the supporting structure, while the outlet manifold accommodates thermal growth along with the piping. The panel detail is shown in Figure 88.

151



*

Ł





Figure 86. All Components are State of the Art

Key Design Parameters	
Midplane elevation	125 m (410 ft)
Receiver aperture	
Width	16 m (52 ft)
Height	12 m (40 ft)
Number of panels	8
Panel characteristics	
Width	2.0 m (6.6 ft)
Height	15.2 m (50 ft)
Number of tubes	102
Tube diameter	19.1 mm (0.75 in.)
Tube wall	1.24 mm (0.049 in.)
Material	Type 316 stainless steel
Performance	
Incident power	116 MWt
Absorbed power	107 MWt
Inlet temperature	321 ⁰ C (610 ⁰ F)
Outlet temperature	566 ⁰ C (1050 ⁰ F)
Maximum flux	1.2 MWt/m ²
Average flux	0.61 MWt/m ²
Pump flow/head	0.39 m ³ /s (6200 gal/min)/167 m (550 ft)
Design Model Basis	
Test of Rockwell prototyp	e receiver at CRTF

TABLE 17 RECEIVER SUBSYSTEM DESIGN SUMMARY

đ

÷





102 TUBES 6 ft - 6 in. 40 ft Na INLET



ESG-82-40 154 82-J22-3-22

2

Finite element analyses have been performed to validate the design of the receiver tubes and manifolds. The major panel stresses are those thermal stresses caused by the temperature difference across the wall, especially near the crown, and the temperature difference across the whole tube. The proprietary panel construction method also allows higher tube-to-tube thermal differentials and reduces stresses. On this basis, a 30-year lifetime is achievable. Additional panel stresses due to wind, dead weight, pressure, and seismic need to be evaluated to establish the design margin. The portions of the system containing the coolant will be designed to Section VIII Division 1 of the ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code, with supplemental criteria for thermal-induced stresses and life calculations. The remainder of the system (civil structures) and the steel tower will be constructed to the Uniform Building Code and governing local codes.

6.2 COMPARISON WITH TEST PANEL

×

The test panel is compared with the commercial 30-MWe plant panel in Table 18. The panel tests confirmed the ability of the design to allow panel and tube-to-tube thermal expansion to take place without excessive stresses developing. The peak solar flux on the prototype receiver, which causes the main stress in the tubes, was more than 25% above the commercial receiver flux, thus providing a conservative margin. The test unit was operated at an outlet temperature of 593°C (1100°F), compared to the plant unit temperature of 566°C (1050°F), providing a further design margin. During the test, the three panels were operated satisfactorily in parallel, although a small amount of panel flow rate interaction was observed, as discussed elsewhere. Since the pressure drop for the commercial panel is substantially higher than for the test panel, the likelihood of flow-rate interaction among panels is substantially reduced.

A change in the plant unit design, compared to the test panel, is to include a tube return length at the top end that increases the flexibility of the panel to accommodate across-panel temperature gradients. Since the test

	CRTF Panel	30-MWe Panel
Number of panels	3	8
Maximum temperature [°C (°F)]	593 (1100)	566 (1050)
Flux density [MWt/m ²]	1.5	1.2
Aperture height [m (ft)]	3.05 (10) 12.2 (40)	
Width [m (ft)]	0.40 (1.3)	2.0 (6.6)
Tube diameter [mm (in.)]	19.1 (0.75)	19.1 (0.75)
Tube wall thickness [mm (in.)]	1.24 (0.049)	1.24 (0.049)
Pressure drop [psi]	0.2	12.4
Surface paint	Pyromark	Pyromark of lithium sodium silicate
Material	SS 316	SS 316
Manifolding	Single-plane manifolding	Out-of-plane manifolding
Receiver face	Vertical	Vertica]
Support structure	Truss	Truss
Passive cooling system	None	22.7-m ³ (6000-gal) accumulator tank
Flow control	Valving	Valving

TABLE 18 30-MWe CENTRAL RECEIVER PANEL SCALEUP

*

panel was much shorter, this added flexibility was not necessary for the test duration. These changes are simple and amenable to straightforward analysis. The key features of the receiver design have been tested, and the scaleup to the commercial receiver is basically in length and total number of panels.

The philosophy for control of the commercial receiver consists of matching flow rate to the heat removal requirement with control valve position set by power and trimmed by outlet temperature. This control philosophy was verified for solar receiver applications by the subject testing.

APPENDIX A

Ľ

2

SOLAR TEST PANEL REQUIREMENTS

GO NO.	S/A NO.				
41000		PAGE 1 OF	TOTAL PAGE	S REV LTR/CHG NO	NUMBER
41028	40000	19	19	New	004TI000008
PROGRAM TIT	LE			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Solar Ele	ctric Power		•		
DOCUMENT TI	TLE				
Solar Tes	t Panel Req	uirements			
DOCUMENT TY	(PE			KEY NOUNS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Technical	Information	n		Receiver test, sod	ium cooled, solar
ORIGINAL ISS	UE DATE	REL. DATE		APPROVALS	DATE
June 20,	1981	6-30	-8170	Ti Helae 9	18/81
PREPARED BY	/DATE	DEPT	MAIL ADDR	I. Nakae, Project	Engineer
T. L. Joh	nson	715	LA18	T.L. Colus	m 6/20/81
LR&D PROGRA	M7 YES 🖄 NO 🗆]		T. L. Mohnson, Pro	ject Manager
	DISTRIBUTION	MAII	ABSTRACT		- 1
* T. John * T. Nakad * W. Thom * F. Leto * W. Huntd * W. Sprin * B. Katz	son (5) e pson er nger	LA18 JB10 JB07 JB07 LA18 LA19	requireme to be tes in Albuqu consist o valve. 1	ment establishes the ents for the ESG sod sted at the Central merque, New Mexico. of three subpanels, The test power level	e design and operating ium-cooled test article Receiver Test Facility The test article shall each with a flow control shall be 2.5 MW _t .
			RESERVED FOR P	ROPRIETARY/LEGAL NOTICES	5
715-B.74/	emh/sjh				
	E DOCUMENT				
NO ASTEF OF	RISK, TITLE PAGE CHANGE PAGE C	SUMMARY			

.

2

х,

,*

٦

Ĩ

74



004TI000008 Page 2

w

4

SOLAR TEST PANEL REQUIREMENTS

June 20, 1981

6/20/81 APPROVED: T.L.

Project Manager

Rockwell International

*

÷.,,

۲. ۳

e,

Energy Systems Group

004TI000008 NO •-3 PAGE .

CONTENTS

			Page
1.0	Intr	oduction	5
2.0	Obje	ctives	5
.3.0	Test	Description	6
4.0	Requ	irements	6
	4.1	Applicable Documents	6
	4.2	Applicability to Commercial Panels	8
	4.3	Test Period and Panel Life	8
	4.4	Test Article Size and Power	8
	4.5	Heat Flux	8.
	4.6	Panel Temperatures	9
		4.6.1 Temperature Mixing in Manifolds	9
		4.6.2 Temperature Difference in Adjacent Panels	9
	4.7	Sodium Flow	9
		4.7.1 Fluid Purity	10
	4.8	Pressure in Loop	10
	4.9	Construction	10
		4.9.1 Panel Tubes	10
		4.9.2 Thermal Insulation and Barrier	10
		4.9.3 Structural Integrity	11
	4.10	Environmental	11
	4.11	Transients	11
		4.11.1 Cooldown Transient	11
		4.11.2 Loss or Recovery of Insolation	12
	4.12	Instrumentation	12
	4.13	Panel Control	12
5.0	Inter	rfaces	14
Appe	ndix.	•	15

Rockwell International	NO .	004TI000008
Energy Systems Group	Page .	4
TABLES		

1	WTU Paint Creek 4 Solar Repowered Plant Data	Page 16
	FIGURES	
1.	Artist's Concept of ESG Test Article Installed in Sodium Loop at CRTF	7

. **``**

Rockwell International

1

2

NO . 004TI000008 PAGE . 5

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This document establishes the design and operating requirements for the ESG sodium-cooled solar test article to be tested in the 5.0-MWt Central Receiver Test Facility (CRTF) at Albuquerque, New Mexico, in the summer of 1981.

2.0 OBJECTIVES

The overall test objectives are as follows:

- Provide a proof-of-principle test of sodium-cooled receiver panels.
- 2) Gain practical fabrication and operating experience.
- 3) Be in a position to build a commercial panel by 1984.

Specific test goals which support the above objectives are:

- . Demonstrate satisfactory panel operations at design heat flux and temperature
- . Achieve a maximum number of diurnal thermal cycles
- . Demonstrate satisfactory diurnal startup and shutdown
- . Demonstrate satisfactory nocturnal thermal control
- . Demonstrate control during insolation changes
- . Control several panels in parallel
- . Demonstrate panel dimensional stability
- . Achieve realistic lateral power distributions and sodium flows
- . Demonstrate acceptable panel thermal losses
- . Accomodate various simulated emergency conditions.



NO . 004TI000008 PAGE 6

÷

3.0 TEST DESCRIPTION

The ESG test article will be tested at the 200-ft level (top) of the CRTF tower. The panel and test fixture will be supported by the structural frame surrounding the sodium loop. Figure 1 shows an artist's concept of the panel and loop arrangement.

The ESG panel assembly will be connected to the loop assembly mounted on the CRTF tower elevator module while the module is at ground level. Prior to loading the loop with sodium, the loop piping may be cleaned with alcohol. The panels may be attached at this time. After draining the alcohol from the system and drying, the loop dump tank will be loaded with sodium.

Loop checkout, including flowing sodium, will be conducted at the ground level. The panel preheat will be accomplished with an electric blanket covering the test area of the panels. Following successful checkout of the loop, including flowing sodium, the elevator module will be raised to the 200-ft level.

The panel shall be drained at the end of each day and allowed to cool to ambient conditions. Panel sections not exposed to insolation during the test may be trace-heated when sodium is drained. Preheat at the start of each day shall be accomplished using the reflected energy from several heliostats.

4.0 REQUIREMENTS

The test article consisting of three subpanels shall be designed, constructed, and operated to the requirements of this section.

4.1 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS

The panel shall be designed to ASME B&PV Code Section VIII Division 1 and ANSI B31.1, as applicable, and shall meet requirements of the CRTF Experimental Manual, SAND 77-1173 (Rev), October 1979. Liquid penetrant examination and helium leak testing of welds per these Codes may be substituted for any radio-graphic examination of weld requirements.

A-8



÷

*

ř



Ξ.

¥

The stress analysis shall consider creep-fatigue effects. Other applicable documents are:

- 1) National Electric Code, NFPA 70-1978
- 2) National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA) Standards

4.2 APPLICABILITY TO COMMERCIAL PANELS

The construction of the panel will be consistent with the requirements for a commercial panel with allowance made for the constraints placed on the test by the CRTF. The panel shall be designed so as to accommodate 10^4 diurnal cycles over a period of 30 years.

4.3 TEST PERIOD AND PANEL LIFE

The test period is to be 3 months, but the panel construction should be consistent with a 30-year-life commercial panel. A shorter panel projected life will be acceptable if economic justification is provided.

4.4 TEST ARTICLE SIZE AND POWER

The solar radiation heated area of the test article shall be 1.2 m wide by 3 m high.

The panel assembly shall be designed to absorb a maximum thermal power of 3.0 MWt.

Maximum expected operating power is 2.5 MWt. The power distribution ratio across a panel shall not exceed 1.4.

4.5 HEAT FLUX

The maximum throughput heat flux in the panel tubes will be 1.50 MWt/m^2 .



NO	•	004TI000008
PAGE		9 [.]

4.6 PANEL TEMPERATURES

The nominal panel inlet temperature will be $288^{\circ}C$ ($550^{\circ}F$). During startup, the inlet sodium may be as low as $232^{\circ}C$ ($450^{\circ}F$). At no time during testing will the sodium in the loop be permitted to go below $177^{\circ}C$ ($350^{\circ}F$). During certain operations, the inlet temperature may be increased to $371^{\circ}C$ ($700^{\circ}F$).

The nominal mixed mean outlet temperature will be $593 \pm 10^{\circ}$ C (1100 ± 25° F). Hot tube outlet temperatures of 621° C (1150 $^{\circ}$ F) may be encountered on a steady basis. Peak metal temperatures may be as high as 28° C (50° F) above outlet temperatures. The maximum temperature difference between inlet and outlet to a panel shall not exceed 361° C (650° F). The minimum difference shall not be less than 111° C (200° F).

4.6.1 Temperature Mixing in Manifolds

The outlet manifolds will receive sodium at temperatures that will vary laterally by up to $111^{\circ}C$ ($200^{\circ}F$). The manifolds are required to accommodate such temperature variations.

4.6.2 <u>Temperature Difference in Adjacent Panels</u>

An outlet temperature difference of up to $111^{\circ}C$ (200°F) may exist between tubes in adjacent panels. The panel assembly design must accommodate such temperature differences.

4.7 SODIUM FLOW

ť

The sodium flow rate in the panel will be nominally 117 gpm with a maximum of 175 gpm.



NO . 004TI000008 PAGE . 10

2

4.7.1 Fluid Purity

The panel coolant fluid will be liquid sodium with a nominal oxide concentration of 10 ppm or less by weight.

4.8 PRESSURE IN LOOP

The maximum design pressure in the panel will be 100 psia. Operating pressure will be 30 psia.

4.9 CONSTRUCTION

The solar test panel will be made of three subpanels. Each subpanel shall consist of 21 tubes for a total width of 0.4 m. The length shall be adequate for a solar heated length of 3 m. Each subpanel shall be identical in design and construction. The subpanels shall be supported by a test fixture in a manner representative of a commercial receiver. Each panel shall be supported near the bottom and allowed to expand upward. The panel absorber surface shall have a curvature representative of that for a commercial-sized receiver.

4.9.1 Panel Tubes

The panel tubes will be round, have an OD of 3/4 in., have a nominal wall thickness of 0.049 \pm 0.003 in., and be constructed of 316H stainless steel.

4.9.2 Thermal Insulation and Barrier

The panel and structure will be able to resist the leakage of the maximum heat flux between tubes even with gaps as wide as one tube. The panel structure

A-12



will be protected from any direct heat flux and from excessive temperatures. The subpanel headers and nearby tubing shall be shielded from the collector field energy. These areas shall be insulated and heat-traced for preheating to a nominal temperature of $550^{\circ}F \pm 100^{\circ}F$. High-temperature insulation shall abut the edge tubes of the test article without causing significant shadowing of the edge tube. Backside heat loss from a subpanel shall not exceed 0.01 MWt.

4.9.3 Structural Integrity

The panel and its structure will retain its integrity, neither warping unduly nor opening up gaps through which heat flux can penetrate.

4.10 ENVIRONMENTAL

The seismic g's will be 0.50 in the horizontal direction.

The design wind velocity will be 4.5 m/s (10 mph). The maximum operating wind velocity will be 22 m/s (50 mph).

The maximum survival wind velocity will be 44 m/s (100 mph).

4.11 TRANSIENTS

ř

The panel will be capable of being started up and shut down once each day for the test period. At night, the panel will be drained and will reach ambient temperature.

4.11.1 Cooldown Transient

The panel shall be able to sustain ten cooldown incidents (no flow, no insolation) where the panel will lose temperature at the rate of 100° C/min (180° F/min).



4.11.2 Loss or Recovery of Insolation

The panel shall be able to sustain 40% loss or recovery of insolation events over a period of 10 sec at a rate of 55° F/sec.

4.12 INSTRUMENTATION

The panel shall be instrumented with thermocouples, deflection gauges, and heat flux sensors as shown on the sketch.

All instrumentation shall be accessible for inspection and repair with a minimum of disassembly of the panel or test fixture components. Particular attention should be given to the accessibility of the deflection sensors and flux gauges. Flux gauges may require water cooling (to be supplied by the CRTF). The cooling water may contain an anti-freeze additive. Selected thermocouples and flux gauges may be part of the panel control system. Thermocouples shall be mounted so as to minimize response time. Thermocouples used for panel control purposes shall be brazed in position. Panel instrumentation for control purposes may use any or all of the following:

- 1) Subpanel outlet temperature
- 2) Subpanel intermediate tube temperatures
- 3) Flux gauges
- 4) Subpanel inlet temperature.

4.13 PANEL CONTROL

Each panel shall be equipped with a flow control valve. The flow rate through each panel shall be controlled to maintain a constant mean outlet temperature within $\pm 25^{\circ}$ F. Both manual and automatic control modes are required. Automatic control shall be accomplished using process control equipment typical of that used by the utility industry. An alternative digital control system will be considered if necessary to meet test objectives. Manual override of the



*

ĩ

NO	•	004TI000008
PAGE		13





NO . 004TI000008 PAGE . 14

ŝ

automatic control systems is required. The control capability for automatic systems is desired to be 25-100% of the subpanel flow rate. All of the subpanels shall be capable of operating together to represent a single panel. The flow control shall also permit the maximum sodium flow (100 gpm) to go through any one of the subpanels. The insolation at such a time may range from zero to the normal amount for that subpanel (nominally 1.00 MWt).

5.0 INTERFACES

The panel will interface as follows:

- Sodium Loop. The test article will be attached to a special three-branched manifold tree assembly at both the inlet and outlet ends. These manifold trees will connect to the sodium loop piping at locations designated by the CRTF.
- 2) Panel instrumentation leads will terminate in the patch panel room of the CRTF elevating module. ESG instrumentation used for panel control must be also equipped with signal conditioning equipment. All measurements including those for control shall be supplied to the CRTF control room for recording.
- 3) The loop control system and the panel control system shall remain separate to the extent possible. The panel control system may require information from the loop flowmeter. The dump heat control may require the panel mixed mean out temperature from the panel thermocouples.
- 4) All utilities will be supplied by the CRTF. ESG must designate services required.
- 5) CRTF will supply solar energy according to the test plan.
- 6) ESG must supply data recording requirements and data display requirements to the CRTF.
- 7) The test article shall be bolted and/or welded to the main support columns of the loop. The location shall be compatible with the real time aperature flux (RTAF) system.



*

APPENDIX

REFERENCE PLANT AND RECEIVER

The ESG test panel is intended to provide a data base for commercial-type solar panels. A typical receiver is the one proposed for solar repowering of West Texas Utilities (WTU) Paint Creek Unit 4. In the following tables are plant and receiver data generated in the Paint Creek conceptual design study. These data may be useful in interpreting the requirements for the solar panel test.

**



TABLE 1	.E 1	TABL
---------	------	------

WTU PAINT CREEK 4 SOLAR REPOWERED PLANT DATA

Maximum Solar Power (MWe)	60
Tower Height m (ft)	154 (505)
Hours of Storage	4.0
Number of Heliostats	7882
Main Steam Temperature ^O C (^O F)	538 (1000)
Reheat Temperature ^O C (^O F)	538 (1000)
Steam Pressure MPa (psig)	12.4 (1800)

715-B.74

). Receiver Subsystem	ITEM	<u> </u>	WBS N		<u> </u>				
Receiver Subsystem	ITEN			0.	WBS NO.				
Receiver Subsystem		. U	DESIC	VALUE	TEN- TATIME	FIRM	REFERENCES AND REMARKS		
	1								
Nominal Thermal Po	ower	. MWt		145			•		
Maximum Thermal Po	wer	MWE		226			· ·		
Receiver Size and	Туре	m x (ft	m x ft)	14.0 x 15.4 (45.9 x 50.5)			External cylinder, 24 panels		
Receiver Temperatu	ire			•					
- In	¢	°C	(⁰ F)	288 (550)			· · ·		
- Out		°C	(^o F)	593 (1100)					
Flow Rate - Max Re	ceiver	Kg/ (16,	hr /hr)	2.08 x 10 ⁶ (4.59 x 10 ⁶)					
- Nom.		Kg/1 (1b,	hr /hr)	1.33 x 10 ⁶ (2.94 x 10 ⁶)					
Volume of Sodium i	n Subsystem	m ³	(ft ³)	204 (7230)			•		
Weight of Sodium i	n Subsystem	kg	(1bs)	174,000 (383,0	p)				
Total Radiation an	d Convection Loss	MWt,	/m ²	0.027	ł		Page		
Receiver Assembly							04		
Diameter	:	m (1	ft)	14.0 (45.9)			7 7 7 7		
lleight		m (1	ft)	15.4 (50.5)			00008		
	Maximum Thermal Po Receiver Size and Receiver Temperatu - In - Out Flow Rate - Max Re - Nom. Volume of Sodium i Weight of Sodium i Total Radiation an <u>Receiver Assembly</u> Diameter Height	Maximum Thermal Power Receiver Size and Type Receiver Temperature - In - Out Flow Rate - Max Receiver - Nom. Volume of Sodium in Subsystem Weight of Sodium in Subsystem Total Radiation and Convection Loss <u>Receiver Assembly</u> Diameter Height	Maximum Thermal PowerMWtReceiver Size and Typem x (ftReceiver Temperature In°C- Out°CFlow Rate - Max ReceiverKg/l (1b) - Nom.Volume of Sodium in Subsystemm³Weight of Sodium in Subsystemkg l Mt/Total Radiation and Convection LossMWt/Receiver AssemblyDiameterDiameterm (ft	Maximum Thermal PowerMWtReceiver Size and Typem x m (ft x ft)Receiver Temperature In°C (°F)- Out°C (°F)Flow Rate - Max ReceiverKg/hr (1b/hr)- Nom.Kg/hr (1b/hr)Volume of Sodium in Subsystemm³ (ft³)Weight of Sodium in Subsystemkg (1bs)Total Radiation and Convection LossMWt/m²Receiver Assemblym (ft)Diameterm (ft)	Maximum Thermal PowerMwt226Receiver Size and Type $m \times m$ (ft x ft)14.0 x 15.4 (45.9 x 50.5)Receiver Temperature $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F)288 (550)- In $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F)288 (550)- Out $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F)593 (1100)Flow Rate - Max ReceiverKg/hr (1b/hr)2.08 x 10^6 (4.59 x 10^6)- Nom.Kg/hr (1b/hr)1.33 x 10^6 (2.94 x 10^6)Volume of Sodium in Subsystemm³ (ft³)204 (7230)Weight of Sodium in Subsystemkg (1bs)174,000 (383,00)Total Radiation and Convection LossMWt/m²0.027Receiver Assembly Diameterm (ft)14.0 (45.9) m (ft)Heightm (ft)15.4 (50.5)	Maximum Thermal Power MWt 226 Receiver Size and Type $m \times m$ (ft x ft) 14.0 x 15.4 (45.9 x 50.5) Receiver Temperature $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F) 288 (550) - In $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F) 288 (550) - Out $^{\circ}$ C ($^{\circ}$ F) 593 (1100) Flow Rate - Max Receiver Kg/hr (1b/hr) 2.08 x 10 ⁶ (4.59 x 10 ⁶) - Nom. Kg/hr (1b/hr) 1.33 x 10 ⁶ (2.94 x 10 ⁶) Volume of Sodium in Subsystem m ³ (ft ³) 204 (7230) Weight of Sodium in Subsystem kg (1bs) 174,000 (383,000) Total Radiation and Convection Loss MWt/m ² 0.027 Receiver Assembly m (ft) 14.0 (45.9) Height m (ft) 15.4 (50.5)	Maximum Thermal PowerMWt226Receiver Size and Type $m \times m$ (ft x ft) 14.0×15.4 (45.9 x 50.5)Receiver Temperature $^{\circ}C$ ($^{\circ}F$)288 (550)- In $^{\circ}C$ ($^{\circ}F$)288 (550)- Out $^{\circ}C$ ($^{\circ}F$)593 (1100)Flow Rate - Max Receiver Kg/hr ($1b/hr$) 2.08×10^{6} (4.59×10^{6})- Nom. Kg/hr ($1b/hr$) 1.33×10^{6} (2.94×10^{6})Volume of Sodium in Subsystem m^{3} (ft 3)204 (7230)Weight of Sodium in Subsystemkg (1bs) $174,000$ (383,000)Total Radiation and Convection Loss MWt/m^2 0.027 Receiver Assembly Diameterm (ft) 14.0 (45.9) m (ft)Heightm (ft) 15.4 (50.5)		

.

ł

τ.

A-19

+ ,

*.€

1
PREPARED BY DESIGN DATA SHE			T TITLE WTU Solar Repowering Receiver Subsystem			NUMBER		
				was	NO.	•		PAGE
EW		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			SIGN POINT	1	1	DATE Hay 23, 1900
<u>.</u>	NU.			UNIT	VALUE	TATIVE	FIRM	REFERENCES AND REMARKS
		Receiver Assembly	- Continued					•
		Receiver Midpoint	Elevation	m (ft)	154 (505)			
		Receiver Maximum E	levation	m (ft)	219 (531)			•
		Number of Absorber	Panels		24			•
		Receiver Weight, D	ry					•
		Total		Kg (ton	s) 242,000 (266)			
		Total Sodium in Re	ceiver (Panels & Tạnks)	Kg (1b)	110,000 (242,0	(0)		
		Absorber Panel						
		lleight		m (ft)	15.4 (45.9)			
		Width		m (ft)	1.83 (6.0)			
		Dry Weight, Pressu	re Parts	Kg (1b)	1,350 (3,000)			:
		Number of Tubes			95			
		Tube OD		cm (in.) 1.91 (0.75)			
		Tube ID		cm (in.) 1.65 (0.65)			
		Tube Material			CRES 304H			
		Solar Surface Coat	ing		Pyromark			
	•	Panel Insulation		cm (in.	15.2 (6)			Closed-Pore Fiberglass

у а

•

al.

z #

,

> ა 5

1.5

2.0

.

.

PREPARED BY		DCkwell International Hay Systeme Group D BY	DESIGN DATA SHEET		TITLE WTU Solar Repowering				NUMBER
						Receiver Subsystem			PAGE ,
		······································		•	WBS NO.				DATE May 23, 1980
NEW REV	NO.		ITEM		DESI	GN POINT VALUE	TEN-	FIRM	REFERENCES AND REMARKS
		Absorber Panel - C	Continued						· ·
		Thermal Expansion		. cm	(in.)	12.1 (4.8)			Flexible Tube Bends
		Absorptivity, Mini	ANUM			0.95			
		Peak Heat Flux	ı	MW/ (Bt sec	"2 "" u/in ² - .)	1.23 (0.76)			
		Outlet Temperature	ł	°c	(⁰ F)	593 (1100)			
		Inlet Temperature		°c	(⁰ F)	288 (550)			
		Maxm1mum Tube Surf	ace Temperature	°c	(⁰ F)	649 (1200)			•
		Tower Assembly							
		Construction							Slip formed concrete
		Concrete Height		m (ft)	141.4 (464)	{		
		Diameter - Base) m (ft)	17.8 (58.4)			
		- Тор	•	m (ft)	14 (45.9)			Page
		Wall Thickness - B	ase	m (in.)	0.46 (11)			-0
		-т	ор	m (in.)	0.25 (8)			904TI
		Mat - OD		m (ft)	33.2 (108.9)			
		- ID	·	m (ft)	13.7 (44.9)			8008
		- Thickness		- m (ft)	3.0 (10)			

• •

۰.,

44

*,

17

APPENDIX B

ž

PRETEST CHECKOUT AND SODIUM LOADING PROCEDURE

PRETEST CHECKOUT

AND

SODIUM LOADING PROCEDURE

AUGUST 20, 1981

ŧ

- CONTENTS: A VALVE CHECKOUT
 - B ARGON SUPPLY SYSTEM
 - C DUMP HEAT EXCHANGER CHECKOUT
 - D TRACE HEATING CHECKOUT
 - E EVACUATE AND PURGE
 - F SODIUM FILL
 - G HOT SYSTEM CHECKOUT

APPROVALS

Kon Ball CRTF Test Engineer

aug 20 1481

ESG Test Engineer

John T. Holnes CRTF Operations/Safety Engineer

1/ Alto CRTF Supervisor

<u>, 21, 1981</u>

8/25/81

B-3

- A. Valve Checkout
 - A.1 Provide instrument air to the sodium loop at 100 ± 5 psig
 - A.2 Operate each of the following mannual valves through its full range, leaving each valve in the indicated position.

:

FILL VALVE	CLOSED
DRAIN TANK DRAIN VALVE	CLOSED
BYPASS VALVE	OPEN
PLUGGING VALVE	CLOSED
PLUGGING LOOP VENT VALVE	CLOSED

- A.3 Operate sodium drain valve (LCV 003) using the drain valve control switch. Verify valve operation and limit switch indication.
- A.4 Operate pressure equalization valve (PCV ØØ4) using the pressure equalization valve switch on the control console. Verify operation and limit switch indication.
- A.5 Operate panel "A" flow control valve (FCV 101) through its full operating range using Panel "A" Controller set in the manual mode. Verify valve operation, position indication at end points and midpoint, and limit switches and light at end points.
- A.6 Verify that panel "A" flow control valve (FCV 101) fails in the open position when either/or both electrical and pneumatic inputs are removed.
- A.7 Repeat steps A.5 and A.6 for panel "B" flow control valve (FCV 102).
- A.8 Repeat steps A.5 and A.6 for panel "C" flow control valve (FCV 103).
- A.9 Operate bypass flow control valve (FCV ØØ1) through its full operating range using the bypass flow control. Verify valve operation, position indication at end points and midpoint, and limit switches at end points.
- A.10 Repeat step A.9 with the plugging meter flow control valve (FCV 002).
- A.ll Connect regulatable gas source to the hand valve at surge tank rupture disc vent. Adjust at gas source to 1.5 ± 0.5 psig. Open the hand valve. Verify that PSH066 activates the annunciator and open vent valve PCV066. Reset PSH066 if necessary.

- A.12 Repeat step A.11 for the drain tank rupture disc vent for operations of PSH067 and PCV067.
- B. Argon Supply System
 - B.1 Connect a nitrogen cylinder with regulator to the Argon supply inlet. Set the regulator to 48 psig.
 - B.2 Close pressure equalization valve (PCV 004). Close drain valve (LCV 003).
 - B.3 Using the console controls, set cover gas supply pressure to 45 psig on both surge and drain tanks.
 - B.4 Adjust the low pressure switch of PS046, surge tank cover gas Hi-lo pressure alarm switch, to activate the annunciator at approximately 1 psig.
 - B.5 Raise the pressure of the surge tank to 45 psig using the pressure set point controls on the console.
 - B.6 Adjust the high pressure contact of PSØ46 to activate the annunciator at approximately 45 psig.
 - B.7 Repeat step B.4 for PSØ63 and the drain tank pressure.
 - B.8 Raise the drain tank pressure to 45 psig.
 - B.9 Adjust PSØ63 high pressure contact.
 - B.10 Lower surge tank pressure to 30 psig using console controls. Read this pressure at manifold pressure inlet, outlet (PT 35, 36) and at EM pump inlet and outlet (PT 77, 78).
 - B.11 With drain tank pressure still set at 45 psig and surge tank pressure set at 30 psig, open pressure equalization valve. Observe that drain tank supply valve (PCV 006) is inoperative, that surge tank vent valve (PCV 007) vents, and drain tank pressure drops to 30 psig.
 - B.12 Reduce system pressure, remove nitrogen supply, and reconnect Argon line.
- C. Dump Heat Exchanger Checkout

z

- C.l Verify that control air is connected to DHX door operator.
- C.2 Adjust air pressure to 60 psig.

- C.3 Operate DHX doors using heat dump door operator switch Verify door operation and limit switch lights.
- C.4 Operate DHX louvers using heat dump louver control from full close to full open. Verify louver operations and record travel time.

۰.

5

- C.5 Adjust louvers and DHX doors to full open. Switch heat dump control to LOCAL.
- C.6 Operate DHX fan No. 1 over its full range of operating speed using the console control.
- C.7 Repeat step C.6 for DHX fan No. 2.
- C.8 With both fans operating, depress emergency shutdown switch on the console. Observe both fans stop and the DHX doors close.
- D. Trace Heating Checkout
 - D.1 Verify data logger sensor input complete per Table I. Refer to Figures 1, 2, 3, and 4 for color grouping. Verify that DHX doors and louvers are closed.
 - D.2 Verify all trace heater control switches off.
 - D.3 For each of the following switches, activate switch, increase voltage to 40 VAC, monitor the associated thermocouples and observe a temperature rise of approximately 20°F, switch circuit off.

SWITCH	THERMOCOUPLES	DATA LOGGER CHANNEL
S1 S2 S3 S4 S5	9A, B; 1Ø, 11, 12 19, 138, 136A, B, C 13, 14, 15, 17, 18, 2Ø, 21	5-5,5-6,5-7,5-8,5-9 5-10,6-1,6-2,6-3,6-4 2-1,2-2,2-3,2-4 10-8,10-9 6-5,6-6,6-7
55	127A, B, C	6-8-6-9-6-10
s7	125A, B, C	7-1,7-2,7-3
S8	126A, B, C	7-4,7-5,7-6
S9	77	4-7
S1Ø	Spare	Spare
S11	51, 52A, B; 53, 55	1-5,1-6,1-7,1-8,1-9
S12	Spare	Spare
S13	128A, B, C; 135A, B, C, 139	7-7,7-8,7-9,7-10,8-1 8-2,8-3
S14	140, 141, 39, 40, 41	8-4,8-5,8-6,8-7,8-8
S15	1, 2, 3	8-9,8-10,9-1
S16	4, 5, 6, 7A, B; 8A, B	9-2,9-3,9-4,9-5,9-6, 9-7,9-8
S17	ST 1, 2, 3, 4	2-3, 2-4, 2-5, 2-6
S18	ST 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 13 14	2-7,2-8,2-9,2-10,3-1, 3-2,3-3,3-4,
S19 ·	ST 11,12	3-5,3-6

B-6

SWITCH	THERMOCOUPLES	DATA LOGGER CHANNEL
S2Ø	69 , 72	4-4,4-5
SZ1	20	4-0
S22	65A, B; 66A, B; 68A, B; 70	3-2,3-3,3-4,3-5,3-6 3-7,3-8
S23	67A, B	3-9,3-10
S24	71	4-1
S25	25, 54	4-2,4-3
S26	61	2–7
S27	DT 1, 2	1-1,1-2
S28	DT 11, 12	2-1,2-2
S29	DT 3, 4, 5, 6	1-3,1-4,1-5,1-6
S3Ø	DT 7, 8, 9, 10	1-7,1-8,1-9,1-10
S31	42, 43, 44, 45	9-9,9-10,10-1,10-2
S32	46, 47, 48, 49A, B	10-3,10-4,10-5,10-6,10-7
S33	28, 29, 30, 31	2-3,2-4,2-5,2-6
S34	56, 57, 60	1-1,2-1,2-2
S35	26A, B; 27A, B	2-8,2-9,2-10,3-1
S36	HX 1 THRU 18	3-7 to 3-10, 4-1 to

E. Evacuate and Purge

*

E.1 Install blanket heater over receiver panel.

- E.2 Attach vacuum pump to sodium loop. Start pump.
- E.3 Activate all heater circuits at 40 VAC, monitor equilibrium temperatures in each heated circuit. Readjust each voltage to reach a uniform temperature of 400°F. Record equilibrium temperature and reguired voltage on each circuit.
- E.4 Readjust heater circuits to attain a uniform temperature of 700° F, except for the receiver panel. Record the required voltage on each circuit.

E.5 After 24 hours of pumping, shut off vacuum pump.

E.6 Close the following valves:

Pressure equalization valve (PCV 003) Bypass loop flow valve (FCV 001) Plugging loop flow valve (FCV 002) Panel flow valves (FCV 101, 102, 103) Bypass valve Plugging valve Plugging loop vent valve Fill valve Drain tank drain valve

E.7 Open the drain valve (LCV 003)

E.8 Set drain tank cover gas to 10 psig. Set surge tank cover gas to 2 psig.

- E.9 When pressure at PT077 reaches 10 psig, open plugging loop flow valve (FCV 002). Keep valve open until gas begins to vent from PCV 007, then close valve.
- E.10 Open bypass loop flow valve (FCV 001) and panel flow control valve (FCV 101). Allow gas to vent from PCV 007 for 30 seconds, then shut off FCV 101.
- E.11 Open panel flow control valve (FCV 102) for 30 seconds, then close and open FCV 103 for 30 seconds, then close.

•

- E.12 Open pressure equalization valve (PCV 004).
- E.13 Adjust voltages of each circuit to attain best equilibrium system temperature of approximately 400°F.
- F. Sodium Fill

SAFETY NOTE

- All personnel involved in the sodium fill shall be provided with and shall wear the following:
 - A. Fire resistant coveralls
 - B. Leather shoes
 - C. PVC gauntlet gloves
 - D. Hard hat with full face shield
 - E. Jones or chemical goggles

In addition, two 35 lb. NaX portable fire extinguishers will be present.

- F.1 Close all sodium valves (FCV 001, FCV 002, LCV 003, and PCV 004).
- F.2 Prepare sodium melt station by placing barrel heater in catch pan.
- F.3 Adjust drain tank supply pressure to 1 psig and vent pressure to 1.5 psig.
- F.4 Attach transfer lines to sodium fill valve, provide minimum purge to atmosphere.
- F.5 Attach transfer to bottom barrel bung. Attach temporary TC to bottom of barrel.
- F.6 Place barrel heater on barrel.
- F.7 Attach bottled gaseous argon to top small bung.
- F.8 Attach pressure gage and relief valve manifold to top large bung.

F.9 Preheat transfer line to 400° F.

F.10 Preheat sodium fill line to 400° F.

F.ll Preheat sodium barrel to 400° F.

- F.12 Open barrel sodium transfer vlave.
- F.13 Open sodium fill valve.
- F.14 Transfer sodium from barrel to drain tank using 3 psig (maximum) pressure in barrel.
- F.15 Monitor inventory in drain tank with drain tank level probe (LE61).
- F.16 When transfer is complete, drain tank pressure will rise.
- F.17 Close barrel sodium transfer vlave.
- F.18 Close sodium fill valve.
- F.19 Allow barrel and transfer line to cool to $150^{\circ}F$.
- F.20 Remove transfer fittings from barrel and replace standard bungs. Replace empty barrel with full barrel.
- F.21 Repeat steps F.4 through F.20 until approximately 205 gallons of sodium is loaded into the drain tank.
- G. Hot System Fill Checkout

SAFETY NOTE

Personnel required to enter the test loop to monitor operations shall wear the following:

- A. Fire resistant coveralls
- B. Leather shoes
- C. Hard hat with full face shield.
- G.1 This checkout procedure requires use of the thermal blanket covering the test panels to heat and maintain the panel tubes in the solar window area at approximately 400° F.
- G.2 Monitor all data logger channels to verify 400°F system temperature.

G.3 Establish following valve positions:

Bypass loop flow control FCV 001

open

Plugging loop flow control FCV 002	open
Panel flow control FCV 101	open
Panel flow control FCV 102	open
Panel flow control FCV 103	open
Pressure equalization PCV ØØ4	closed
Bypass valve	open
Plugging valve	open

- G.4 Adjust surge tank cover gas pressure to 5 psig (vent pressure to 5.5 psig).
- G.5 Open drain valve LCV 003.
- G.6 Adjust drain tank cover gas pressure to 20 psig to fill loop (set vent pressure to approximately 20.5 psig).
- G.7 Increase the drain tank cover gas pressure until the sodium level in the surge tank activates the high sodium level alarm. Increase drain tank vent pressure setting as necessary.

<u>CAUTION</u>: Note level indication and approach high sodium level slowly to prevent overflowing sodium into vent lines.

- G.8 Close the drain valve LCV 003 to complete the transfer.
- G.9 Reduce drain tank cover gas pressure to 5.0 psig and vent pressure to 5.5 psig.
- G.10 Close bypass valve, plugging valve, and bypass flow control valve (FCV 001). Open the pressure equilization valve. Close panel valves.
- G.11 Calibrate the main flow meter (FE058) by opening the drain valve (LCV 003) and measuring the time required to drain between the high level and low level probes in the surge tank.
- G.12 Close the drain valve to stop the drain. Close the pressure equalization valve.
- G.13 Repeat steps G5 to G9 to return sodium to the surge tank.
- G.14 Set surge tank pressure to 10 psig, open drain valve, and again measure flow and time surge tank level change.

G.15 Refill surge tank per steps G5 - G9.

G.16 Set surge tank pressure to 30 psig and again measure flow and time surge tank level change.

- G.17 Refill surge tank to 60% level.
- G.18 Open bypass loop flow valve (FCV 001) and panel control valve (FCV 101).
- G.19 Start EM pump. Use manual control to increase flow in 5 gpm increments to 130 gpm. Record flow indications of the main flow meter (FE 058) and the panel flow meter (FE 101) and record the associated temperatures TC 101, TC 73. Close panel valve.
- G.20 Repeat step G.19 for FE 102.
- G.21 Repeat step G.19 for FE 103.
- G.22 Open FCV 101, 102, 103
- G.23 Adjust the I/P on FCV 101,102, 103 to obtain approximately 10 gpm minimum flow.
- G.24 Depress emergency shutdown button on console. Observe EM pump stop, equalization and drain valves open. Time the return of sodium to the drain tank by observing level indication.



APPENDIX C

÷

INTEGRATED TEST PROCEDURE FOR CRTF/ESG SODIUM-COOLED SOLAR RECEIVER TESTING

INTEGRATED TEST PROCEDURE

FOR

CRTF/ESG SODIUM COOLED SOLAR RECEIVER TESTING

AUGUST 20, 1981

APPROVALS

2

 \mathcal{O}

m Boul

CRTF TEST ENGINEER

ESG TEST ENGINEER

CRTF OPERATIONS/SAFETY ENGINEER

. .

ъ.,

F 160 CRTF SUPERVISOR

<u>/0-28-81</u> DATE

 $\frac{\frac{10}{2} + \frac{9}{81}}{\frac{10}{2} + \frac{9}{81}}$

11/2/81

DATE

CONTENTS

- 1. Pretest Information
- 2. Safety Checklist
- 3. Test Description
 - 3.1 Low Power
 - 3.2 Isothermal
 - 3.3 Intermediate Power
 - 3.4 Design Power
 - 3.5 High Power
- 4. Startup Procedures
 - 4.1 Panel Preheat
 - 4.2 Sodium Fill
 - 4.3 Sodium Flow
- 5. Test Procedures
 - 5.1 Low Power
 - 5.2 Iosthermal
 - 5.3 Intermediate Power
 - 5.4 Intermediate Power And Flow Step
 - 5.5 Design Power
 - 5.6 Design Power And Flow Step
 - 5.7 Design Power Skewed Flux
 - 5.8 Design Power Open Loop
 - 5.9 High Power
 - 5.10 High Power High Temperature
- 6. Shutdown Procedures
 - 6.1 Normal Shutdown
 - 6.2 Emergency Shutdown
- 7. Sodium Leak Recovery

1. PRETEST INFORMATION

The test program for the ESG sodium cooled solar receiver panel is comprised of nine tests designed to meet the following goals:

1) demonstrate satisfactory panel operations at design heat flux and temperature

2) achieve a maximum number of diurnal thermal cycles

- 3) demonstrate satisfactory diurnal startup and shutdown
- 4) demonstrate satisfactory nocturnal thermal control

5) demonstrate control during insolation changes

6) control several panels in parallel

7) demonstrate panel dimensional stability

- 8) achieve representative lateral power distribution
- 9) demonstrate acceptable panel thermal losses

10) accommodate various simulated emergency condtions

OPERATING PERSONN	EL
-------------------	----

.

CREW "A"

CREW "B"

•		
CRTF Test Conductor	Ken Bell	Larry Seamons
ESG Test Conductor	Dick Johnson	
Loop Operator	Tim George	Jim Clark
Panel Operator	Greg Poucher	
Console Operator	Bill McAtee	Tim George Debee Risvold
Field Monitor	Paul Flora	B. O. Ellis
SUPPORT PERSONNEL	PRIMARY	BACKUP
Operations/Safety	John Holmes	John Otts
Instrumentation	Milt,Stomp	
Software	Debee Risvold	

2. CRTF/ESG SAFETY CHECKLIST

Test ID	Date
Test Title	
Tower Occupants	
Communications established	
Personnel location verified	
 Safety equipment in place PVC protective gloves Fire retardent coveralls Hard hats with full face shields NaX (class D) fire extinguishers Scott air packs at 287 level Dry sodium carbonate, shovels Emergency air packs at 287 level and control room 	
Water cleared from drip pans, drain plugs in ed	stall-
"Test In Progress" light ON	
Non-test personnel cleared from area or in secure location	
Generator ON (Frequency check Load)	
Field monitor in place for startup 1. Communications established 2. Gates closed, red lights on at tower road gates 3. Field clear	
9981 Control room locked	
Command to beam UP heliostats to far standby shall be given only after above checklist is completed by O/S Engineer	
Heliostat and sodium systems returned to saf configurations at termination of testing	e

.

ĩ

3. TEST DESCRIPTION

3.1 Low Power Testing

The purpose of testing the sodium-cooled solar receiver (SCSR) panel at lower power (0.8 MWt) is to demonstrate the operability of the sodium loop system and determine the characteristics of the system. Methods of operation during this testing phase include both manual and automatic control. The system is to be routinely operated, (1) to demonstrate the use of solar preheat prior to filling, (2) to selectively utilize the heliostat field, building up a normal flux distribution on the panel to achieve the desired power level, and (3) to perform a series of tests which verify the characteristics of the system.

To demonstrate the operability and stability of the receiver, the system will be switched to and from automatic control while operating at steady state. The effectiveness of emergency shutdown and system response will be determined by initiating at least one of each of the following emergency shutdowns, (1) heliostat scram, (b) loss of sodium flow scram, (c) dump valve scram, and (d) loss of DHX blower scram.

3.2 Isothermal Testing

The purpose of performing isothermal testing of the SCSR system is to determine the conductive and convective heat losses which result when subjecting the unheated solar panels to different environments. A minimum of two tests will be conducted, one during a no-wind condition and the second during an intermediate wind condition.

Solar preheat of the panel is required to fill the loop with sodium and assist heating as the loop temperature is increased to 700° F. Sodium flow is to be maintained at 115 gpm during each test. When desired sodium flow and temperature conditions are achieved, solar heat and trace heat are terminated and then thermal decay characteristics will be determined.

3.3 Intermediate Power Testing

 \mathcal{O}

The purpose of performing intermediate power tests (1.7 MWt) on the SCSR receiver panel is to (a) demonstrate the operation of the system while developing a temperature differential of 370 and 550°F across the receiver panel, (b) determine the effects on the system resulting from the introduction of either a power step by means of increasing or decreasing the heliostat field or a flow step by means of increasing or decreasing sodium flow through the receiver panel. The tests to be performed in the intermediate power test series include:

C-7

- 1) Demonstrate stable steady-state operation of the receiver panel with a power input of 1.7 MWt. The loop is to be operated with 115 gpm total flow through the panels producing a sodium temperature increase of 370° F (550 to 920° F). Both manual and automatic operation is required.
- 2) Demonstrate stable steady-state operation of the receiver panel with a power input of 1.7 MWt using a total flow of 78 gpm to develop 1100°F outlet temperatures. Both manual and automatic operation is required.
- 3) A series of power and flow step tests are to be performed to provide additional data on transient operating characteristics while operating at 1.7 MWt with a normal flux distribution. A total of two power step tests will be performed by initiating a -15 and -25% power change from steady state 1.7 MWt. After allowing the system to stabilize at the lower flow conditions, the respective positive power change is applied to the panels, returning to the original flow. The flow step tests, two each, are conducted in the same manner by increasing the flow to establish a new (lower) temperature across the receiver panel.

3.4 Design Power Testing

The purpose of performing design power tests (2.5 MWt) on the SCSR receiver panel is to (a) demonstrate the stability of the test article operating at design power conditions, (b) determine the effects on the system resulting from a series of power steps ranging from 10 to 50%, (c) determine the effect on the system resulting from redistribution of the incident flux on the receiver panel, and (e) demonstrate system response to emergency shutdown.

The tests to be performed in the design power test series include:

- 1) Demonstrate stable steady-state operation of the receiver panel and system at a power input of 2.5 MWt. The loop is to operate at a total flow through the panels of 115 gpm, producing an overall sodium temperature increase of 550° F (550 to 1100° F). Both automatic and manual control of the receiver panel and DHX is required. During these tests, bumpless transfer of panel control sensors is to be demonstrated, i.e., flux sensor to thermocouple.
- 2) A series of power step tests are to be performed, either allowing natural cloud passage to produce the power transient or preprogrammed heliostat removal and replacement to produce the power transient. The power transient tests are to be initiated from a steady-state power level of 2.5 MWt with system conditions as described in 1)

above. The magnitude of power steps is to range from 10% to 50%. During these tests, the system response to both both the negative and positive steps will be made to assure component temperature limitations are not exceeded.

- 3) Flow step tests will be intiated from steady-state conditions described above by either decreasing or increasing sodium flow from the nominal 115 gpm value. After equilibrium conditions are established, the system is returned to its pretest condition, during which the response of the system is determined. At least one of the intermediate flow step tests is to be repeated, where the flow ramp cycle is closely coupled.
- 4) The receiver will be operated at steady state with a skewed flux distribution. The loop is to operate at a total flow through the panels at 115 gpm, producing an overall sodium temperature increase of $550^{\circ}F$ (500 to $1100^{\circ}F$).
- 5) The open loop tests are initiated from a steady-state power level of 2.0 MWt at a total flow of 115 gpm by increasing the power in 10% steps (0.2 MWt) until a total power of 2.5 MWt is achieved. A minimum of three tests are required to establish sufficient data on the thermal characteristics of the system.
 - 6) Additional operating experience is to be obtained by performing emergency shutdowns. These tests are to be initiated at the completion of a day's run and are to include:
 - a) Heliostat scram
 - b) Loss of sodium flow scram
 - c) Dump valve scram

3.5 High Power Testing

. •

ž

 \mathcal{O}

The purpose of performing tests on the receiver panels in excess of design power is to demonstrate that the panels and DHX can be safely operated at thermal power levels up to 20% greater than design.

The tests to be performed in the high power test series includes:

1) Demonstrate stable steady-state operation of the receiver panel and system with the full field of heliostats on target (3.0 MWt). The loop is to operate at a total flow of 140 gpm, producing an overall sodium temperature increase of $550^{\circ}F$ (550 to $1100^{\circ}F$). Both automatic and manual control of the receiver panel and DHX is required. Transient resonse is to be investigated. During these transients, the magnitude of the power step will be guided by the system recovery response i.e., feedback oscillation during power step recovery, so that test limits are not exceeded.

2) The higher temperature characteristics of the panel will be investigated. During this test the overall temperature differential across the receiver panels will be increased to $600^{\circ}F \Delta T$ while maintaining a steady state flow of 125 gpm.

TABLE I

HELIOSTAT GROUP ASSIGNMENTS

Å

y

ž

•

Ř

 \mathcal{O}

		HELIOSTAT		
GROUP NO.	HELIOSTAT NO.	LOCATION	AIM POINT	
1	100	NIIWL	3	
WARMUP	101	N1 1W2	3	
· · ·	102	N11W3	3	
	283	Nllel	3	
	284	N11E2	3	
	285	N11E3	3	
LOW POWER	1990 - مان الحاد الجارية عن الجرابية عن الجرابية عن الحادية الحادية الحربية عن الجرابية عن الحربية الم		برای جرو هو برای جود ها برای ایند.	
	0.0	NT (16.7]	· 1	
2	88	NIUNI DUD	⊥ 2	
	89	NI WWZ	5	
	90	NIDWS	5	
	92	NIOW4	7	
	102	NI WA	3	
	103	NI IWS	2	
	104	NI 2WI	2	
	271	NIØFI	2	
	271	NIØE2	1	
	272	NIØE3	4	
•	273	NIØE4	5	
• .	275	N1ØE5	3	
	286	N11E4	3	
	287	N11E5	3	
	297	N12E1	3	
3	77	N9W1	5	
	78	N9W2	4	
	79	N9W3	2	
	8Ø	N9W4	1	
	115	N12W2	3	
	116	N12W3	3	
	117	N12W4	3	
	128	N1 3W1	3	
	26Ø	N9E1	4	
	261	N9E2	5	
	262	N9E3	Ţ	
	263	N9E4	2	
	298	NI 2E2	3	
	299	NIZE3	3	
	300	NIZE4	<u>ځ</u>	
	< ()	NESEL	۲.	

C-11

4	58	N7W1	5
-	67	N8W1	1
	68	N8W2	2
	69	N8W3	5
	81	N9W5	5
	129	N13W2	3
	241	N7E1	4
	25Ø	N8E1	2
	251	N8E2	1
	252	N8E3	4
	264	N9E5	4
	312	N1 3E2	3
NTERMEDIATE			

INTERMEDIATE POWER

5	7Ø	N8W4	4
	71	N8W5	· 1
	82	N9W6	4
	83	N9W7	2
	93	N1ØW6	3
	94	N10W7	3
	95	NlØW8	3
	105	N11W6	3
	253	N8E4	5
	254	N8E5	2
	265	N9E6	5
	266	N9E7	1
	276	N1ØE6	3
	277	NlØE7	3
	278	NLØE8	3
	288	N11E6	3
C	50	NT7647	Α
O	59	N7W2	4
	00	N7W3	2
	01 70	N / W4	1
	12	NOWO	2
	107		3
	107		2
	100	NT 1W3	2
	242	NT752	5
	242	N753	1
	243	N7E3 N7E4	2
	244	NARE	2
	233	10110	3
	209	NI IES	2
	290 201	NI I FO	2
	291		3

ž

`

* *

¥

-

.

÷

8

ŝ

DESIGN
POWER

4

9

49 50 51 62 118 119 120 121 232 233 234 245 301 302 303 304	N6W1 N6W2 N6W3 N7W5 N12W5 N12W6 N12W7 N12W8 N6E1 N6E2 N6E3 N7E5 N12E5 N12E5 N12E6 N12E7 N12E8	1 2 5 3 3 3 3 2 1 4 4 3 3 3 3 3
39 40 41 42 52 122 123 130 222 223 224 225 235 305 306 313	N5W1 N5W2 N5W3 N5W4 N6W4 N1 2W9 N12W1Ø N13W3 N5E1 N5E2 N5E3 N5E4 N6E4 N1 2E9 N12E1Ø N1 3E3	5 4 2 1 4 3 3 4 5 1 2 5 3 3 3 3 3
73 74 84 85 96 97 110 111 256 257 267 267 268 279 280 293 294	N8W7 N8W8 N9W8 N9W9 N1ØW9 N1ØW1Ø N11W11 N11W12 N8E7 N8E8 N9E8 N9E8 N9E8 N9E9 N1ØE1Ø N1ØE1Ø N11E11 N11E12	5 4 1 5 3 3 3 4 5 2 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

12

53 54 63 64 124 125 131 132 236 237 246 247 307	N6W5 N6W6 N7W6 N7W7 N1 2W1 1 N1 2W1 2 N1 3W4 N1 3W5 N6E5 N6E6 N7E6 N7E7 N1 2E1 1	1 2 4 2 3 3 3 2 1 5 1 3
308 314 315	N1 2E1 2 N1 3E4 N1 3E5	3 3 3
43 44 75 86 133 134 135 136 226 227 258 269 316 317 318 319	N5W5 N5W6 N8W9 N9W10 N1 3W6 N1 3W7 N1 3W8 N1 3W9 N5E5 N5E6 N8E9 N9E10 N1 3E6 N1 3E7 N1 3E8 N1 3E9	5 4 2 4 3 3 3 4 5 1 5 3 3 3 3 3 3
28 29 55 65 142 143 144 145 211 212 238 248 325 326 327 328	N4W1 N4W2 N6W7 N7W8 N14W1 N14W2 N14W3 N14W3 N14W4 N4E1 N4E2 N6E7 N7E8 N14E1 N14E2 N14E2 N14E3 N14E3 N14E4	1 2 5 1 3 3 3 3 2 1 4 2 3 3 3 3 3 3

٧.

HIGH POWER

.

÷

O

13	45 56 66 76 87 98 99 112 228 239 249 259 270 281 282 295	N5W7 N6W8 N7W9 N8W10 N9W11 N10W11 N10W12 N11W13 N5E7 N6E8 N7E9 N8E10 N9E11 N10E11 N10E12 N11E13	2 4 5 1 3 3 3 1 5 4 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
14	30 46 113 126 127 137 138 213 229 296 309 310 320 321	N4W3 N5W8 N11W14 N12W13 N12W14 N13W10 N13W11 N4E3 N5E8 N11E14 N12E13 N12E14 N13E10 N13E11	4 1 3 3 3 3 3 5 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
15	31 32 139 140 141 146 147 214 215 322 323 324 329 330	N4W4 N4W5 N13W12 N13W13 N13W14 N14W5 N14W6 N4E4 N4E5 N13E12 N13E13 N13E14 N14E5 N14E6	5 1 3 3 3 3 4 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

C-15

4. STARTUP PROCEDURES

4.1 Panel Preheat

4.2

••

1.	Activate all trace heat circuits. Monitor data logger and adjust individual heaters until all thermocouples read $400^{\circ}F \pm 50$.	
2.	Activate/verify CRTF data acquisition system.	
3.	Verify 3 gpm cooling water flow to flux sensors.	• •• •• •• •• •• • •
4.	Set warmup-run switch to warmup position.	
5.	Verify heliostat scram circuits.	
6.	Complete safety checklist.	
7.	Bring all heliostats to standby.	
8.	Adjust low delta-T scram set point on panels A, B, and C to zero.	
9.	Bring warmup group heliostats to target.	
10.	Monitor all panel temperatures to verify tempera- ture increase to 400 ⁰ F minimum.	<u>-</u> -
11.	Adjust warmup heliostats as necessary.	
Sod	lium Fill Procedure	
1.	Verify sodium in drain tank 400 ⁰ F minimum.	. <u></u>
2.	Verify argon gas supply at 45 psig.	
3.	Close pressure equalization valve (PCV 004).	
4.	Pressurize drain tank to 20 psig.	·
5.	Open drain valve LCV 003 to initiate fill.	
6.	Monitor sodium transfer on drain tank level indicator. Vent surge tank as needed.	
7.	As sodium enters the surge tank, monitor sodium level on the surge tank, level indicator.	
8.	Verify surge tank low level indicator switch clears.	

1

4

9.	Fill surge tank to 50% capacity.	
10.	Close drain valve when fill is complete.	
11.	Adjust drain tank cover gas pressure set point to 5 psig.	<u></u>
12.	Open pressure equalization line valve (PCV 004).	
4.3 Soc	lium Flow Procedure	
1.	Set EM pump control to manual.	
2.	Set panel control valves (FCV 101, 102, 103) to manual.	
3.	Turn EM pump switch on.	
4.	Adjust pump voltage in 10% steps to obtain 125 gpm. At each step monitor:	
	 a) Pump duct temperature b) Pump winding temperature c) SCSR manifold inlet/outlet pressure d) SCSR manifold differential pressure e) Pump inlet/outlet pressure f) Pump voltage g) Loop main flow 	
5.	Turn on EM pump blower as required to maintain less than 300 ⁰ F duct and winding temperature.	
6.	Manually adjust FCV 101, 102, and 103 (equally) to obtain a total flow of 115 gpm through panels.	
7.	Set warmup-run switch to run.	
8.	Request CRTF operator to place on target the helio- stats required for operation. Select number of heliostats according to test from Table I.	
9.	As the panel outlet temperatures increase above 550° F, open DHX doors.	
10.	Deactivate trace heating except for drain tank.	
11.	Adjust DHX outlet temperature to 550 ⁰ F. Maintain 550 ⁰ F by adjusting DHX fans.	
12.	When the required number of heliostats are on target, adjust DHX outlet setpoint to 550 ⁰ F, switch DHX control to automatic.	

¥,

Ť

•:

Ľ

 \odot

- Adjust panel flow control valves (FCV 101, 102, 103) to obtain required test temperature.
- 14. When equilibrium conditions are established, slowly increase set point of Panels, A, B, and C flow controllers to obtain required test temperature.
- 15. Switch Panels A, B, and C flow controller to automatic.

۴.

5. TEST PROCEDURES

*

 \mathcal{O}

- 5.1 Low Power Operability Test
 - Initiate receiver panel preheat per procedure 4.1. 1. Initiate sodium fill per procedure 4.2. 2. 3. Establish 115-gpm sodium flow in loop per procedure 4.3. Maintain manual control of panel and DHX. 4. 5. Initiate power increase to 0.8 MWt per procedure 4.3 maintaining normal flux distribution on panel. 6. At equilibrium conditions, 550°F inlet and 735°F outlet, initiate steady-state transfer from manual to automatic control tests for the receiver panel flow control and DHX temperature control. 7. Return receiver panel and DHX control to manual. 8. Repeat steps 6 and 7 ten times to complete operability test. EMERGENCY SYSTEM CHECKS Depress heliostat slew button on control console. 9. 10. Return heliostats to target, reestablish equilibrium conditions. Stop EM pump. Observe flow rate decline to zero. 11. Heliostats should scram off target. If scram does not occur within 5 seconds after flow reaches zero, manually give heliostat scram. 12. Return heliostats to target, reestablish equilibrium conditions. 13. Set panel high temperature scram setpoint below 735°F. 14. Return heliostats to target, reestablish equilibrium conditions. Momentarily open drain valve (LCV 003). Observe 15. heliostat scram. 16. If sodium remains above low level alarm in surge

6. It sodium remains above low level alarm in surge tank, return heliostats to target, reestablish equilibrium conditions. If low sodium alarm is

activated, go directly to step 17 without returning heliostats.

- 17. End test by depressing emergency shutdown button on console.
- Return loop to standby condition per procedure
 6.2.
- 5.2 Isothermal Test
 - Initiate solar preheat on receiver per procedure
 4.1, measure wind speed. Test should be done during calm conditions. 0-5 mph wind speed.
 - 2. Initiate sodium fill per procedure 4.2.
 - 3. Establish 115-gpm sodium flow per procedure 4.3.
 - 4. Increase solar input to panel in small increments to approach 800°F loop temperature.

2

- 5. When uniform loop temperatures of 800^OF, request heliostats be moved to far standby position.
- 6. Monitor flow rate and panel inlet and outlet temperatures to determine heat loss characteris-tics.
- 7. When loop temperature falls to 400° F, return heliostats to bring loop temperatures back to 800° F.
- 8. Readjust flow rate to 65 gpm, remove heliostats.
- 9. Again monitor flow rate, inlet and outlet temperatures to determine panel heat loss characteristics.
- 10. When lowest panel temperature reaches 400°F, initiate system shutdown per procedure 6.1.
- 11. Repeat this test at a time when winds are moderate (10-15 mph).
- 5.3 Intermediate Power Operability Test
 - 1. Initiate receiver panel preheat per procedure 4.1.
 - 2. Initiate sodium fill per procedure 4.2.
 - 3. Establish 115-gpm sodium flow in loop per procedure 4.3.

- 4. Maintain manual control of panel and DHX.
- 5. Initiate power increase to 1.7 MWt per procedure 4.3 maintaining normal flux distribution.
- 6. Adjust sodium flow to achieve 370°F temperature differential across the receiver panel.
- 7. Initiate test to demonstrate system stability by transferring panel and DHX control from manual to automatic control.
 - a) Adjust set point of TIC 101 approximately 5% high and switch to AUTO, verify decrease of flow in Panel A, increase in Panel A △T.
 Manually adjust flow in Panels B and C to maintain system within test limits, maintain DHX to a manual set point of 550°F. Return manual and auto set points to original setting and allow system to stabilize.
 - b) Repeat Step 6.a with TIC 102 and 103, manually adjusting flow in Panels A and C and A and B to maintain system within test limits.
 - c) Adjust set points of TIC 101, 102, 103 for bumpless transfer to automatic control. Set DHX TIC to automatic control. Adjust TIC 101, 102, and 103 to establish a 410°F Δ T across the receiver panel. During the transition, monitor the DHX fan speed and control to assure outlet temperature of 550°F.
- 8. Decrease sodium flow to approximately 80 gpm to establish a 550°F temperature differential across the receiver panel. Repeat steps 7 a, b, and c.
- 9. Shutdown system per procedure 6.1.
- 5.4 Intermediate Power, Power Step and Flow Ramp Tests
 - 1. Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2, and 4.3.
 - 2. Initiate power ramp tests. Set up initial system conditions:

Sodium flow (FCV 101, 102, 10360% Open)115 gpmSodium inlet...Sodium outlet920°F..Total power input1.7 MWt.Flux distributionNormalDHX controlAutoPanel ABC controlAuto

5.	Preselect required heliostats which at time of test produce 0.255 MWt power, 15% of total.	
4.	Verify pretest conditions established. Initiate command to remove heliostats to standby.	
5.	Observe (a) total flow has decreased to 96 gpm (b) total △T across panels remains 370°F (c) pretest and test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits	
6.	When equilibrium conditions have been established, return 0.255 MWt to panel by realigning heliostats of Step 3 on target.	
7.	<pre>Observe (a) total flow increases to 115 gpm (b) total △T across panels remains 370°F (c) pretest and test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits (d) determine magnitude of feedback oscil- lation on outlet temperature</pre>	
8.	Repeat steps 3 to 7 using a -25% (-0.425 MWt) power ramp.	
	a) Test flow 85 gpm b) Total ∆T across panel 370°F	
	Thitight flow your hacks Oak up initial and a	
9.	conditions:	2 2
9.	Initiate flow ramp tests. Set up initial systemconditions:Sodium flow (FCV 101, 103, 103 60% open) 115 gpmSodium inletSodium outlet920°FTotal power input1.7 MWtFlux distributionDHX outlet550°FDHX controlPanel ABC control	2. 2.
9.	Initiate flow ramp tests. Set up initial systemconditions:Sodium flow (FCV 101, 103, 103 60% open) 115 gpmSodium inletSodium outletSodium outlet920°FTotal power input1.7 MWtFlux distributionDHX outlet550°FDHX controlPanel ABC controlChange flow to 96 gpm by changing EM pump voltage.	
9. 10. 11.	Initiate flow ramp tests. Set up initial systemconditions:Sodium flow (FCV 101, 103, 103 60% open) 115 gpmSodium inlet550°FSodium outlet920°FTotal power input1.7 MWtFlux distributionNormalDHX outlet550°FDHX controlAutoPanel ABC controlAutoChange flow to 96 gpm by changing EM pump voltage.Observe (a) increased DHX fan speed to control leg temperature to 550°F(b) total Δ T across panel increases to $450°F$ (outlet $1000°F$) (c) pretest and test temperature profile	

۲

١.

. .

-

C-22

	13.	Observe (a) total ΔT across panels decrease to
		 (b) total flow increases to 115 gpm (c) DHX fan speed returns to pretest
		(d) determine magnitude of feedback oscil- lations on outlet temperature
	14.	Repeat steps 10-13 to initiate ramp flow test at 80 gpm.
- 		 a) Test flow b) Total △T across panel c) Outlet temperature d) Assure increase DHX fan speed to maintain 550°F outlet temperature
	15.	Shutdown system per procedure 6.1.
5.5	Desi	gn Power Operability Test
	1.	Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2, 4.3
	2.	Initiate power increase to 2.5 MWt maintaining
	3.	Initiate tests to demonstrate system stability by transferring panel and DHX control from manual to auto control.
		a) Adjust set point of TIC 101 approximately 5% high and switch to auto, verify decrease of flow in Panel A, increase in Panel AAT. Man- ually adjust flow in Panels B and C to main- tain system within test limits, maintain DHX to a manual set point of 550°F. Return manual and auto set points to original setting and allow system to stabilize.
		 b) Repeat Step 3.a with TIC 102 and 103, manually adjusting flow in Panels A and C and A and B to maintain system within test limits
		c) Adjusting set points of TIC 101, 102, and 103 for bumpless transfer to automatic control. Set DHX TIC to automatic control. Adjust TIC 101, 102, 103 to establish a 500°F △T across the receiver panel. During transition, monitor the DHX fan speed and control to assure outlet temperature of 550°F across the receiver panel. During transition, monitor the DHX fan speed and control to assure outlet temperature of 550°F.

ž

ž

C-23

- 4. At convenient periods during this test sequence, initiate checkout of the following emergency shutdown and/or safety scrams:
 - a) Heliostat scram
 - b) Loss of sodium flow scram
 - c) Dump valve scram
 - d) Single-panel high outlet temperature scram from panel outlet
 - e) Total high sodium temperature scram from TE134
- 5. Initiate sodium drain per Procedure 6.1.

5.6 Design Power - Power Step And Flow Ramp Tests

- 1. Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2, 4.3
- Initiate power increase of 2.5 MWt maintaining normal flux distribution.
- 3. Initiate power ramp tests. Set up initial conditions.

Sodium flow (FCV 101, 102, 103 80% open)115 gpmSodium inlet550°FSodium outlet1100°FTotal power input2.5 MWtFlux distributionNormalDHX controlAutoPanel ABC controlAuto

4. Preselect required heliostats which, at time of test, produce a 10% power change.

5. Verify pretest conditions established.

- 6. Initiate command to remove heliostats to standby.
- 7. Observe (a) total flow has decrease to 100 gpm
 - (b) total ∆T across panels remains 550°F
 (c) pretest and test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test
 limits.
- 8. When equilibrium conditions have been established, initiate return of heliostats removed to standby back to target.
- 9. Observe (a) total flow, increases to 115 gpm (b) total △T across panels remains 550°F (c) test and posttest temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits (d) determine magnitude of feedback oscillation on panel outlet temperature
| 10. | Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 20% power change. | | | | | | | |
|-----|--|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 11. | Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 30% power change. | | | | | | | |
| 12. | Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 40% power change. | | | | | | | |
| 13. | Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 50% power change. | | | | | | | |
| 14. | Initiate flow ramp tests. Set up initial condi-
tions per step 2. | | | | | | | |
| 15. | Decrease flow by 8% (adjust to 106 gpm). | | | | | | | |
| 16. | <pre>Observe (a) increased DHX fan speed to control</pre> | | | | | | | |
| 17. | When equilibrium conditions are established, re-
turn loop to pretest condition. | | | | | | | |
| | a) Total ∆T across panels decreases to 550°F b) Total flow increases to 115 gpm c) DHX fan speed returns to pretest condition d) Determine magnitude of feedback oscillations on outlet temperature | | | | | | | |

18. Repeat steps 14-17 to initiate flow step test at increased flow.

Flow	Expected ∆T Across Panel	Expected Outlet Temp. with Inlet at 550°F
a) 127	490°F	1040°F
b) 138	460°F	1010°F
c) 144	440°F	990°F
d) 150	420°F	970°F

19. Shutdown system per procedure 6.1.

_"

- 5.7 Design Power Operability Tests With Skewed Flux Distribution
 - 1. Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2. 4.3
 - 2. Increase power to 2.5 MWt, maintaining normal flux distribution.
 - 3. Change the heliostat aimpoints to obtain the following conditions:

		Panel							
	a) b) c) d)	Thermal power distribution (MWt) $.9$ $.8$ $.7$ Peak flux (W/cm ²) 1.5 1.25 1.0 Panel outlet temperature (°F) 1100 1100 1100 Flow rate (gpm) 44 38 32							
	4.	Observe following sensors; maintain within test limits:							
	 a) Panel A, B, C flux b) Panel A, B, C hot tube temperature c) Panel A, B, C temperature distribution d) Panel A, B, C sodium flow e) Total sodium flow f) Panel outlet temperature g) DHX outlet temperature 								
	5.	Initiate power steps and flow ramps as per proce- dute 5.6.							
	6.	Shutdown system per procedure 6.1.							
5.8	Des	ign Power Open Loop Test							
	1.	Startup system as per startup procedures 4.2, 4.2, 4.3.							
	2.	Increase power to 2.0 MWt maintaining normal flux distribution.							
	3.	Adjust flow control to maintain 950°F panel out- let temperature.							
	4.	Set panel A, B, and C flow controls to manual.							
	5.	Initiate 10% power step change (to 2.2 MWt).							
	6.	Monitor system response during step until equili- brium conditions are established.							
7.	. Iı	nitiate another 10% power step change (to 2.4 MWt).							
8.	Ma pa	onitor system response. Careful monitoring of anel temperatures is required.							
9.	S	hutdown system per shutdown procedure 6.1.	·						
5.9	Higl	h Power Testing							

1. Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2, 4.3.

2.	Adjust EM pump and flow control valves to establish a flow of 140 gpm.	
3.	Increase power to 3.0 MWt or until all available heliostats are on target.	
4.	Initiate auto control of both DHX and panels. Establish 1100°F panel outlet temperature.	
5.	Preselect required heliostats, which at time of test produce a 10% power change.	
6.	Initiate command to remove heliostats to standby.	
7.	Observe (a) total flow has decreased (b) total △T across panels remains 550°F (c) pretest and test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits.	
8.	When equilibrium conditions have been established, initiate return of heliostats removed to standby back on target.	
9.	 Observe (a) total flow increases to pretest value (b) total △T across panels remains 550°F (c) test and post-test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits (d) determine magnitude of feedback oscillation on panel outlet temperature 	
	NOTE: Limit succeeding tests so feeb- back oscillation temperatures do not exceed test limits.	
10.	Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 20% power step.	
11.	Repeat steps 6-9, initiating a 25% power step.	
12.	Shutdown system per shutdown procedure 6.1.	
5.10 Hi	gh Power, High Temperature Test	
1.	Startup system per startup procedures 4.1, 4.2, 4.3.	
2.	Adjust EM pump and flow control valves to establish a flow of 140 gpm.	<u> </u>
3.	Increase power to 3.0 MWt or until all available heliostats are on target.	
4.	Maintain auto control of both DHX and panels.	

~

ĩ

.

-

<u>,</u>

C-27

5.	Establish panel outlet temperature of 1100°F and DHX outlet of 550°F.	
6.	Increase panel outlet setpoint to 1150°F.	
7.	Observe (a) total flow has decreased (b) test temperature profile across panel (LU10) within test limits (c) DHX outlet remains at 550°F	
8.	Shutdown system per shutdown procedure 6.1.	

٩.

6. SHUTDOWN PROCEDURES

6.1 Manual Shutdown

1.	Request CRTF operator to remove helisotat field to far standby, then to normal stow position.	
2.	Switch panels A, B, and C flow control to manual.	
3.	Open Panels, A, B, and C control valves to 100% open.	
4.	Switch DHX fans off.	
5.	Close DHX doors.	
6.	When loop temperatures approach 400-450°F range, switch EM pump off, EM pump blower off.	-
7.	Initiate trace heating on all loop circuits.	
8.	Open pressure equalization valve.	
9.	Open drain valve.	
10.	Observe sodium level in surge tank decrease to 0. Sodium drain is complete when sodium level in drain tank reaches 100%.	***
11.	Close drain valve, close pressure equalization valve.	
12.	Adjust drain tank and surge tank cover gas pressure to 5 psig.	
13.	When panel temperatures fall below 150°F, turn off flux sensor and RTAF cooling.	—————————

6.2 Emergency Shutdown

In the event of any abnormal condition on the system, either the tower operator or the CRTF operator can initiate a heliostat scram, which removes all the heliostats from the target and repositions them at the far standby position.

Four conditions: 1) drain value open, 2) loop over temperature, 3) loss of sodium flow, and 4) panel over temperature will cause an automatic heliostat scram. Following the initiation of the scram, if the system is left in automatic control, the panel flow control values will close to minimum and the DHX fan speed will decrease in an effort to maintain system set point temperatures.

At this point the system will be in the same condition as it would be after step 1 in the normal shutdown procedure, 6.1. To complete the shutdown, the remaining steps 2 through 13 of the shutdown procedure (6.1) should be followed.

If the cause of the scram is found and the test director desires, operation may resume at this point by bringing the group 1 heliostats back to target. If at any time sodium temperatures fall below 400°F, a drain down should be initiated.

Should an emergency situation arise that would require fast action by the loop operator, an emergency shutdown switch is provided on the control console. This switch immediately slews the heliostats, stops the EM pump and pump blower and closes the heat dump doors. About 10 seconds later the drain valve and the pressure equalization valve opens and the system begins to drain. This same sequence of events occurs when a loss of power is experienced.

7. SODIUM LEAK RECOVERY

4

A sodium leak is detected either by the loop smoke detector or by visual observation. In the event of this occurance, immediately implement the following procedures.

1) Either CRTF operator or loop operator may initiate a heliostat scram.

2) Call for continued visual observation from ground level. When CRTF operator verifies heliostats are at far standby, tower operator may observe module from tower top.

3) If sodium oxide smoke is present, loop operator will immediately drain the system via the emergency shutdown switch.

4) Loop operator will verify sodium drain completed before any entry into module is made.

5) Any entry into the loop structure following a sodium leak shall be made with the following personnel safety precautions:

- a) Full fire retardent coveralls with openings taped shut.
- b) PVC gauntlet gloves
- c) Hard hat with full face shield
- d) Chemical or Jones goggles
- e) NaX extinguishers and dry sodium carbonate available
- f) Scott air packs available

6) Determine source of sodium leak.

7) Clean fire residue.

8) Repair defect in loop.

APPENDIX D

ž

TRACE HEATERS AND THERMOCOUPLES IDENTIFICATION

NO . 0500P000001

•



۔ نو

×

ž

•

¥

•

PAGE . 12

TABLE I

DATA LOGGER SENSOR SCHEDULE (Sheet 1)

	•			HTR	
Data Logger Channel	Sensor No.	Function		No.	
	······				
001	TC9	Cold leg piping-A	HTR-9A&B	S-1	Red
002	TC10	Cold leg piping-A	HTR-10	Š-1	
003	TC11	Cold leg piping-A	HTR-11	S-1	11
004	TC12	Cold leg piping-A	HTR-12	S-1) I
005	TC19	Cold leg piping-B	HTR-19	S-2	81
006	TC138	Panel inlet piping	HTR-138	S-2	88
007	TC136A	Inlet piping panel A	HTR-136A	S-2	14
008	TC136B	Inlet piping panel B	HTR-136B	S-2	<i>21</i>
009	TC136C	Inlet piping pan el C	HTR-136C	S-2	88
010	TC13	PTI line	HTR-13	S-3	**
011	TC14	PTI line	HTR-14	S-3	11
012	TC15	PTI line	HTR-15	S-3	
013	TC17	PTI line	HTR-17	S-3	
014	TC18	PTI line	HTR-18	S-3	**
015	TC20	Sodium bypass line	HTR-20	S-4	"
016	TC21	Sodium bypass line	HTR-21	S-4	
017	TC13/A	Valve bonnet FCV101	HIR-137A	S-5	
018	IC137B	Valve bonnet FC102	HIR-13/B	S-5	
019		Valve bonnet FC103	HIR-13/C	5-5	
020		Inlet header panel A	UTD 107	c c	
021	1C12/B	inlet header panel B	HIK-12/	2-0	••
022	101270	Infet header panel CJ			
023	TC125A	Panel A lower	HTR-125-1	5-7	Green
024	TC125B	Panel B lower	HTR-125-2	S-7	ur cen
025	TC125C	Panel C lower	HTR-125-3	S-7	81
026	TC126A	Panel A upper)	1111 120 0	0	
027	TC126B	Panel B upper	HTR-126	S-8	
028	TC126C	Panel C upper			
020	TOFRIOC	Damal Quitlat Dasa Caraa	UTDED100	C 0	
029	10EP125	Panel Utiet Pres Sensor	HIKEP128	5-9	wnite
030		Paner Intel Pres Sensor	HIKEP129	5-IU 5 11	
031	1027130 TCED127	Pump Uniter Pres Sensor	HIKEP130	5-11 5 12	
032	IUEPI3/	rump inter pres Sensor	HIKEP13/	5-12	

NO . 0500P000001

2

*`

1



.

PAGE . 13

TABLE I

DATA LOGGER SENSOR SCHEDULE (Sheet 2)

·			·	HTR	
Data Logger	Sensor			Circuit	
Channel	No.	Function		No.	
033	TC128A	Outlet header panel A	HTR-128A	S-13	Amber
034	TC128B	Outlet header panel B	HTR-128B	S-13	11
035	TC128C	Outlet header panel C	HTR-128C	S-13	11
036	TC135A	Outlet piping panel A	HTR-135A	S-13	88
037	TC135B	Outlet piping panel B	HTR-135B	S-13	11
038	TC135C	Outlet piping panel C	HTR-135C	S-13	ti -
039	TC139	Hot leg piping	HTR-139	S-13	11
040	TC140	Hot leg piping	HTR-140	S-13	11
041	TC141	Hot leg piping	HTR-141	S-13	11
042	TC39	Hot leg piping A	HTR-39	S-14	11
043	TC40	Hot leg piping A	HTR-40	S-14	17
044	TC41	Hot leg piping A	HTR-41	S-14	88
045	TC1	Hot leg piping B	HTR-1A&B	S-15	11
046	TC2	Hot leg piping B	HTR-2A&B	S-15	11
047	TC3	Hot leg piping B	HTR-3A&B	S-15	81
048	TC4	Hot leg piping C	HTR-4A&B	S-16	11
049	TC5	Hot leg piping C	HTR-5A&B	S-16	н
050	TC6	Hot leg piping C	HTR-6A&B	S-16	H.
051	TC7	Hot leg piping C	HTR-7A&B	S-16	11
052	TC8	Hot leg piping C	HTR-8A,B,C	S-16	11
053	TCST1	Surge tank top	HTR-ST1	S-17	II
054	TCST2	Surge tank top	HTR-ST2	S-17	11
055	TCST3	Surge tank top	HTR-ST3	S-17	11
056	TCST4	Surge tank top	HTR-ST4	S-17	11
057	TCST5	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST5	S-18	н
058	TCST6	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST6	S-18	ri
059	TCST7	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST7	S-18	
060	TCST8	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST8	S-18	11
061	TCST9	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST9	S-18	11
062	TCST10	Surge tank sides	HTR-ST10	S-18	11
063	TCST11	Surge tank bottom	HTR-ST11	S-19	
064	TCST12	Surge tank bottom	HTR-ST12	S-19	
065	TC69	Sodium fill line	HTR-69	S-20	FT
066	TC72	Bonnet valve EP207	HTR-72	S-20	11

NO . 0500P000001

Rockwell International Energy Systems Group

<u>,</u>

Ą,

ž

ŗ

PAGE . 14

TABLE I

DATA LOGGER SENSOR SCHEDULE (Sheet 3)

				HTR		
Data Logger	Sensor			Circuit		
Channel	No .	Function	No .			
067	TC50	EM pump duct	HTR-50	S-21	White	
068	TC65	Valve bonnet FCV001	HTR-62	S-22	11	
069	TC66	Valve bonnet FCV002	HTR-63	S-22	88	
070	TC68	Valve bonnet LCV003	HTR-67	S-22	n	
071	TC70	Valve bonnet EP117	HTR-64	S-22	н	
072	TC67	Valve bonnet PCV004	HTR-65	S-23	11	
073	TC71	Valve bonnet EP116	HTR-66	S-24	11	
074	TC25	Drain line	HTR-25	S-25	н	
075	TC54	Drain line	HTR-54	S-25	11	
076	TC61	Drain tank to VT	HTR-61	S-26	88	
077	TCDT1	Drain tank top	HTR=DT1	S-27	11	
078	TCDT2	Drain tank top	HTR-DT2	S-27	11	
079	TCDT11	Drain tank bottom	HTR-DT11	S-28	11	
080	TCDT12	Drain tank bottom	HTR-DT12	S-28	11	
081	TCDT3	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT3	S-29	62	
082	TCDT4	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT4	S-29	11	
083	TCDT5	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT5	S-29	· • •	
084	TCDT6	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT6	S-29	11	
085	TCD T7	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT7	S-30	u	
086	TCDT8	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT8	S-30		
087	TCDT9	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT9	S-30	88	
088	TCDT10	Drain tank sides	HTR-DT10	S-30	LI	
089	TC42	Equalizing line	HTR-42	S-31	11	
090	TC43	Equalizing line	HTR-43	S-31	11	
091	TC44	Equalizing line	HTR-44	S-31	14	
092	TC45	Equalizing line	HTR-45	S-31	н	
093	TC46	Equalizing line	HTR-46	S-32	61	
094	TC47	Equalizing line	HTR-47	S-32	н	
095	TC48	Equalizing line	HTR-48	S-32	41	
096	TC49	Equalizing line	HTR-49	S-32	41	
097	TC28	Drain tank vapor trap	HTR-28,30	S-33	11	
098	TC29	Drain tank vapor trap	HTR-29,31	S-33	61	
099	TC56	Surge tank vapor trap	HTR-56,58	S-34	11	
100	TC57	Surge tank vapor trap	HTR-57,59	S-34	11	
101	TC60	Surge tank to VT	HTR-60	S-34	11	
102	TC26A	Colď trap	HTR-26A	S-35	L1	

Rockwell International Energy Systems Group

*

ž

4

.

TABLE I

DATA LOGGER SENSOR SCHEDULE (Sheet 4)

Data Logger Channel	Sensor No.	Function		HTR Circuit No.	
103 104 105 106 107 108	TC27A TC26B TC27B TCDHX1 TCDHX2 TCDHX3 TCDHX4	Cold trap Cold trap Cold trap Dump Heat Exchanger Dump Heat Exchanger Dump Heat Exchanger	HTR-27A HTR-26B HTR-27B	S-35 S-35 S-35	White "
109 110 111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119	TCDHX4 TCDHX5 TCDHX6 TCDHX7 TCDHX8 TCDHX9 TCDHX10 TCDHX11 TCDHX12 TCDHX13 TCDHX14	Dump Heat Exchanger Dump Heat Exchanger	DHX Heaters ON	S-36	н
120 121 122 123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130	TCDHX16 TCDHX17 TCDHX18 - TC73	Dump Heat Exchanger Dump Heat Exchanger Dump Heat Exchanger Main Flowmeter			u
131 132 133 134 135 136 137 138					



DACE



Figure 1. Red Group, S1-S6, Trace Heaters and Thermocouples



*



Figure 2. Amber Group, S13-S20, Trace Heaters and Thermocouples

PAGE.



.

1

;







APPENDIX E

1.94

ž

¥.

INCIDENT FLUX MEASURING SYSTEM DATA

		· · · ·	S3.1.1	/135501 /FI	LE FOR ESC	FLUX DATA	- -					
	TIM	E						11 a.		1. J.	· ·	- ,
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
10	18	25	0.09	0.18	0.07	0.19	0.21	0.27	0.15	0.35	0.42	0.40
10	18	29	0.20	0.18	0.17	0.19	0.31	0.47	0.49	0.57	0.61	0.69
10	18	33	0.20	0.18	0.17	0.29	0.41	0.68	0.84	1.02	1.01	1.08
10	18	.38	0.42	0.27	0.46	0.70	0.94	1.29	1.42	1.79	1.73	1.86
10	18	42	0.65	0.56	0.75	0.90	1.36	1.89	2.00	2.61	2.72	2.84
10	18	46	0.54	0.66	1.04	1.62	2.20	3.13	3.44	4.28	4.38	4.49
10	18	51	0.99	1.14	1.72	2.64	3.67	4.96	5.41	6.61	6.74	6.58
10	18	55	1.55	1.82	2.68	4.06	5.56	7.61	8.31	9.94	9.88	9.61
10	18	59	2.01	2.40	3.65	5.59	7.76	10.47	11.79	14.16	14.20	14.00
10	19	4	2.80	3.46	5.39	7.94	10.81	14.55	16.20	19.26	19.51	19.27
10	19	. 8	4.04	5.00	7.61	11.10	14.91	19.85	21.88	25.81	25.99	25.42
10	19	12	5.51	6.84	10.13	14.47	19.21	25.26	27.68	32.70	32.76	32.25
10	19	17	6.53	8.09	12.26	17.53	23.52	31.12	34.64	40.87	41.17	40.51
10	19	21	7.32	9.15	13.90	20.38	27.13	36.11	40.10	47.53	48.44	48.41
10	19	25	9.24	11.47	17.19	24.36	32.27	42.03	46.20	54.52	55.21	55.44
0	Ø	Ø	11.41	14.82	21.54	29.25	36.58	47.30	51.40	60.84	64.71	62.97
10	19	25	12.14	16.84	24.23	32.54	38.65	49.51	53.40	62.99	69.66	66.37
10	19	21	12.75	17.26	24.66	32.75	39.05	50.32	54.28	64.37	71.37	67.71
10	19	17	13.75	17.78	24.77	32.43	38.75	49.61	53.73	63.73	70.84	67.15
10	19	12	14.34	18.72	25.51	32.64	38.26	47.87	51.12	60.02	66.24	62.38
, 10	19	8	13.34	17.15	23.48	29.78	34.59	43.39	46.21	54.19	59.60	56.09
10	19	4	11.94	15.18	20.49	25.54	29.54	36.96	39.45	46.39	51.09	47.88
10	18	59	10.25	12.68	16.91	20.98	23.79	29.82	31.39	37.38	40.92	38.56
10	18	55	8.25	9.98	13.17	16.06	18.04	22.48	23.32	27.74	30.33	28.68
10	18	51	6.04	7.48	9.96	12.14	13.34	16.52	16.85	19.79	21.34	20.18
10	18	46	4.14	5.09	6.85	8.43	9.68	11.32	11.51	13.81	14.88	13.87
10	18	42	2.60	3.22	4.50	5.68	6.21	7.85	7.89	9.14	9.96	9.10
10	18	38	1.60	2.07	3.00	3.77	4.23	5.40	5.29	6.17	6.75	6.10
1.0	18	33	0.90	1.35	1.82	2.39	2.84	3.46	3.55	4.05	4.50	4.10
10	18	29	0.50	0.83	1.29	1.75	1.95	2.44	2.46	2.89	3.11	2.77
10	18	25	0.30	0.52	0.85	1.22	1.15	1.63	1.48	1.93	2.04	1.88

.t

, .

Test #18, Time = 1018, 110 Heliostats

4

n t

1.1	TIM	E								
HII:	MI :	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CH2	W/CM2
10	18	25	0.56	0.46	0.39	0.41	0.00	0.27	0.13	0.04
10	18	29	0.66	0.56	0.69	0.62	0.00	0.27	0.25	0.24
10	18	33	1.10	0.99	0.89	0.83	0.00	0.37	0.25	0.24
10	18	38	1.90	1.74	1.48	1.26	0.00	0.58	0.59	0.44
10	18	42	2.98	2.70	2.27	1.93	0.00	0.98 `	0.82	0.65
10	18	46	4.60	4.09	3.46	3.10	0.00	1.60	1.27	0.99
10	18	51	6.97	6.13	5.09	4.48	0.00	2.41	1.96	1.10
10	18	5 5	10.00	8.69	7.27	6.28	0.00	3.27	2.64	1.91
10	18	59	14.42	12.87	10.74	9.46	0.00	5.11	3.83	2.8 3
10	19	4	19.82	17.79	15.00	13.38	0.00	7.45	5.65	3.95
10	19	· 8	26.41	23.89	20.15	18.26	0.00	10.21	7.70	5.38
19	19	12	33.54	30.63	25.90	23.24	0.00	13.27	9.98	7.01
10	19	17	42.14	38.08	32.04	28.65	0.00	15.82	11.81	8.24
10	19	21	50.88	46.64	39.54	35.64	0.00	20.51	15.80	10.99
10	19	25	58.55	53.81	45.38	41.54	0.00	24.28	18.65	12.93
0	0	0	65.70	59.56	52.21	47.79	20.51	28.57	22.36	15.31
10	19	.25	68.17	61.28	54.97	50.25	38.73	29.8 9	23.35	15.86
10	19	21	69.76	62.52	56.56	51.62	40.45	31.17	` 24. 68	16.76
10	19	17	68.74	61.49	55.28	49.8 8	38.93	30.32	24.07	16.36
10	19	12	63.84	57.06	51.26	46.53	36.30	28. 39	22.74	15.57
10	19	· 8	57.27	50.92	46.17	41.82	32.67	25.50	20.29	13.94
10	19	4	48.8 3	43.71	39.53	35.62	28.12	21.97	17.54	11.87
10	18	59	39.26	35.16	31.90	28.80	22.61	17.76	13.97	9.49
10	18	55	29.22	26.61	.24.16	21.73	16.95	13.26	10.60	7.31
10	18	51	20.33	18.58	16.74	14.91	11.80	9.20	7.65	5.33
10	18	46	<u>14.13</u>	12.87	11.65	10.65	8.37	6.52	5.40	3.85
10	18	42	9.23	8.34	7.48	6.80	5.44	4.38	3.67	2.86
10	18	38	6.04	5.45	4.83	4.45	3.52	2.88	2.55	1.97
10	18	33	3.99	3.50	3.03	2.83	2.41	2.13	1.93	1.47
10	18	29	2.73	2.30	2.07	1.97	1.60	1.49	1.42	1.07
10	18	25	1.93	1.85	1.65	1.59	1.30	1.17	1.01	0.68

۶.,

3-а

135501 FILE FOR ESC FLUX DATA

Test #18, Time = 1018, 110 Heliostats (cont)

E-3

.

	TIM	Э										
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2									
12	17	16	0.22	0.36	0.42	0.52	0.55	0.71	0.56	0.55	0.55	0.57
12	17	20	0.56	0.46	0.61	0.72	0.97	1.12	1.03	1.10	1.05	1.06
12	17	25	0.45	0.55	0.71	0.92	1.18	1.42	1.38	1.66	1.67	1.55
12	17	. 29	0.79	0.84	1.10	1.43	1.81	2.24	2.30	2.59	2.56	2.43
12	17	33	1.24	1.42	1.68	2.15	2.76	3.57	3.63	4.26	4.13	3.89
12	17	38	1.69	1.91	2.64	3.58	4.44	5.71	5.71	6.81	6.78	6.27
12	17	4 2	2.37	2.87	4.10	5.62	7.06	8.87	9.08	10.36	10.32	9.69
12	17	46	3.61	4.22	6.13	8.17	10.21	12.64	13.02	15.02	14.93	14.37
12	17	51	5.08	6.15	8.93	12.04	15.36	18.97	19.87	22.46	21.90	20.81
12	17	5 5	6.78	8.08	12.02	16.33	20.82	26.15	27.52	31.34	30.64	29.11
12	18	Ø	8.92	10.78	15.80	21.73	27.26	34.10	35.87	40.62	39.54	37.76
12	18	4	11.18	13.58	19.86	26.97	33.98	42.16	44.18	49.72	48.38	46.64
12	18	8	12.99	15.90	23.14	31.67	39.97	49.91	52.65	59.38	57.71	\$ 55.71
12	18	13	14.57	18.12	26.37	36.46	46.27	57.36	60.19	67.82	66.25	64.40
12	18	17	15.36	19.18	28.12	39.21	49.84	61.95	65.52	73.81	72.38	71.04
6	Ø	0	15.66	20.68	30.19	40.95	49.97	62.54	66.13	75.07	77.30	73.82
12	18	17	15.84	22.24	32.53	43.47	51.11	64.18	67.86	77.44	83.88	77.95
12	18	13	15.74	21.93	31.89	42.19	49.47	62.25	65.68	75.11	81.10	75.29
12	18	8	15.43	20.78	29.22	38.06	44.91	56.64	60.12	69.17	75.11	69.85
12	18	4	13.74	18.50	25.90	33.29	39.16	49.64	53.08	61.33	66.34	61.74
12	18	Ø	11.63	15.58	21.73	27.99	32.82	41.48	44.58	52.04	56.49	52.69
12	17	5 5	9.54	12.57	17.51	22.37	26.38	32.91	35.64	41.76	45.73	42.70
12	17	51	7.74	9.66	13.34	17.24	20.03	25.36	27.24	32.22	35.03	32.71
12	17	46	6.04	7.26	9.59	11.94	14.44	17.92	19.51	23.21	25.82	24.49
12	17	42	4.63	5.39	6.92	8.44	10.08	12.67	13.79	16.70	18.44	17.57
12	17	38	3.34	3.83	4.88	5.90	6.71	8.39	9.00	11.08	12.30	11.79
12	17	33	2.29	2.69	3.39	4.10	4.63	5.64	5.95	7.27	8.02	7.80
12	17	29	1.60	1.86	2.32	2.72	3.15	3.49	3.66	4.40	4.92	4.58
12	17	25	1.10	1.34	1.57	1.77	1.96	2.27	2.35	2.81	3.10	2.91
12	17	20	0.60	0.82	0.93	1.02	1.26	1.35	1.37	1.65	1.81	1.58
12	17	16	0.29	0.40	0.60	0.71	0.67	0.74	0.71	0.91	0.96	0.92

I35502 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #18, Time = 1217, 110 Heliostats

ء و

÷.

۲é

) (#

E-4

,

۲ و

	PT1 X 3.6					I HOIL DALLA			· ·	
	TIM	r,	·							
HR:	· MI :	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
12	17	16	0.64	0.32	0.49	0.45	0.00	0.20	0.22	0.20
12	17	20	0.97	0.64	0.59	0.45	0.00	0.20	0.22	0.30
12	17	25	1.51	1.17	0.89	0.77	0.00	0.30	0.45	0.61
12	17	29	2.31	1.92	1.48	1.19	0.00	0.61	0.68	0.50
12	17	33	3.82	2.99	2.37	1.87	0.00	1.02	1.02	0.85
12	17	38	6.19	5.13	4.16	3.25	0.00	1.73	1.59	1.36
12	17	42	9.65	8.13	6.58	5.37	0.00	2.54	2.16	1.77
12	17	46	14.62	12.73	10.14	8.44	0.00	4.01	3.00	2.18
12	17	51	20.77	17.97	14.01	11.62	0.00	5.44	3.92	2.99
12	17	55	29.09	25.03	19.56	16.08	0.00	7.69	5.63	4.01
12	18	0	37.95	33.06	26.20	21.91	0,00	10.54	7.45	5.03
12	18	4	47.30	41.68	33.43	28.37	0.09	13.91	9.73	6.16
12	18	8	56.70	50.14	40.43	34.52	0.00	17.07	11.90	7.69
12	18	13	65.77	58.37	47.07	40.52	0.00	20.64	14.52	9.11
12	18	17	72.79	65.44	52.82	45.92	0.00	24.11	17.37	11.15
0	0	Ø	75.02	66.36	55.79	48.98	18.78	26.62	19.56	12.45
12	18	17	78.42	67.95	59.25	51.88	38.23	28.13	20.80	13.06
12	18	13	75.79	65.69	57.45	50.64	37.73	28.02	20.80	13.06
12	18	8	70.44	61.05	53.63	47.41	35.61	26.73	19.99	12.77
12	18	4	62.23	54.36	48.01	42.82	32.58	24.70	18.76	12.47
12	18	Ø	53.15	46.78	41.59	37.12	28.34	21.60	16.62	11.08
12	17	55	43.35	38.64	34.70	30.92	23.73	18.24	14.07	9.40
12	17	51	33.55	29.99	26.96	23.85	18.28	13.96	10.81	7.32
12	17	46	25.57	23.19	20.60	18.02	13.63	10.21	8.05	5.64
12	17	42	18.22	16.35	14.56	12.89	9.79	7.43	6.12	4.35
12	17	38	12.18	11.20	9.90	8.80	6.56	4.97	3.97	2.97
12	17	33	8.19	7.49	6.67	5.95	4.34	3.15	2.65	2.07
12	17	29	5.00	4.71	4.23	3.72	2.82	2.30	2.04	1.58
12	17	25	3.06	2.76	2.33	2.23	1.71	1.65	1.42	1.18
12	17	20	1.69	1.52	1.37	1.36	1.11	1.01	1.01	0.89
12	17	16	0.90	0.80	0.84	0.86	0.70	0.69	0.61	0.59

. **)** .

3.

135502 FILE FOR ESC FLUX DATA

¢

Test #18, Time = 1217, 110 Heliostats (cont)

E- 5/6

۵. ا

1

 $\sim N_{\rm e}$

TIME		199 563 F I	LE FOR ESC	FLUX DATA								192 803 - M I	LE FOR ESC	FLUX DATA				
AR: MI: SE:	W/CH2	W/CH2	W/CN2	W/CH2	W/CM2	W/CHI2	W/C192	W/CN2	N/Chi?	W/CI?2	W/Ch2	W/CP/2	W/CK2	W/CH4	W/CH3	W/Chi2	W/C//2	W/CR3
13 59 69 14 0 9	0.56	0.69 1.17	1.06	1.82	1.88	1.82	1.17	1.18	1.01	1.04	0.75	0.64	0.98	.55	0.00	0.40	0.22	0.00
14 0 8	1.58	1.46	1.03	2.14	2.54	2.75	2.67	8.00	8.01	1.02	2.81	1.93	1.87	1.60	9.00	0.00 0.01	0.79	9.03
14 0 12	1.92	1.94	2.51	3.06	8.69	4.28	4.23	4.86	4.29	8.97	8.71	8.20	2.86	2.89		1.82	1.13	0.97
11 0 16	2.98	8.01	4.06	4.99	6.00	6.78	6.78	7.44	6.94	6.25	8.98	5.24	4.29	8.66	9.00	1.93	1.48	1.28
	3.95	4.16	6.70	7.24	8.73	19.19	19.26		10.47	9.67	9.22	7.81	6.27	5.25	0.60	2.85	2.39	1.89
14 6 20	0.92 7 99	0.00	8.21	14.70	12.72	14.69	14.79	16.82	15.48	14.16	18.75	11.44	9.24	7.90	0.00	4.22	3.46	2.61
14 84	10.05	11.30	18 88	20 70	98 99	99 99	31.90 90 KG	23.05	22.65	20.89	29.34	17.22	18.70	11.51	0.00	6.95	4.71	8.62
14 0 38	12.76	14.78	28.79	27.27	33.24	89.92	49.00	48 28	49 49	80.07	29.91	20.14	19.99	22 05	0.00	8.71	0.09	9.99
11 0 43	16.49	19.22	26.63	34.72	42.06	59.22	51.05	56.24	83 B4	TV.UU Ro 80	40 50	49 67	94 02	28 57		14 83	10.70	7 20
11 0 47	19.88	22.88	31.46	49.63	48.99	58.58	89.51	65.45	62.68	59.40	59.40	62.17	41.51	85.67	9.00	19.21	14.40	9.54
14 9 51	22.59	26.20	36.10	46.55	55.69	66.54	67.75	74.78	71.55	68.68	69.01	61.69	49.83	48.05	0.90	23.50	17.60	11.99
1: 9 56	24.40	28.42	89.29	51.14	61.80	73.87	75.29	82.81	79.51	76.72	87.91	69.93	56.77	49.84	.00	27.68	21.13	14.64
	27.10	20.02	89.78 40 Kg	02.80 89 80	63.79	70.84	79.5B	88.47	85.89	84.94	86.11	78.83	64.20	57.15	9.99	32.57	24.89	15.66
11 1 0	23.54	31.47	43.97	56.15	63.69	77.97	81.96	88.97	99.09	86.57	87.97	78.10	66.41	69.26	22.64	84.77	27.17	17.29
11 0 56	23.18	39.82	41.83	63.38	60.82	74.71	78.14	88.17	95 110	91.07	92.11	89.83	70.80	62.74	47.43	36.61	28.69	18.55
14 0 51	21.28	26.93	86.38	46.18	53.08	65.63	69.85	79.90	86.40	80.21	88.30	70.32	67.30	09.09	99.02	33.60	28.29	18.00
14 0 47	18.54	23.40	81.24	39.77	45.39	56.35	69.94	69.62	75.59	70.45	71.25	62.31	85.75	50.89	39.25	81.26	25 60	16 86
11 9 43	14.74	18.40	24.61	39.86	85.78	44.56	47.77	56.95	62.11	57.79	89.16	52.63	47.80	43.62	84.71	28.05	22.64	15.38
1.5 0 34	8.74	11.02	14 79	29.01	20.10	00.28	87.02	49.93	48.99	46.18	47.24	42.68	38.83	35.51	28.94	22.49	18.46	12.67
1: 0 29	6.04	7.38	9.98	12.48	14.24	18.14	19.65	94 29	37.70	88.42	36.52	33.00	80.14	27.70	22.12	18.06	14.99	10.39
11 0 25	8.93	4.78	6.37	8.03	9.68	12.29	13.61	16.40	18.20	17 26	26.72	24.65	22.72	21.00	17.18	14.10	11.83	8.51
1 0 21	2.49	8.01	3.89	4.96	6.21	8.21	9.03	11.09	12.46	11.84	18.12	16.89	10.62	14.89	12.23	10.25	8.67	6.33
17 0 16	1.70	2.07	2.73	3.68	4.33	8.76	6.20	7.59	8.29	7.78	B 00	7.41	6 00	- 12.10	5.56	4 87	4 18	9.46
19 9 12	V.89	1.29	1.66	2.41	2.94	8.82	4.92	4.85	5.29	4.96	6.24	4.04	4.45	4.69	3.84	2.86	2.75	2.37
14 0 a	0.30	9.52	0.70	1.07	2.00	2.70	2.82	8.87	8.47	3.29	3.42	8.19	2.96	2.72	2.13	1.90	1.83	1.48
13 59 59	0.29	0.41	6.38	0.50	0.76	9.86	1. (J 0. 97	1.00	1 29	1.00	1.93	1.65	1.69	1.78	1.42	1.36	1.22	1.08
				2.00			<i></i>				1.14	1.02	0.95	0.99	0.91	9.83	9.81	0.79
										1								

9 .e

i

E-7

ж.,

٠

Test #18, Time = 1400, 158 Heliostats

I01401 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

.

•

* *

	TIM	F.										
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
12	19	17	0.80	0.92	1.38	1.55	1.71	1.46	1.26	1.63	1.38	1.57
12	19	22	1.25	1.02	1.28	1.65	2.02	2.18	2.23	2.63	2.46	2.25
12	19	27	1.36	1.21	1.67	2.06	2.65	3.20	3.16	3.62	3.54	3.23
12	19	33	2.04	1.89	2.63	3.28	4.02	4.73	4.79	5.73	5.41	4.92
12	19	38	2.72	2.66	3.60	4.71	5.80	6.87	7.22	8.51	8.16	7.75
12	19	43	3.85	4.01	5.54	7.16	8.95	10.54	10.93	12.50	12.08	11.27
12	19	49	4.98	5.36	7.76	10.42	13.05	15.74	16.15	18.61	18.07	17.03
12	19	54	6.67	7.39	10.76	14.81	18.65	23.13	24.16	27.49	26.62	24.93
12	20	Ø	8.82	10.28	15.11	20.66	26.53	32.82	34.48	39.03	37.67	35.28
12	20	5	11.08	13.37	19.60	27.19	35.03	43.73	46.38	52.42	50.83	48.12
12	20	10	12.89	15.63	23.66	33.51	43.96	55.73	59.72	68.40	66.74	63.64
12	20	16	16.39	20.26	30.43	42.79	55.57	69.60	73.99	83.77	81.41	78.03
12	20	21	18.70	23.44	35.07	49.12	64.08	80.41	85.87	97.09	94.57	91.69
12	20	26	20.39	25.76	38.84	54.59	71.22	89.02	95.85	1 08.1	105.9	103.6
12	20	32	21.41	27.40	41.45	58.46	76.36	95.75	103.3	116.9	114.5	112.5
0	Ø	0	22.31	30.17	44.83	61.73	76.09	96.09	103.5	117.8	121.5	115.8
12	20	32	22.74	32.40	48.49	65.96	77.14	98.94	106.1	121.Ã	131.9	121.9
12	20	26	22.84	32.40	47.63	64.26	74.87	95.37	102.4	117.2	127.2	117.5
12	20	21	22.34	30.84	44.85	59.70	69.41	87.72	94.36	108.7	117.9	108.7
12	20	16	19.64	27.04	39.29	52.22	61.19	77.68	83.63	97.26	105.8	97.71
12	20	10	17.14	23.50	33.8 3	44.70	52.27	65.85	70.11	82.17	89.47	82.57
12	20	5	15.04	20.07	27.84	36.43	42.10	52.69	55.62	65.95	71.71	66.47
12	20	Ø	12.44	16.32	22.49	29.01	33.68	41.51	43.34	51.15	54.91	51.31
12	19	54	9.94	12.79	17.31	21.59	24.46	30.19	31.03	37.16	39.76	37.32
12	19	49	8.04	9.98	13.35	16.35	18.12	21.82	21.87	25.82	27.34	25.67
12	19	43	6.04	7.38	9.60	11.47	12.63	15.15	14.85	17.61	18.57	17.52
12	19	38	4.44	5.40	7.04	8.40	9.16	16.87	10.38	11.99	12.43	11.42
12	19	33	3.24	3.74	4.79	5.54	6.49	7.30	7.33	8.18	8.58	7.75
12	19	27	2.30	2.59	3.18	3.84	4.40	4.85	4.82	5.42	5.69	5.20
12	19	22	1.60	1.66	2.11	2.57	2.82	3.42	3.19	3.83	3.98	3.76
12	19	17	0.80	0.72	1.04	1.30	1.33	1.99	1.77	2.24	2.37	2.43

Test #21, Time = 1200, 173 Heliostats

۲

20

۰.

5 E

	111	E.								
HR:	MI :	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
12	19	17	1.27	0.88	1.15	0.87	0.00	0.66	0.50	0.33
12	19	22	1.92	1.53	1.55	1.45	0.00	0.76	0.84	0.88
12	19	27	3.00	2.49	2.54	2.19	0.00	1.27	1.29	1.29
12	19	33	4.73	8.99	3.73	3.25	0.00	1.98	1.86	1.80
12	19	38	7.43	6.34	5.46	4.95	0.00	2.90	2.59	2.31
12	19	43	10.99	9.23	7.83	7.07	0.00	4.06	3.62	3.13
12	19	49	16.93	14.15	12.00	10.46	0.00	5.90	4.99	3.64
12	19	54	24.49	20.57	16.95	14.49	0.00	7.84	6.36	4.76
12	20	6	34.32	29.02	23.49	19.89	0.00	10.18	7.84	5.57
12	20	5	47.13	40.00	32.11	27.21	0.00	13.86	10.23	7.21
12	20	10	63.22	54.23	43.27	36.75	0.00	18.45	13.31	8.74
12	20	16	77.73	67.07	53.38	45.18	0.00	22.63	16.16	10.67
12	20	21	92.31	81.03	64.97	55.46	0.00	27.93	19.92	13.22
12	20	26	105.1	93.55	75.62	65.00	0.00	32.83	23.46	15.16
12	20	32	114.4	102.2	82.65	71.47	0.00	36.70	25.96	15.06
Ø	0	Ø	117.1	103.2	86.99	75.79	28.74	40.04	28.79	15.71
12	20	32	122.2	105.4	91.52	79.60	58.03	42.09	30.65	17.85
12	20	26	118.1	102.4	89.61	78.36	57.63	42.09	30.75	16.77
12	20	21	108.6	94.08	82.19	72.16	53.38	39.31	29.12	17.06
12	20	16	97.41	84.66	73.56	64.47	48.03	35.35	26.26	14.79
12	20	10	82.20	72.40	63.60	56.09	42.17	31.60	23.98	13.06
12	20	5	66.35	59.12	52.04	46.05	35.00	26.57	20.61	10.59
12	20	0	50.78	45.67	40.21	35.63	27.53	21.18	16.73	7.91
12	19	54	36.76	33.51	29.61	26.83	21.41	17.12	13.98	6.53
12	19	49	25.47	23.31	20.60	18.89	15.55	12.73	10.82	5.04
12	19	43	<u> 17.45 </u>	16.06	14.35	13.26	11.00	9.30	8.06	4.85
12	19	38	11.41	10.60	9.43	8.68	7.27	6.31	5.72	3.66
12	19	33	7.76	7.31	6.67	6.07	5.15	4.49	4.09	3.16
12	19	27	5.25	4.94	4.55	4.21	3.53	3.10	2.86	2.17
12	19	22	3.77	3.70	3.39	3.10	2.52	2.24	1.84	1.38
12	19	17	2.51	2.47	2.33	2.23	1.81	1.71	1.43	1.08

.a. ...

۲ ۲

11

101401 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #21, Time = 1200, 173 Heliostats (cont)

۰. ۴

101501 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

	TIM	E						4			1	
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2									
13	30	30	0.76	0.99	1.34	1.63	2.10	1.83	1.13	1.63	1.51	1.34
13	30	35	1.55	1.47	1.82	2.04	2.41	2.65	2.52	2.85	2.59	2.32
13	30	41	1.89	1.76	2.21	2.44	3.04	3.46	3.34	3.85	3.77	3.29
13	30	46	2.57	2.44	3.18	3.57	4.30	5.20	5.19	5.84	5.63	5.05
13	30	51	3.59	3.50	4.53	5.40	6.51	7.64	7.51	8.51	8.28	7.30
13	30	57	4.83	4.75	6.27	7.54	9.23	11.01	11.22	12.73	12.41	11.30
13	31	2	6.19	6.59	8.79	10.81	13.22	15.80	16.10	18.28	17.81	16.67
13	31	7	8.67	9.58	12.94	16.25	19.67	23.80	24.33	27.45	26.61	24.73
13	31	13	11.84	13.24	18.01	23.09	28.07	33.70	34.84	38.99	37.21	34.39
13	31	18	14.21	16.27	23.04	30.23	37.52	45.53	47.49	53.09	50.61	46.78
13	31	23	17.37	20.91	29.81	39.41	48.76	59.26	61.80	68.67	65.44	61.37
13	31	29	20.92	25.44	36.48	48.69	60.58	73.64	77.11	85.72	81.89	76.94
13	31	34	24.20	29.88	43.25	57.93	72.23	87.14	90.64	100.2	95.94	90.31
13	31	39	26.01	32.58	47.70	64.36	80.32	96.83	101.0	111.7	106.8	101.4
13	31	45	28.49	35.67	52.01	70.17	87.04	105.2	110.2	121.2	116.1	110.8
Ø	0	0	28.69	37.84	54.66	72.52	85.64	104.3	109.0	120.6	121.8	113.2
13	31	45	29.25	40.93	59.02	77.75	87.01	107.8	112.3	124.4	132.2	119.5
13	31	39	28.36	39.47	56.66	74.14	83.25	102.4	106.7	118.7	126.3	114.2
13	31	34	26.96	36.87	51.85	66.89	75.62	93.15	97.91	110.0	117.7	106.4
13	31	29	24.20	32.82	45.64	58.52	65.91	81.36	84.87	96.15	102.9	93.51
13	31	23	20.60	28.14	39.05	50.04	56.35	68.71	72.01	81.99	87.97	79.75
13	31	18	17.40	23.35	32.20	40.50	45.95	55.62	57.58	65.62	70.42	63.72
13	31	13	13.40	17.84	24.28	30.58	34.39	41.74	43.19	49.72	53.47	48.74
13	31	7	10.20	13.41	17.76	21.88	23.99	29.03	29.72	34.39	37.15	33.91
13	31	2	8.00	10.29	13.26	15.95	17.25	20.87	21.22	24.43	26.23	23.60
13	30	57	5.80	7.59	9.48	11.03	12.15	14.04	14.13	15.95	17.24	15.48
13	30	51	4.20	5.30	6.59	7.32	7.70	8.90	8.75	10.08	10.78	9.89
13	30	46	2.90	3.53	4.34	4.78	4.82	5.43	5.15	5.94	6.29	5.89
13	30	41	2.10	2.39	2.84	3.08	2.94	3.29	3.08	3.50	3.72	3.67
13	30	35	1.50	1.66	1.77	1.81	1.85	1.86	1.88	2.02	2.33	2.23
13	30	30	0.90	0.83	0.81	0.64	0.66	0.64	0.57	0.75	0.83	0.78

Test #22, Time = 1330, 183 Heliostats

٠

......

13

) e

١

y)

	.1.1 M		•					· .		
HR:	MI :	SE:	W/CM2							
13	30	30	1.16	0.98	1.19	0.63	0.00	0.48	0.30	0.13
13	30	35	2.03	1.94	1.89	1.80	0.00	1.30	1.44	1.45
13	30	41	3.21	2.80	2.68	2.33	0.00	1.50	1.67	1.35
13	30	46	4.83	4.30	3.87	3.60	0.00	2.12	2.01	1.86
13	30	51	7.10	6.01	5.26	4.66	0.00	2.93	2.92	2.37
13	30	57	10.99	9.33	7.93	6.88	0.00	4.16	3.61	2.78
13	31	2	16.39	14.03	11.60	9.96	0.00	5.48	4.41	3.19
13	31	7	24.01	20.35	16.46	13.99	0.00	7.32	5.66	4.00
13	31	13	33.19	27.79	22.01	18.44	0.00	9.26	6.80	4.72
13	31	18	45.40	38.28	29.99	25.07	0.00	12.01	8.74	5.94
13	31	23	59.91	50.41	39.51	32.92	0.00	15.68	11.25	7.37
13	31	29	75.03	63.47	49.22	40.55	0.00	19.15	13.75	9.10
13	31	34	88.60	75.88	58.57	48.39	0.00	23.23	16.72	11.04
· 13	31	39	101.1	88.25	69.28	58.72	0.00	29.41	21.39	14.00
13	31	45	110.6	97.34	77.36	65.72	0.00	33.49	24.01	14.51
Ø	Ø	Ø	112.5	97.76	81.00	70.17	26.87	37.58	27.68	16.14
13	31	45	116.8	99.13	85.05	73.34	53.20	38.88	28.84	17.46
13	31	39	112.7	96.15	82.72	72.55	53.61	39.95	30.06	17.56
13	31	34	104.9	90.52	78.16	68.33	50.68	37.92	28.74	17.46
13	31	29	92.56	80.43	69.89	61.64	46.54	35.24	27.21	16.17
13	31	23	79.00	68.79	60.35	53.45	40.68	31.07	24.25	14.49
13	31	18	63.22	55.67	49.29	43.90	33.97	26.25	20.99	12.31
13	31	13	48.40	43.10	38.37	34.53	27.20	21.33	17.58	9.99
13	31	7	33.74	30.37	27.17	24.73	19.93	16.04	13.30	7.62
13	31	2	23.59	21.41	19.22	17.79	14.58	12.09	10.34	5.64
13	30	57	15.73	14.51	13.39	12.33	10.18	8.55	7.58	4.45
13	30	51	10.21	9.63	8.94	8.44	7.15	5.99	5.44	3.76
13	30	46	6.11	5.92	5.55	5.34	4.52	3.85	3.50	2.47
13	30	41	3.83	3.65	3.60	3.36	2.90	2.46	2.28	1.68
13	30	35	2.34	2.31	2.22	2.12	1.89	1.60	1.46	1.08
13	30	30	0.98	0.97	1.06	1.00	1.09	0.96	0.95	0.79

* 4

1.

12

101501 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #22, Time = 1330, 183 Heliostats (cont)

13 1

101502 FILE FOR ESC FLUX DATA

	TIM	E				LUM DAIA					1. A.	•
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
13	49	47	0.45	0.57	0.87	1.22	1.36	1.25	0.53	0.74	0.86	0.71
13	49	52	1.35	1.25	1.45	1.63	1.89	2.07	1.92	2.07	1.94	1.68
13	49	58	1.69	1.44	1.74	1.83	2.20	2.47	2.38	2.51	2.33	2.07
13	50	3	1.92	1.93	2.32	2.75	3.25	3.70	3.54	3.96	3.81	3.34
13	50	8	2.71	2.70	3.38	3.97	4.72	5.53	5.40	6.18	5.87	5.49
13	50	14	3.61	3.76	4.73	5.81	7.03	8.19	8.18	9.17	9.01	8.22
13	50	19	4.40	4.72	6.28	7.75	9.34	11.35	11.43	12.95	12.84	11.83
13	50	24	6.32	6.85	9.08	11.42	13.96	17.00	17.58	19.94	19.62	18.18
13	50	30	7.68	8.78	11.99	15.60	19.25	23.73	24.66	28.00	27.43	25.46
13	50	35	11.18	13.12	18.12	23.50	28.81	34.95	36.09	40.21	38.63	35.51
13	50	40	13.33	15.63	21.89	29.21	36.58	45.35	47.93	53.86	51.82	48.20
13	50	46	18.75	22.52	31.65	41.65	51.38	62.76	65.72	73.22	70.19	65.51
13	50	51	21.85	27.15	39.00	52.02	64.47	78.26	81.73	90.83	87.24	82.26
13	50	56	26.37	32.75	46.64	61.71	75.91	91.87	95.95	105.9	100.9	95.83
13	51	2	28.40	35.45	50.67	67.83	83.89	101.1	105.4	116.2	111.4	106.3
ø	Ø	0	29.85	38.77	55.14	72.89	86.20	105.1	109.7	122.0	124.1	115.5
13	51	2	29.56	41.62	60.12	79.03	87.96	108.3	113.1	125.9	133.8	121.2
13	50	56	30.36	41.30	58.73	76.70	86.37	106.6	111.4	124.7	133.5	121.3
13	50	51	27.36	37.62	53.48	69.70	78.44	97.50	102.7	116.0	125.3	114.9
13	50	46	25.65	35.13	49.74	63.83	72.30	88.87	93.77	105.8	114.5	104.2
13	50	40	22.50	30.45	42.57	54.71	62.65	77.44	82.32	94.31	102.4	94.17
13	50	35	19.20	25.77	35.77	45.91	52.44	64.55	67.67	76.82	82.94	75.52
13	50	30	15.70	20.98	28.70	36.63	41.44	50.58	52.30	59.61	64.28	58.83
13	50	24	11.90	15.99	21.86	27.09	31.27	37.87	39.16	44.77	48.23	43.84
13	50	19	9.30	12.18	16.40	20.30	22.95	27.87	28.48	32.73	34.79	31.79
13	50	14	6.00	7.92	10.47	12.84	14.42	17.47	18.01	20.64	22.38	20.57
13	59	8	4.00	5.22	6.94	8.60	9.63	11.61	11.87	13.86	15.00	13.69
13	50	3	3.10	3.86	5.01	5.95	6.56	7.43	7.40	8.41	8.96	8.43
13	49	58	1.60	2.10	2.66	3.30	3.78	4.57	4.67	5.44	5.86	5.55
13	49	52	1.60	1.89	2.23	2.45	2.49	2.64	2.49	2.79	2.86	2.77
13	49	47	0.50	0.74	1.05	1.08	1.01	1.21	1.18	1.42	1.58	1.55

Test #22, Time = 1350, 188 Heliostats

.

٠.

1 2

x

1/ 1

	TIM	E								•
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
13	49	47	0.73	0.64	0.55	9.31	0.00	0.51	0.26	0.12
13	49	52	1.81	1.60	1.44	1.37	0.00	0.81	0.71	0.42
13	49	58	2.13	1.92	1.64	1.69	0.00	1.02	0.94	0.93
13	50	3	3.43	3.10	2.73	2.54	0.00	1.73	1.63	1.14
13	50	8	5.59	5.02	4.32	4.02	0.00	2.54	2.20	1.75
13	50	14	8.40	7.38	6.30	5.72	0.00	3.46	2.77	1.85
13	50	19	11.96	10.37	8.78	7,73	. 0.00	4.59	3.68	2.67
13	50	24	18.12	15.30	12.44	10.91	0.00	5.91	4.59	3.08
13	50	30	25.09	21.40	17.10	14.84	0.00	7.85	5.84	4.10
13	50	35	34.60	28.84	22.75	19.08	0.00	9.69	7.10	4.50
13	50	40	47.02	39.86	31.33	26.56	0.00	13.56	9.95	6.65
13	50	46	64.34	54.14	42.03	35.36	0.00	17.34	12.57	8.28
13	50	51	81.25	69.87	54.56	46.06	0.00	22.84	16.33	10.62
13	50	56	95.08	82.34	63.97	53.95	0.00	27.09	19.52	12.87
13	51	2	106.3	93.36	73.98	62.96	0.00	32.29	23.40	14.40
Ø	0	0	115.1	99.95	83.37	72.27	29.03	38.67	28.55	17.11
13	51	2	118.8	101.4	87.44	75.44	54.96	40.46	30.23	18.52
13	50	56	119.8	102.5	88.93	77.79	57.28	42.60	31.86	19.11
13	50	51	114.9	99.95	87.66	77.92	58.49	44.16	33.70	20.99
13	50	46	103.8	91.03	80.28	71.42	53.65	40.68	31.25	19.21
13	50	40	95.05	84.33	75.09	67.45	51.42	39.39	30.53	18.81
13	50	35	75.44	66.72	59.29	53.81	41.93	33.19	26.96	16.24
13	50	30	58.64	52.15	46.95	42.90	33.91	26.98	22.17	12.97
13	50	24	43.70	39.49	35.40	32.41	25.83	20.88	17.74	10.16
13	50	19	31.78	28.92	26.11	24.10	19.47	16.02	13.66	7.69
13	50	14	20.61	18.82	17.32	15.92	12.84	10.67	9.38	5.51
13	50	8	13.95	12.81	11.80	10.83	8.80	7.36	6.52	4.42
13	50	3	8.82	8.38	7.78	7.31	6.18	5.32	4.99	3.53
13	49	58	5.85	5.50	5.13	5.08	4.16	3.61	3.16	2.14
13	49	52	2.89	2.92	2.86	2.72	2.34	2.11	1.93	1.35
13	49	47	1.75	1.79	1.80	1.73	1.53	1.47	1.42	1.05

ĸ

n

٨

101502 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #22, Time = 1350, 188 Heliostats (cont)

9-1

101801 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

	TIM	я										
HR:	MI :	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	w/cm2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
13	9	1	1.17	1.42	1.77	2.10	2.61	2.49	1.87	2.41	2.47	2.14
13	9	7	1.85	1.52	1.87	2.20	2.71	3.11	3.15	3.86	3.75	3.41
13	9	12	2.41	2.29	2.74	3.22	3.97	\$.6\$	4.66	5.63	5.42	5.01
13	9	17	3.20	3.06	4.00	4.85	6.07	6.98	7.21	8.41	8.17	7.65
13	9	23	4.56	4.61	6.03	7.40	9.01	10.76	11.15	12.74	12.49	11.84
13	9	28	5.92	6.25	8.35	10.46	12.79	15.45	15.91	18.18	17.69	16.72
13	9	33	8.52	9.05	12.02	15.25	18.51	22.02	22.64	25.50	24.86	23.26
13	9	39	11.68	12.91	17.19	21.72	26.28	31.09	31.57	35.38	34.15	31.95
13	9	44	14.84	16.52	22.60	29.17	35.73	42.93	44.05	49.32	47.50	44.40
13	9	49	17.33	19.89	28 .02	37.12	46.12	55.64	57.62	64.42	61.55	57.48
13	9	55	22.35	26.17	36.72	48.55	59.94	72.06	74.44	82.67	78.67	73.62
13	10	0	25.51	30.32	43.39	58.20	72.12	87.19	91.08	101.2	96.74	91.68
13	10	5	28.00	34.37	49.93	67.99	85.03	102.4	107.4	118.9	113.5	108.5
13	10	11	31.16	38.52	55.23	75.54	94.63	113.7	119.5	131.5	125.9	121.2
13	10	16	33.53	41.61	60.08	80.74	100.5	121.0.	127.5	140.3	134.8	130.7
0	0	0	33.08	43.30	61.98	82.07	97.30	118.9	125.5	139.1	141.2	132.8
13	10	16	34.23	47.58	67.88	88.88	99.27	122.6	129.1	143.1	153.4	140.0
13	10	11	32.44	44.87	63.81	83.47	93.92	116.5	122.8	137.0	146.9	133.8
13	10	5	29.83	40.92	57.82	75.73	85.60	106.0	112.0	126.0	135.2	123.4
13	10	0	27.23	36.97	51.44	65.98	74.06	90.82	95.93	108.4	116.6	106.1
13	9	55	24.13	32.50	44.49	56.55	63.16	76.39	79.75	90.05	96.56	87.45
13	9	49	19.13	25.67	34.64	44.08	49.72	59.87	62.31	70.97	76.72	69.36
13	9	44	14.93	19.95	26.51	33.06	37.14	44.61	45.89	52.46	56.18	51.09
18	9	39	11.63	15.17	20.09	24.36	26.63	31.96	32.38	37.09	39.53	36.10
13	9	33	8.54	10.90	14.16	16.90	18.01	21.25	21.15	24.48	26.05	23.89
13	9	28	6.34	7.99	10.10	11.60	11.93	13.66	13.37	15.53	16.70	15.52
13	9	23	4.75	5.81	6.99	7.79	7.86	8.67	8.25	9.49	10.28	9.64
13	9	17	3.54	4.25	4.96	5.14	4.89	5.50	5.09	5.89	6.32	6.09
18	9	12	2.70	3.10	3.46	3.55	3.21	3.36	3.12	3.56	3.96	3.65
13	9	7	2.09	2.27	2.50	2.27	2.02	2.14	1.92	2.28	2.36	2.31
13	9	1	0.70	0.71	0.68	0.68	0.73	0.81	0.83	1.01	1.18	1.20

Test #23, Time = 1309, 213 Heliostats

ı

*

*

w 3

	TIM	Е								
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2							
13	9	1	1.71	1.44	2.59	1.73	0.00	1.12	0.68	0.43
13	9	7	3.01	2.62	2.79	2.48	0.00	1.63	1.70	1.49
13	9	12	4.74	4.11	4.02	3.64	0.00	2.24	2.27	2.11
13	9	17	7.33	6.58	6.10	5.55	0.00	3.30	3.00	2.62
13	9	23	11.54	10.11	8.97	7.88	0.00	4.52	3.92	3.23
13	9	28	16.51	14.39	12.34	10.85	0.00	6.16	5.06	4.04
13	9	33	23.10	20.06	16.80	14.67	0.00	8.09	6.42	4.66
13	9	39	31.63	27.33	22.75	19.75	0.00	10.64	8.25	5.98
13	9	44	43.79	37.78	30.68	26.33	0.00	13.70	10.30	7.10
13	9	49	56.32	48.48	38.66	33.00	0.00	16.97	12.47	8.33
13	9	55	72.41	62.17	48.67	40.81	0.00	20.13	14.63	9.45
13	10	0	91.03	78.91	61.95	52.04	0.00	25.54	18.39	11.69
13	10	5	107.8	94.32	74.28	62.64	0.00	31.15	22.27	14.65
13	10	11	121.8	107.9	85.78	72.61	0.00	36.25	26.03	17.00
13	10	16	132.3	118.0	94.60	80.92	0.00	41.20	29.79	17.20
Ø	0	0	133.5	116.9	98.01	85.41	82.25	45.81	33.92	18.24
13	10	16	138.8	118.5	103.0	90.28	65.85	48.62	35.84	20.26
13	10	11 -	133.0	114.0	99.62	87.92	64.84	48.72	36.55	19.47
13	10	5	122.0	105.6	92.63	82.34	61.71	46.80	35.74	20.36
13	10	0	105.7	92.43	81.77	73.29	55.81	42.94	33.39	18.87
13	9	55	86.75	75.80	66.83	59.78	46.21	35.88	28.39	16.10
13	9	49	68.85	60.56	53.58	48.54	38.23	30.32	24.68	14.08
13	9	44	50.20	44.74	39.84	36.27	29.24	24.01	20.19	11.21
13	9	39	35.49	32.07	29.03	26.72	22.11	18.61	16.21	9.33
13	9	33	23.75	21.87	20.02	18.78	15.55	13.48	11.93	6.66
13	9	28	15.73	14.72	13.87	13.03	10.90	9.63	8.77	5.27
13	9	23	10.14	9.68	9.16	8.81	7.57	6.74	6.32	4.08
13	9	17	6.26	5.97	5.77	5.71	4.94	4.49	4.28	3.19
13	9	12	3.87	3.81	3.76	3.73	3.43	3.10	3.06	2.30
13	9	7	2.39	2.47	2.38	2.49	2.22	2.24	2.04	1.61
13	9	1	1.36	1.33	1.32	1.25	1.11	1.17	1.01	0.82

.

101801 FILE FOR ESC FLUX DATA

٠

Test #23, Time = 1309, 213 Heliostats (cont)

E-15

٠,

102601 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

	TIM	F				I DOM DAIA						
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
12	16	10	0.41	0.18	0.33	0.49	0.49	0.64	0.80	0.74	0.74	0.72
12	16	15	0.75	0.66	0.62	0.70	0.49	0.74	1.03	1.07	1.03	1.21
12	16	21	1.09	0.95	1.01	0.60	1.54	2.88	3.28	2.51	1.52	1.30
12	16	26	1.20	1.24	1.69	2.23	2.80	3.70	4.09	4.85	4.86	4.76
12	16	31	1.66	1.82	2.56	3.45	4.27	5.33	5.71	6.73	6.63	6.22
12	16	37	2.56	2.78	3.91	5.29	6.58	8.08	8.61	9.73	9.48	9.05
12	16	42	3.58	4.04	5.75	7.94	9.94	12.47	13.02	14.84	14.68	14.03
12	16	47	4.59	5.58	8.07	11.31	14.56	18.43	19.63	22.49	22.14	21.06
12	16	53	6.52	7.90	11.84	16.65	21.32	26.89	28.80	32.82	32.06	30.43
12	16	58	7.76	10.02	15.26	21.85	28.57	36.48	39.35	45.21	44.79	42.88
12	17	3	10.24	13.59	21.07	30.12	39.49	50.11	53.58	61.19	60.01	57.23
12	17	9	11.94	16.14	25.22	36.85	48.83	62.14	67.26	76.55	75.27	72.30
12	17	14	14.31	19.42	30.45	43.99	58.55	74.89	81.11	92.54	91.28	88.60
12	17	19	16.69	22.99	35.86	51.60	68.11	86.46	93.76	106.1	104.4	101.5
12	17	25	18.43	25.50	39.92	57.31	75.35	94.72	102.5	115.6	113.6	110.9
Ø	0	0	19.91	28.33	43.43	60.40	75.51	95.40	103.2	117.2	122.0	115.6
12	17	25	20.95	31.57	48.57	66.68	78.94	99.85	107.4	121.9	133.2	122.4
12	17	19	20.84	30.63	46.33	62.86	74.68	94.96	102.5	117.2	128.8	118.5
12	17	14	20.05	28.87	42.69	57.14	67.24	85.12	92.18	106.4	117.3	107.9
12	17	9	18.55	26.20	37.87	50.19	58.62	73.60	79.10	91.66	101.6	93.72
12	17	3	17.05	23.50	33.06	43.08	50.04	61.77	65.25	75.62	83.50	76.74
12	16	58	14.94	19.86	26.96	33.86	38.84	47.53	49.82	57.70	64.45	60.09
12	16	53	12.05	15.49	20.54	25.17	28.63	34.57	36.19	42.27	47.16	43.93
12	16	47	9.14	11.54	15.15	18.17	20.61	24.27	25.29	29.44	32.93	30.61
12	16	42	6.64	8.21	10.55	12.73	14.23	16.48	16.97	19.80	22.34	21.06
12	16	37	4.25	5.20	6.69	8.06	8.58	10.36	10.54	12.65	14.48	14.03
12	16	31	2.91	3.43	4.23	4.99	5.41	6.38	6.50	7.78	9.13	8.81
12	16	26	1.90	2.07	2.63	3.08	3.23	3.83	3.78	4.60	5.49	5.48
12	16	21	1.21	1.35	1.45	1.60	2.04	2.30	2.47	2.90	3.57	3.48
12	16	15	0.90	0.93	1.02	1.07	1.24	1.59	1.49	1.84	2.18	2.15
12	16	10	0.30	0.41	0.38	0.54	0.45	0.77	0.62	0.89	1.00	1.04

Test #24, Time = 1216, 175 Heliostats

۳

4

5

*

*

57 \$

	1.1 Ц	E.						· ·	•	~
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2						
12	16	10	0.80	0.95	1.04	0.99	0.00	0.44	0.25	0.00
12	16	15	1.24	1.38	1.33	1.20	0.00	0.65	0.47	0.18
12	16	21	1.56	1.70	1.63	1.52	0.00	1.57	1.04	0.69
12	16	26	4.91	4.48	3.85	3.43	0.00	2.18	1.73	1.30
12	16	31	6.42	5.66	4.84	4.17	0.00	2.48	2.00	1.51
12	16	37	9.23	8.01	6.53	5.76	0.00	3.34	2.80	2.12
12	16	42	14.09	11.97	9.80	8.62	0.00	5.07	4.28	3.34
12	16	47	21.32	18.39	14.85	12.97	0.00	7.42	5.99	4.36
12	16	53	30.61	26.63	21.29	18.38	0.00	9,97	• 7.70	5.28
12	16	58	43.31	37.93	30.61	26.11	0.00	13.85	10.32	6.91
12	17	3	57.46	50.23	39.68	33.85	0.00	17.52	12.72	8.14
12	17	9	73.34	65.00	52.17	44.83	0.00	23.43	16.94	10.99
12	17	14	90.01	79.81	63.96	54.58	0.00	28.13	20.36	13.85
12	17	19	102.9	92.11	73.81	63.49	0.00	32.92	23.55	15.79
12	17	25	112.6	101.2	81.54	70.06	0.00	36.49	26.17	15.18
0	0	0	116.2	102.8	86.72	75.51	29.15	40.61	29.72	16.45
12	17	25	121.2	104.2	90.73	79.26	57.63	42.39	31.45	18.84
12	17	19	117.8	102.0	89.67	78.88	58.13	43.24	32.17	18.15
12	17	14	108.Q	94.57	83.52	74.05	55.40	41.64	31.35	19.14
12	17	9	94.05	82.89	73.83	66.24	50.25	38.22	29.21	17.76
12	17	3	76.95	68.37	60.80	54.63	41.77	32.01	24.88	14.88
12	16	58	60.76	54.77	48.82	44.34	33.99	26.23	20.40	12.17
12	16	53	44.73	40.80	36.78	33.30	26.05	20.52	16.52	9.80
12	16	47	31.50	29.37	26.81	24.37	19.49	15.60	12.95	8.01
12	16	42	22.16	20.62	18.76	17.06	13.43	10.78	8.97	5.44
12	16	37	15.04	14.60	13.35	12.17	9.69	7.89	6.63	4.15
12	16	31	9.57	9.24	8.64	8.08	6.66	5.64	4.89	3.26
12	16	26	6.04	5.95	5.57	5.10	4.34	3.72	3.36	2.47
12	16	21	3.87	3.79	3.56	3.37	2.92	2.65	2.24	1.78
12	16	15	2.28	2.34	2.28	2.13	1.81	1.69	1.42	1.18
12	16	10	1.13	1.21	1.22	1.26	1.11	1.15	1.01	0.79

102601 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #24, Time = 1216, 175 Heliostats (cont)

1.1

106901 FILE FOR ESC FLUX DATA

	TIM	F										
HR:	MI:	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2						
11	45	32	0.19	0.29	0.31	0.44	0.58	0.58	0.37	0.34	0.55	0.42
11	45	38	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.04	0.48	0.68	0.71	1.23	1.24	1.40
11	45	43	0.53	0.58	0.70	0.85	1.21	1.29	1.87	2.67	2.72	1.99
11	45	49	0.75	0.78	1.09	1.36	2.37	2.92	2.92	3.11	2.72	2.28
11	45	54	1.09	1.26	1.57	2.18	3.10	3.64	3.73	4.00	3.70	3.25
11	46	Ø	1.66	1.84	2.63	3.50	4.57	5.57	5.82	6.33	5.76	5.30
11	46	5	2.56	3.00	4.18	5.75	7.51	8.94	9.41	10.11	9.39	8.62
11	46	11	3.80	4.44	6.31	8.60	11.19	13.63	14.29	15.55	14.60	13.31
11	46	16	5.39	6.47	9.40	13.09	17.11	21.02	22.17	23.98	22.61	20.73
11	46	22	7.87	9.56	14.05	19.46	25.30	30.91	32.80	35.70	33.81	31.03
11	46	27	10.92	13.32	19.31	26.70	34.23	42.44	45.21	49.25	46.87	43.62
11	46	33	14.20	17.61	25.69	35.47	45.36	55.76	59.41	64.61	62.03	58.30
11	46	38	17.97	22.33	32.36	44.14	56.23	69.73	74.84	81.48	78.19	74.21
11	46	44	21.82	26.39	37.87	51.65	65.79	81.67	88.02	96.09	92.23	88.13
11	46	49	25.09	30.83	44.16	59.91	75.97	93.23	100.5	108.8	104.2	99.68
0	0	Ø	27.47	35.16	50.73	67.37	81.31	100.0	107.6	117.9	120.5	112.1
11	46	49	29.15	38.85	57.06	74.63	84.71	104.0	110.3	123.1	131.4	118.5
11	46	44	28.85	38.23	55.67	72.72	83.62	103.2	110.4	122.8	132.5	120.2
11	46	38	27.95	36.87	54.49	70.60	80.74	99.29	106.0	119.2	128.1	115.6
11	46	33	26.65	35.00	51.49	66.74	75.69	92.36	98.12	109.8	117.6	105.2
11	46	27	22.49	29.39	43.04	55.51	63.50	77.81	82.14	92.96	100.2	90.18
11	46	22	19.69	25.54	37.09	47.24	53.75	64.86	67.81	76.32	81.71	73.31
11	46	16	16.19	20.86	30.03	37.95	43.34	51.96	53.75	60.58	64.33	57.73
11	46	11	12.19	15.66	22.33	27.99	31.98	38.44	39.63	44.68	47.64	42.63
11	46	5	9.19	11.64	16.44	20.25	22.87	27.22	27.86 .	31.58	33.45	29.80
11	46	Ø	6.69	8.32	11.48	13.79	15.43	13.24	18.92	21.83	23.18	20.76
11	45	54	4.49	5.61	7.52	9.08	10.14	12.18	12.44	14.52	15.69	14.04
11	45	49	2.99	3.53	4.95	5.79	6.58	7.80	7.86	9.07	9.76	9.00
11	45	43	1.79	2.07	2.81	3.25	4.00	4.43	4.81	5.36	6.13	5.56
11	45	38	1.09	1.24	1.85	2.19	2.31	2.80	2.74	3.24	3.45	3.34
11	45	32	0.69	0.72	1.10	1.13	1.52	1.58	1.65	1.86	2.17	2.00

Test #34, Time = 1145, 161 Heliostats

۲

۲

ĸ

.

٠

· •

	TIM	E								
HR:	MI :	SE:	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2	W/CM2
11	45	32	0.72	0.64	0.5.1	0.34	0.00	0.10	0.09	0.14
11	45	38	1.15	0.85	0.61	0.45	0.00	0.30	0.09	0.14
11	45	43	1.47	1.17	1.01	0.87	0.00	0.40	0.31	0.14
11	45	49	2.01	1.60	1.30	1.40	0.00	0.61	0.43	0.24
11	45	54	3.20	2.67	2.10	1.93	0.00	1.02	0.77	0.75
11	46	0	5.04	4.17	3.09	2.68	0.00	1.42	1.11	0.85
11	46	5	8.06	6.63	5.07	4.27	0.00	2.14	1.80	1.36
11	46	11	12.71	10.48	8.14	6.70	0.00	3.36	2.71	2.18
11	46	16	19.73	16.26	12.50	10.31	0.00	5.20	4.08	3.10
11	46	22	29.51	24.35	18.55	14.97	0.00	7.34	5.56	4.01
11	46	27	42.15	35.58	27.23	22.07	0.00	10.50	7.50	4.83
11	46	33	56.66	48.00	36.54	29.88	0.00	14.17	10.00	6.77
11	46	38	72.97	62.48	48.04	39.20	0.00	18.25	12.74	8.50
11	46	44	87.62	76.46	59.38	49.06	0.00	23.05	15.93	10.34
11	46	49	99.39	86.94	67.40	56.21	0.00	27.29	18.78	10.64
0	0	. 0	111.3	95.30	77.74	65.71	25.41	33.04	23.31	13.38
11	46	49	116.3	97.41	82.72	69.19	47.47	34.38	24.72	15.08
11	46	44	118.6	99.47	84.73	71.91	49.99	36.63	26.35	15.78
11	46	38	114.4	96.18	82.29	70.30	48.88	36.10	26.35	16.27
11	46	33	103.3	86.84	74.45	63.61	45.24	34.28	25.43	15.58
11	46	27	89.30	76.13	65.97	57.16	41.30	31.82	24.01	14.79
11	46	22	73.00	63.11	55.12	47.73	34.90	27.00	20.40	12.21
11	46	16	57.45	49.52	43.14	37.86	28.23	22.29	17.23	10.43
11	46	11	42.45	36.58	32.11	28.56	21.77	17.48	13.87	8.81
11	46	5	29.45	05,97	<u>00</u> .03	20.38	15.61	12.84	10.40	6.53
11	46	0	್ಷೇ ಎಂಂ	18.04	15.02	14.18	11.00	8.98	7.44	4.85
11	45	54 -	14.29	12.89	11.59	10.34	8.28	6.84	5.71	3.86
11	45	49	9.34	8.52	7.56	6.94	5.35	4.38	3.67	2.57
11	45	43	5.92	5.64	5.02	4.58	3.53	2.99	2.55	1.88
11	45	38	3.53	3.48	3.18	3.10	2.42	2.24	1.83	1.38
11	45	32	2.28	2.24	2.22	2.23	1.81	1.60	1.32	0.89

ĩ

۶

106901 FILE FOR ESG FLUX DATA

Test #34, Time = 1145, 161 Heliostats (cont)

,

APPENDIX F

ASSEMBLY DRAWINGS

APPENDIX F

ASSEMBLY DRAWINGS

N001000399 Panel Assembly - Solar Receiver Test
N001000397 (two sheets) Test Fixture, Solar Panel
N001000425 Fitting, Manifold - Solar Panel
N001000426 Solar Panel to Test Fixture, and Insulation Assembly
N01000426 Heater Installation Details
N001000427 Solar Panel Test Fixture to Sodium Loop Assembly
APPENDIX G

CONTROLS AND INSTRUMENTATION DESIGN FOR 2.5-MW SODIUM-COOLED RECEIVER PANEL

Rockwell Internation	nal				5	
GO NO. S/A N	0. PA	GE 1 OF 28	TOTAL PAG	ES	REV LTR/CHG NO	NUMBER
09419 12	000			8	0	05011000005
PROGRAM TITLE Sodium Coo	led Sola	r Receiver	Panel			
Controls a	nd Instr	umentatior	Design for	2.5 MW	Sodium Coole	d Receiver Panel
DOCUMENT TYPE				KEY NO	UNS	
Technical	Informat	ion		Contr Recei	ols, Instrume ver Panel	ntation, Sodium Coo
ORIGINAL ISSUE DAT	E	REL DATE		APPROV	ALS Mun	DATE 6 - 76 -
PREPARED BY/DATE W. Hunter		DEPT 731-140	MAIL ADDR JB07			
F. Leto F#	6/26/21	731-140	JB07			
IR&D PROGRAM? YE						
DISTR	IBUTION	MAIL	ABSTRACT			· · ··· - ···
 * W. Hunter * F. Leto * R. Mucica * T. Nakae * T. Johnson * B. Katz 		JB07 JB07 JB10 LA19 LA19	tation syst receiver particular Albuquerque of the cont the support design. The system temperature 25°F with a	tem des anel to e, N.M. trol sy ting ar desigr e at th a nomir	igned for the be tested at Included he vstem, the met alysis perfor predicts con be panel exit al panel inle	2.5 MW sodium cool the Sandia CRTR in rein is a descript hod of operation an med to confirm the trol of the sodium manifold of 1100 ± t temperature of 55
			RESERVED FOR F	ROPRIET	ARY/LEGAL NOTICE	S

-

×

بىرى ئەمىرىرى ر

•

•



NO	•	050T1000005
PAGE		2

Page

CONTENTS

1.0	Inti	roduction	3								
2.0) Sodium Receiver Panel Controls and Instrumentation										
3.0	Sod	ium Receiver Panel Control Analysis	9								
	Α.	Analysis Objectives	9								
	Β.	Scope	9								
4.0	Disc	Discussion									
	Α.	Process System Description	כ								
	Β.	Panel Control System Operation)								
	С.	Control System Requirements	כ								
	D.	Simulation Model and Assumptions	2								
	Е.	Results	ł								
Apper	ndix	A — Sodium Receiver Panel Program Listing)								

FIGURES

,

1.	EI&C Control Logic	5
2.	Sodium Receiver Panel Instrumentation	6
3.	Control Analysis Block Diagram	1
4.	CSMP Model Nodes 1	3
5.	Sodium Outlet Temperature vs Solar Flux	5
6.	Loss of Flow With Heliostat Scram	7
7.	Loss of One Flux Sensor	3
8.	Inlet Sodium Temperature Ramp	9



NO . 050T1000005 PAGE . 3

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report documents the controls and instrumentation design of a 2.5 MW Sodium Cooled Solar Receiver Panel. Included are the specific controls and instrumentation used for the control of the sodium temperature through the panel and the supporting analysis that was performed to substantiate this part of the receiver design.

Analytical confirmation of the design will be required when the model of the receiver is integrated with the overall sodium loop. This analysis will be performed by the technical personnel of Sandia National Laboratories located at the Central Receiving Test Facility in Albuquerque, N.M.

Sufficient versatility has been designed into the control system to allow changes to be made, if required, after the ESG supplied receiver panel and controls are installed and operated at the CRTF.



NO . 050TI000005 PAGE . 4

2. SODIUM RECEIVER PANEL CONTROLS AND INSTRUMENTATION

The ESG test article (solar receiver panel assembly) EI&C control panel contains the controllers, switches, indicators and logic to control the test article subpanel inlet flow control valves. The operator can set the controllers for local manual or automatic valve operation. The valves can be manually or computer controlled from the main control room when the controllers are set in the remote mode. Figure 2.11 shows the logic employed in the valve control system.

The logic diagram shows the scram signals which will be sent to the facility system as well as the facility-generated scram signals for valve control. These signals are (1) the high temperature limit alarms on the outlet thermocouples indicating excessive outlet sodium temperature, (2) high differential temperature between the inlet and outlet sodium temperatures, (3) the condition of any of the inlet valves going closed when insolation is impinging on the absorber panel, (4) the loss of two or more of the flux sensors (computer programmed) and the loss of the flux signal (due to conditioning instrument failure as detected by the signal voltage dropping below the zero insolation level).

The Figure 2.10 P&ID shows the instrumentation for the above. It also shows the heater thermocouples and a typical heater. The heater thermocouples are not controlled via the ESG control panel.

The controllers utilized in the ESG control panel are a microprocessorbased design. They can be switched from local control to remote control. A second set of set points can be utilized at the remote (main computer room) control point. The controllers receive their temperature signal from immersion type thermocouple located in each outlet duct of the abosrber sub-panel. These thermocouples are 0.125 diameter ungrounded junction type which are reduced to 0.060 inch diameter for faster response.





G-8

and a second second



Rockwell International Energy Systems Group

.

NO . 050TI000005 PAGE . 7

The controllers also have provision for receiving a feed-foreward signal input as illustrated on the Figure 2.11 logic diagram. This allows the controller to be used as a manual valve controller when set in the Manual mode and to be switched back to Automatic mode without having to separately adjust for the feed foreward signal. It provides for bumpless transfer.

The absorber panel flux sensors are the water-cooled type. The cooling water passages employ 1/4-in. tube lines and 0.100 diameter minimum water passages within the sensor proper. The passages are large enough to assure there will be no cooling water blockage due to contaminant buildup.

Each of the receiver subpanels has 14 0.060-in.-diameter underground junction thermocouples strapped to the back of the absorber panel tubes with spotwelded clips. These are shown on the Figure 2.10 P&ID. The signals are not displayed on the ESG control panel but are multiplexed data channels. One centrally located back-of-tube thermocouple in each absorber subpanel is also brazed to the tube and will possibly be tested as a substitute for the flux sensors. Present indications, however, are that the time response will be too slow.

Three front-of-tube thermocouples, which would have sufficiently fast response, are to also be tested. These are 0.030 in. diameter ungrounded junction Inconel stainless steel-sheathed units which are heat-sinked to the receiver panel tubes to prevent their experiencing excessive temperatures. These will be tested to determine the feasibility of using thermocouples as indicators of solar flux changes and to assess their reliability.

A magnetic flowmeter is provided in each of the absorber subpanels to measure sodium flow rate. The signal is not used for control but is a multiplexed data channel and is also displayed on the ESG control panel. A thermocouple is provided for each of the flow meters to measure flowmeter permanent magnet temperature to correct the magnet temperature-related signal error.



NO . 050TI000005 PAGE . 8

The center absorber subpanel has three deflection sensors from which the signals are fed to the main computer for recording. These are not displayed on the ESG panel.

The value position signal is a multiplexed signal channel and is also displayed on the ESG control panel. The value Open-Closed lights for these values are also displayed on line ESG control panel.



NO . 050TI000005

PAGE . 9

3.0 SODIUM RECEIVER PANEL CONTROL ANALYSIS

A. ANALYSIS OBJECTIVES

In support of the 2.5 MW sodium solar panel tests to be conducted at Sandia Laboratories, an analysis was conducted of the panel temperature control system.

B. SCOPE

This analysis considered only the panel temperature control loop. This entailed modeling the panel and its related variables (heat transfer, etc.) as well as the sodium loop hydraulics and associated control system.



NO . 050T1000005 PAGE . 10

4.0 DISCUSSION

A. PROCESS SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

The test panel consists of three panels, each consisting of 21, 3/4-in. tubes, operating in parallel. Flow is admitted to the three panels through an inlet manifold assembly and the flow to each of the three panels can be monitored and modulated by P-M flowmeters and bellows seal throttle valves. The panel "solar window" consists of a heat transfer section 118 in. in length. The exit manifold contains an immersed control thermocouple located 72 in. above the "window".

The hydraulic loop (in a closed loop configuration) is powered by an E-M pump which provides flow through the elevated panel and expansion tank, back to grade through an air blast heat exchanger (cooler) and back to the pump.

B. PANEL CONTROL SYSTEM OPERATION

The primary control requirement is that the panel exit sodium temperature be held constant $(1100 \pm 25^{\circ}F)$. As there is a direct relationship between the solar flux available to the panel and the required flow to achieve a given set of operating conditions, solar flux is used as the primary master signal in a feed foreward configuration. Panel exit sodium temperature is then processed through a controller (TIC) and used as a trim to this master. The resulting summed signal is then used to modulate the sodium inlet valve. A diagram of the system is shown in Figure 3.

C. CONTROL SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

- Control panel(s) outlet sodium temperature to 1100 ± 25°F at full load
- 2) Nominal panel inlet temperature: +550°F Maximum panel inlet temperature: +700°F



NO. 050TI000005 Page 11



NO . 050TI000005 PAGE . 12

3)	Maximum &T (inlet to outlet)	+650°F
4)	Minimum L T	+200°F
5)	Regulating Range (flow)	+25 to 100%
6)	Maximum ∆T rate	+550°F in 10 sec
7)	Temperature Trip	1200°F

D. SIMULATION MODEL AND ASSUMPTIONS

The panel thermal model essentially consists of four thermal nodes in each panel and an output manifold mixing node (shown in Figure 4). The equations are derived in Appendix L of ESG report 79-2, Vol II, Book 2 "Conceptual Design of Advanced Central Receiver Power Systems". The control system was simulated using the information contained in Figure 1 and standard control algorithms. The "Hydraulic loop was modeled using calculated, friction and inertia losses for the panel and steady state friction losses only for the rest of the loop. Variable transport delays were used to characterize the flow through the panel. The expansion tank, DHX, thermal action of the sodium piping or the pump dynamics were not simulated in this model.

The following assumptions were made:

- Spatially constant flux distribution. The effects of varying panel flux distributions were not considered.
- 2) Constant inlet temperature: +550°F
- 3) Simplified E-M pump model. Only the H-Q curve was modeled.
- 4) No dump heat exchanger
- 5) Only panel fluid inertia was modeled
- 6) Complete loop static friction loss was simulated.

A program listing is provided in Appendix A in this report.

NO. 050**TI000005** Page 13



FIGURE 4



NO . 050TI000005 PAGE . 14

E. RESULTS

1. Stability at High and Low Flux

Initial runs were made to evaluate the need for a flux feed forward signal. Flux changes of 10% per second (cloud transient) produced excursions of several hundred degrees so the feed forward system was implemented. Set point and load changes were used to establish acceptable TIC gains; the limiting condition being the low flux, low flow, long transport delay-relationship.

2. Feed Forward Characterization

The feed forward loop was characterized by plotting the steady-state relationship between input flux and sodium valve position. This resulted in a linear curve fit that did not go through zero. Hence the "fudge" term in Figure 3. Additionally, provisions for lead-lag compensation were included.

It should be noted that this characterization of the feed-forward loop only applies to a given system resistance drop and pump pressure (voltage). Significant changes in either will require the generation of a new feed-forward gain. This requirement can be eliminated if individual flow control loops are provided for each subpanel. This would probably be desirable on a commercial plant but were thought not to be required to demonstrate controllability in this test series.

3. Solar Flux Ramps

On the advice of Sandia, these were characterized as linear ramps (up and down) of 10% per second. Figures 5 and 6 show typical results for ramps to 40% flux (where the control remains active) and to 0% (where the valve goes to 25% open limit). In the former it can be seen that the $\pm 25^{0}$ F control range has not been exceeded. In Figure 6, however, the outlet temperature will decay to inlet temperature with decay to inlet temperature if the cloud transient is long enough. It is likely, at this point, that prescribed course of action will be to defocus



DIETZGEN CORPORATION HADE IN U.S.A.

ND. 340R-20 DIETZGEN GRAPH PAPER 20 x 20 PER INCH



<u>NO.</u>

050TI000005



NO 050TI000005 PAGE 17

the mirrors until flux is against established and slowly refocus with the control on manual. An alternate approach would be to incorporate a TIC closed valve position stop which would result in the undamped response shown in Figure 6.

4. Loss of Flow and Heliostat Scram

This transient was simulated by stepping the pump discharge pressure to zero (no pump dynamics) followed by a defocusing of the mirrors 2 sec later. The defocusing was assumed to have a time constant of 0.5 sec (see Figure 7).

The result of this transient was a rapid drop in sodium flow which accounts for the initial rise in the wall temperature to 1243°F. However the rapid defocusing results in the turnaround at 4 sec. The sodium flow is essentially stagnant 2 sec into the transient and the sodium outlet temperature remains constant.

5. Loss of One Flux Sensor

This transient simulated the loss of one of the three feed-foreward loop flux sensors. A peak wall temperature of 1235°F resulted and was considered to be within acceptable limits. See Figure 8. Loss of two sensors results in wall temperatures of 1440°F and is not acceptable.

6. Inlet Temperature Ramps

This transient was simulated by imposing a $-2^{\circ}F$ per second inlet sodium ramp followed by a (+) per second ramp, each for 15 sec. This resulted in only a $-8^{\circ}F$ excursion in outlet sodium temperature. See Figure 9.









Rockwell International Energy Systems Group

NO . PAGE . 21

APPENDIX A

SODIUM RECEIVER PANEL PROGRAM LISTING

NO. 050TI000005 Page 22 00004 15 ON CR00020 USING 00070 BLKS! R=0180. 1,L PROGRAM CSMPD(3,99), SOLAR PANEL CONTROL SYSTEM SIMULATION. С C THIS PROGRAM SIMULATES THE SOLAR PANEL CONTROL SYSTEM. С INTEGRATION METHODS AVAILABLE: Ç METHOD=1 -- EULER INTEGRATION Ċ С METHOD=2 -- TRAPIZOIDAL INTEGRATION METHOD=3 -- ADAMS-MOULTON INTEGRATION С С FUNCTIONS AVAILABLE: C С INTGL(INITIAL VALUE, DERIVATIVE) REALP(INITIAL VALUE, TIME CONSTANT, INPUT) C STEP(TIME OF OCCURANCE) С INSW(COIL VARIABLE, INPUT 1, INPUT 2) С LIMIT(LOWER, UPPER, INPUT) С AFGEN(FUNCTION, INPUT, # OF POINTS) С NAND(INPUT 1, INPUT 2)-REAL NOT AND С FIOR (INPUT 1, INPUT 2)-REAL INCLUSIVE OR С DERIV(INITIAL VALUE, VARIABLE) С DELAY(# OF INCREMENTS, DELAY TIME, VARIABLE) C RUNAV(# OF INCREMENTS, AVG TIME, VARIABLE) С PSHLD(SAMPLE PERIOD, VARIABLE) С PLOT1(V1,V2,V3,V4,V5) С C THE LIMITS ON THE FUNCTION UTILIZATIONS ARE: С 1) INTGL + REALP = 100 PER SIMULATION С 1 2) STEP, LIMIT, AND AFGEN = NO LIMIT PER SIMULATION С ÷. 3) INSW = 25 PER SIMULATION С ÷ ' 4) NAND = 25 PER SIMULATION С ÷ 1 : ' 5) FIOR = 25 PER SIMULATION С 6) DERIV = 20 PER SIMULATION C 7) DELAY + RUNAV = 10 PER SIMULATION С С 3 <= # OF INCREMENTS <= 100 8) PSHLD =10 PER SIMULATION С 9) PLOT = 1001 POINTS PER PLOT С 5 PLOTS PER GRAPH С **10 GRAPHS PER SIMULATION** С С CSMP COMMON. COMMON /CSMP0/ TIME, DELT, FINTIM, PRDEL, ACC, METHOD, CSMPR(800) REAL INSW, LIMIT, NAND, INTGL DOUBLE PRECISION NAMEO(5), NAME1(5), NAME2(5), NAME3(5), NAME4(5) DOUBLE PRECISION NAMES(5), NAME6(5), NAME7(5), NAME8(5), NAME9(5) DOUBLE PRECISION TITLE(20) USER VARIABLES. REAL LBSGPM, DTMAN(3), DTAO(3), TCI(3), TOUT(3), SUMO(3), PSUMO(3), CV(3) REAL XCV(26), HANR(3,4), TUP(3,4), TNRO(3), TIN(3), ETAO(3) REAL KFH(3), PLOGA(3), TNR(3,4), QI(3,4), QA(3,4), CP(3,4) REAL TRW(3,4),KFHC(3),IR(3),RHO(3,4),VPI(3),WNR(3),DTRW(3,4)

1

1

							I F	NO. 05010	100000	5
							0.01/71	rage LJ	- / - \	
059		REAL DIN	NR(3,4),DWN (7),TES(3),	R(3),W FS(3).	NRA (5), FI	H (5) , U N & T (3)	TMAN(3)	JII(5)/WA	1 (3) TCD (3))
161		REAL FEG	G(3), QDO(3,	4),TAU	101(3),FU	DGE (3)	BIAS(3)	FFTEMP(3)	,
62		REAL VAL	LVE0(3)					• • • •	- •	
53	C									
,4	C	USER DAT	TA FUNCTION	S .						
5	C			6 E 0 B	FUNCTION	CENER				
6 7	L		V/-1 = 30 = 0	3 FUR .0.30.	-0-1-28-	9.0.2.	24.8.0.1	5.14.9.0.	4.8.6	
8		1 0.5.5	7,0.6,4.4,	0.7,2.	4,0.8,1.0	6,0.9,	1.0,1.0,	0.1,2.0,	0.1/	•
- -	С	DATA SUN	W./0.25.0/,W	NRR/1.	1200/					
	C	DATA TNF	R/3*695.17,	3*836.	47,3*971	.92,3*	1100.00/	/		
	C	DATA SUN	N0/200.0/,W	NRR/1.	8685/	00 7+	1100 000			
	C C	DATA INF	K/3×073.0000 No/300 0/.W	3×034. NRR/2	8663/	• UU # 5 *	1100.00/			
) . 	с r	DATA JUP	R/3*688.50.	3*827.	50,3*965.	.00,3*	1100.00/	,		•
, ;	č	DATA SUN	N0/400.0/.W	NRR/3.	8398/					
1	C	DATA TNP	R/3*687.88,	3*826.	13,3*963.	.69,3*	1100.0/			
		DATA SUN	N0/500.0/,W	NRR/4.	8623/					
3		DATA TNP	R/3*687.53,	3*825.	70,3*963	,55,3*	1100.00/	•		
9 n		DATA IMA	AN/5#1100.0 /3+1100 00/	07						
, .		DATA WNF	R/3*1.0000/							
2		DATA VAL	LVE0/.62575	,.6239	4,.62575	/				
5		DATA FUI	DGE/3×-0.05	500/						ي دي هرينه
4	-	DEN(T)=	59.566-(7.9	504E-3	+(2.872E-	-7-6.0	35E+11*1	`)*T)*T		6
5	С	NAMES OF	F VARIABLES		PLUTIED,				,	
5 7			ME1/6HSUN=2	,6HT	WALL 6HT	NA .	6HFLOW	6HVALVE	1	
		DATA NAM	ME2/6H	,6H -	,6H		6H	,6H	1	
		DATA NAM	ME3/6H	,6H	, 6H	•	6H	,6H	1	
		DATA NAM	ME4/6H	, 6H	, 6H		6H	,6H	1	
		DATA NAM	ME5/6H	,6H	,6H	•	6H	,6H		
		DATA NAM	ME6/6H ME7/6H	,6H	, 64	,	611 4 H	, 011 . 6H	/	
		DATA NAM	ME8/6H	•6H	, 6H		6H	, 6H	,	
		DATA NAM	ME9/6H	, 6H	,6H		6H	,6H	1	
		DATA TIT	TLE/6H	,6H	, 6H		6H	, 6H	,	
		*	6H	,6H	, 6H	•	6H	,6H	9 ×	
	•	*	6H	,6H	,6H	•	6H	,6H	•	
	C	*	6H	.,011.	, 64	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	0 M	,01	/	
	ι Γ		NSTANTS.							
	c	DOLIN CON				,				
	-	TIME=0.0	0							
		FINTIM=1	100.0	/						
		DELT=0.(010	1						
		PRDEL=0.	• 5							
		METHOD=2	2							
; }	С	PUT IN	THE REST OF	YOUR	CONSTANTS	S HERE				
0	-	TAU500=4	4.8623*1.5							
l		TI=550.(0							
2		HFA=5.50	6E-4							
5		TA=60.0	45085-13	·						
4		AOKA=1.4 TG=(TA+4	43705 416 460,01**4							
6		TS=TG								•
7		ALPHA=0	.95		G-25	·····		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
8		WCPTW=2.	•51							

ź

.

0119		DTUBE=0.05208
0120		CBTUS=948.06
0121		ALCBTU=ALPHA+CBTUS
0122		VOL=0.1198
0123		VOLIH=2.304
0124		VOLOH=1.334
0125		AFL0=0.0478
0126		ENRT=9.84
0120		EDIT=17 23
0127		
0120		CND0-7/ 17
0129		ENRU-34.13
0130		
0131		SINF1=144.0
0132		LBSGPM=7.1928
0133		ELRST=37.8
0134		TASP=1100.0
0135		TNRV=TI
0136		TNRM=TI
0137		TNRI=TI
0138		AREEF=0.9
0139		KFH=1.4/4.84**2
0140		KEH(2)=1-1/4-84**2
01/1		KFH(3) = 1 - 4/4 - 84 + + 2
0141		
0142		
01439		
0144		PLUGA(C)=0.10
0145		PLUGA(3)=0.145
0146		TAU1C=0.28
0147		CPM=0.3
0148		RHOI=DEN(TI)
0149		SPG=RHOI/62.4
0150		PS0H=30.5
0151		QTMAX=300.0
0152		QTMAX2=1.0/(QTMAX*QTMAX)
0153		FLOK=24.0/(175.0*175.0)
0154	•	QT=3.0*WNRR*448.8/RHOI
0155		T0+T0=ST0
0156		PORT=PSOH*(1.0-QT2*QTMAX2)-FLOK*QT2
0157		- DO 300 T=1.3
0158		TR(T)=PLOGA(T)+WNRR
0150		ATT-WNDD+LBSCDM/SDC
0139		DDCV(I)=DDDI_KEU(I)+WNDD+WNDD
0160		
0161		UV(I)=UII*SUR+(SPG/DFUV(I))
0162		
0163	100	IF (XUV(J+1)-LI-UV(1)) GO TO 200
0164		J=J-2
0165		IF(J.GT.1) GO TO 100
0166	500	<pre>VPI(I)=xCV(J-2)+(CV(I)-xCV(J-1))*(xCV(J)-xCV(J-2))/(xCV(J+1)-</pre>
0167		1 XCV(J-1))
0168		DO 300 J=1,4
0169		QDO(I,J)=2.5/12.0/AREEF*SUN0/500.0
0170		QI(I,J)=QDO(I,J)*CBTUS*AREEF
0171		QAI(I)=QAI(I)+QI(I,J)+ALPHA
0172	300	CONTINUE
0173	200	DAF=DTUBE/AFLO
017/		
01/4 017E		
0170		
01/6		UU 4VV J-174 RALL CORECTRAE AR WHER THE THE CRITE IN HERE THE
0177		CALL SUULU($DAF + AU + KNKK + INK(I, J) + CP(I, J)$, HANR(I, J)
0178		TRW(1,J)=TNR(1,J)+Q1(I,J)/HANR(I,J)

NO. 050T1000005 Page 25

QCR = HFA + AR + (TRW(I, J) - TA)) TR = (TRW(I, J) + 460.0) * * 4'QR=ASRA*(TRW4-TG) 1 GA(I,J)=QI(I,J)*ALPHA-QR-QCR ڊ QAI(I) = QAI(I) + QA(I,J)3 400 CONTINUE ı SNAR=DEN(TNRV) 5 SPG=SNAR/62.4 5 SNAR44=448.8/SNAR 1 **TPK=2.0** 3 TIK=0.01 3 0 TDK=0.0TLL=0.0 1 TUL=12.0 ς DO 410 I=1,33 BIAS(I)=8.0+16.0*FUDGE(I) 1 FFG(I)=VALVEO(I)+FUDGE(I) 5 410 P1=1000.0 5 P2=P1/10.0 1 CONTG=1.0 3 TILL=TLL+0.01 2 TIUL=TUL-0.01 0 TCI0=8.0 1 2 C -3 £********************** ******* С 4 С CSMP PROGRAM COMMANDS. 5 С 6 9901 ICSMP1=-1 7 CALL CSMP1(ICSMP1, ICSMP2) 9902 8 9 9903 CONTINUE 0 _____ 1 C-DYNAMIC SECTION OF USER PROGRAM. С 2 С . 3 RAMP=(STEP(0.0)-STEP(10.0)-STEP(50.0)+STEP(60.0))/10.0 4 SUN=SUN0*LIMIT(0.0,1.0,1.0-INTGL(0.0,RAMP)) - 5 С SUN=SUN0*(1.0-0.1*STEP(10.0)) 6 . 7 CLOUD=STEP(1.0)-STEP(51.0)C SUN=SUN0*(1.0-REALP(0.0,10.0,CLOUD)) С 8 PSOH=30.5*(1.0-STEP(1.0)) 9 C С SUN=SUN0*(1.0-REALP(0.0,0.50,STEP(3.0))) 0 1 C SUN=SUN0 TTTTT=DELAY(20,2.00,TIN(2)) S С С IF (SCRAM.GT.0.5) SCRAM=INSW(TTTTT-1225.0,1.0,0.0) ÷3 • 4 С SUN=SUN0*SCRAM 5 RSUN=SUN/SUN0 Q1=0.02*REALP(SUN,0.025,SUN) 6 $FAVE=1.6 \times REALP(Q1, 0.05, Q1)$:7 DO 500 I=1,2 8 DO 500 J=1,4 .9 : 0 RHO(I,J) = DEN(TNR(I,J))TRW4 = (TRW(I, J) + 460, 0) * * 4-1 QL = HFA + (TRW(I, J) - TA) + ASRA + (TRW4 - TG)· 2 $QD(I,J) = QDO(I,J) \times RSUN$ 53 < 4 QA(I,J) = QD(I,J) + ALCBTU-QL500 ;5 CONTINUE $DTNRV = -2.0 \times (1.0 - 2.0 \times STEP(15.0) + STEP(30.0))$ 6 С 57 С _____TNRV=INIGL(INRV,DINRV) 38 С TAUD0=TAU500/(WNRA+0.001) G-27

NO. 050T1000005 Page 26

0239	C	TNRM=DELAY(20, TAUDO, TNRV)
0240	Ũ	DT=(2.0*WNR+WNR(2))*WNRR*SNAR44
0241		
0242		PELO=PSOH*(1_0+QT2*QTMAX2)+FLOK*QT2
0242		DINRI=WNR(1)*WNRR*(INRM-INRI)/VOL/RHO(1,1)/CP(1,1)
0243	4	TNRI=INTGI (INRI,DINRI)
0245	-	DO 800 I=1.2
0245 02/14		WNRA(T) = WNR(T) + WNRR
0240		
		107(177) = 1.4
0240		TE(1,1,1,2) GO TO 600
0247		$T_{III}(J_{I}, I) = T_{III}(I_{I}, J = 1)$
	600	$\nabla T N P (T, T) = W N P A (T) + C P (T, T) + (T) P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + H A N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) + (T) P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + H A N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) = T N P (T, T) + C P (T, T) = T N P $
	000	1 (TPW(T, I) = TNP(T, I))
	E	$\frac{1}{1} = \frac{1}{1} + \frac{1}$
	2	$(\mathbf{N} (\mathbf{I} (\mathbf{J} (\mathbf{J} (\mathbf{I} (\mathbf{I} (\mathbf{J} (J$
0234		$\nabla T = (OA(T, T) = (OA(T, T) = HAND(T, T) + (T = V) + ($
0233 0354	4	$\frac{1}{1} = \frac{1}{1} = \frac{1}$
0230	700	
	700 C	TEMP FEED FOWARD COMPLITATION
0220	с С	$= \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{1}{2} + \frac$
0237	с с	FAVE1-(2 0+FETEMP(1)+FETEMP(2))/3 0+0 016
		ET-DEATD/EAVET D2. FAVET)
	C C	$r_{1} - R_{L} r_$
	L r	
N203 N34/1~		T = T = T = T = T = T = T = T = T = T =
0204		TNPO(T) = DFLAY(20, TAHD1(T), TNP(T, 4))
1265		DTMAN(T) = WNRA(T) * (TNRO(T) = TMAN(T)) / VOL / RHO(T.4) / CP(T.4)
1267	13	TMAN(T) = TNTGL(TMAN(T), DTMAN(T))
0268	14	TC(I)=REALP(TMAN(I), TAUTC, TMAN(I))
0269	• •	TIN(I)=PSHLD(0.5,TC(I))
0270		FTAO(I) = (TASP-TIN(I))/75.0
0271		DTAO(I)=TIK*ETAO(I)*FIOR(ETAO(I),TCO(I)-TILL)*FIOR(-ETAO(I),
0272		1 TIUL-TCO(I))*TPK
273	15	TCI(I) = INTGL(TCI0, DTAO(I))
0274		TCD(I)=DERIV(0.0,ETAO(I))
0275		TCO(I) = TPK * (ETAO(I) + TDK * TCD(I)) + TCI(I)
0276		TOUT(I)=LIMIT(TLL,TUL,TCO(I))
7750		SUMO(I)=-FFG(I)*FAVE+CONTG*(TOUT(I)+BIAS(I))
0278		PSUMO(I)=LIMIT(0.00,0.75,SUMO(I)/16.0)
0279	16	VPI(I) = REALP(VPI(I), 0.05, PSUMO(I))
0280		CV(I) = AFGEN(XCV, VPI(I), 13)
0281		XQT=WNRA(I)*SNAR44
2820		DPCV(I)=XQT*ABS(XQT)*SPG/(CV(I)*CV(I))
0283		DWNR(I)=(PFLO-KFH(I)*WNRA(I)*WNRA(I)~DPCV(I))/IR(I)
0284	17	WNR(I)=INTGL(WNR(I),DWNR(I))
0285	800	CONTINUE
0286	C	
0287	C****	***************************************
8850	С	
0289	С	CSMP PROGRAM COMMANDS.
0290	Ċ	
0291	9904	ICSMP1=0
2620	9905	CALL CSMP1(ICSMP1,ICSMP2)
0293	9906	IF(ICSMP2) 9903,9907,9911
0294	990 7	CONTINUE
0295	C****	***************************************
0296	C	
0297-	C	WRITE DATA FOR THIS TIME PERIOD.
8650	C	6-28

NO. 050TI000005

Page

27 IF (TIME.GE.FINTIM) GO TO 1000 0299 D IF(ISSW(14).LT.0) GU TO 1002 0300 D1000 WRITE(6,1001) TIME, TNRO, TNR, DTMAN, TMAN, TC, TIN, ETAO, DTAO, TCI, TCD, 0301 1 TCO, TOUT, SUMO, PSUMO, VPI, CV, DPCV, DWNR, WNR, IR, TRW, TAUD1, HANR, WNRA, 0302 D 2 SUN, GT, PFLO 0303 D VALUE"/" TIME =",G20.5/ D1001 FORMAT(" VARIABLE 0304 =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ TNRO 0305 D TNR(1) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," . =",G20.5/ 0306 D TNR(2) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ -D 0307 " TNR(3) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0308 D =",G20.5," " TNR(4) =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0309 D =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ " DTMAN 0310 D × " TMAN =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0311 D × * TC =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0312 D * TIN =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0313 Ð =",G20.5," =",G20.5," " ETAO =",G20.5/ 0314 D * " DTAO =",G20.5/ =",G20.5," =",G20.5," 0315 D × =",G20.5," =",G20.5," " TCI =",G20.5/ 0316 D * " TCD =",G20.5," =",G20.5," , =",G20.5/ 0317 D × =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ * TCO 0318 D * " TOUT =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0319 D × # SUMO =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ * 0320 D er 👘 =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ **PSUMO** 0321 D =",G20.5," =",G20.5," " VPI =",G20.5/ 0322 D × CV "2 =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0323 - D-*. =",G20.5," =",G20.5," **81** DPCV =",G20.5/ 0324 D * " DWNR =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0325 D =",G20.5," " WNR =",620.5," =",G20.5/ 0326 D × =",G20.5," " IR =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0327 D * 91 TRW(1) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0328 D × " TRW(2) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0329 × D " TRW(3) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," × =",G20.5/ 0330 D " TRW(4) =",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0331 D * =",G20.5," **#1** TAUD1 =",G20,5," =",G20.5/ D * 0332 " HANR(1)=",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0333 D " HANR(2)=",G20.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ 0334 D * HANR(3)=",G20.5," =",G20.5/ =",G20.5," 0335 D Ħ HANR(4)=",G20.5," =",G20,5," =",G20.5/ 0336 D =",620.5," =",G20.5," =",G20.5/ " WNRA 0337 D " SUN =",G20.5," GT **≓",G20.5,"** PFLO =",G20.5) 0338 D 0339 1002 CONTINUE 0340 C --С USER PLOTS OF VARIABLES. 0341 0342 С CALL PLOT1(TNR(1,4),TRW(1,4),TMAN(1),WNRA(1),VPI(1)) 0343 CALL PLOT1(TNR(2,4),TRW(2,4),TMAN(2),WNRA(2),VPI(2)) 0344 0345 C -0346 0347 С CSMP PROGRAM COMMANDS. 0348 С С 0349 0350 9908 ICSMP1=1 CALL CSMP1(ICSMP1,ICSMP2) 0351 9909 IF(ICSMP2) 9903,9907,9911 0352 9910 0353 9911 CONTINUE 0354 USER PLOTS OF VARIABLES. 0355 С 0356 С G-29 0357 END

0358

C

NO. 050T1000005 Page 28

0359	С	
0360	С	
0361	C	
0362		SUBROUTINE SODEQ(DAF, AD, WDOT, T, CP, HA)
0363		TKNA=(54.306-(0.01878-2.0914E-6*T)*T)/3600.0
0364		CP=0.34574-(7.9226E-5-3.4086E-8*T)*T
0365		HA=(5.0+0.025*(WDOT*DAF*CP/TKNA)**0.8)*TKNA*AD
0366		RETURN
0367		END
0368		ENDS

U. S. Department of Energy Forrestal Building 1000 Independence Avenue, S.W. Washington, D.C. 20585 Attn: K. T. Cherian C. Mangold M. R. Scheve

U.S. Department of Energy P.O. Box 5400 Albuquerque, NM 87115 Attn: G. N. Pappas

U.S. Department of Energy Solar One Field Office P.O. Box 366 Daggett, CA 92327 Attn: S. D. Elliott

U. S. Department of Energy 1333 Broadway Oakland, CA 94612 Attn: R. W. Hughey K. A. Rose

University of Houston Solar Energy Laboratory 4800 Calhoun Houston, TX 77704 Attn: A. F. Hildebrandt

University of Maryland College of England College Park, MD 20742 Attn: M. E. Talaat

Aerospace Corporation P.O. Box 92957 Los Angeles, CA 90009 Attn: P. Munjal

AGIP Nuclear Attn: A. De Benedetti 200097 S. Donato CP4169, 20100 Milano ITALY

Amfac Energy, Inc. P.O. Box 3230 Honolulu, HI 96801 Attn: G. E. St. John

Arco Power Systems 7061 S. University, Suite 300 Littleton, CO 80122 Attn: F. A. Blake Arco Solar Industries 21011 Warner Center Lane Woodland Hills, CA 91367 Attn: D. N. Horgan Arizona Public Service Company P.O. Box 21666 Phoenix, AZ 85036 Attn: E. Weber Babcock and Wilcox 91 Stirling Avenue Barberton, OH 44203 Attn: G. Grant I. Hicks Battelle/Pacific Northwest Laboratories P.O. Box 999 Richland, WA 99352 Attn: B. Johnson Bechtel Group, Inc. P.O. Box 3965 San Francisco, CA 94119 Attn: E. Y. Lam For: J. Darnell T. Fick Black and Veatch Consulting Engineers P.O. Box 8405 Kansas City, MO 64114 Attn: J. C. Grosskreutz Boeing Engineering and Construction Company P.O. Box 3707 Seattle, WA 98124 Attn: J. R. Gintz Combustion Engineering, Inc. 1000 Prospect Hill Road Winsor, CT 06095 Attn: C. R. Buzzuto El Paso Electric Company P.O. Box 982 El Paso, TX 79946 Attn: J. E. Brown Electric Power Research Institute P.O. Box 10412 Palo Alto, CA 94303 Attn: E. DeMeo

II

Foster Wheeler Development Co. 12 Peach Tree Hill Road Livingston, N.J. 07039 Attn: R. J. Zoschak

General Electric UEPD, FRPI, F3 Syracuse, NY 13221 Attn: A. Curinga

General Electric 310 De Guigne ASPD Sunnyvale, CA 94086 Attn: E. Gerrels

Georgia Institute of Technology Atlanta, GA 30332 Attn: C. T. Brown

Jet Propulsion Laboratory California Institute of Technology 4800 Oak Grove Drive Pasadena, CA 91103 Attn: V. T. Truscello

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power P.O. Box 111 Los Angeles, CA 90051 Attn: J. A. Klueger

Martin Marietta Aerospace P.O. Box 179, MS L0450 Denver, CO 80201 Attn: T. Tracey For: L. Oldham H. C. Wroton

McDonnell Douglas Astronautics Company 5301 Bolsa Avenue Huntington Beach, CA 92647 Attn: R. L. Gervais H. H. Dixon

Pacific Gas and Electric Company 3400 Crow Canyon Road San Ramon, CA 94526 Attn: H. E. Seielstad

Public Service of New Mexico P.O. Box 2267 Albuquerque, NM 87103 Attn: A. Akhil

Rockwell International Energy Systems Group 8900 De Soto Avenue Canoga Park, CA 91304 Attn: T. Johnson T. Springer Sierra Pacific Power Company P.O. Box 10100 Reno, NV 89501 Attn: G. Soule Solar Energy Research Institute 1617 Cole Boulevard Golden, CO 80401 Attn: B. Butler B. Gupta Southern California Edison P.O. Box 325 Daggett, CA 92327 Attn: P. Skvarna Southern California Edison P.O. Box 800 Rosemead, CA 92807 Attn: J. N. Reeves Southwestern Public Service Company P.O. Box 1261 Amarillo, TX 79170 Attn: A. Higgins Stearns-Roger P.O. Box 5888 Denver, CO 80217 Attn: W. R. Lang Westinghouse Electric Corporation Advanced Energy Systems Division P.O. Box 10864

Pittsburgh, PA 15236 Attn: J. R. Maxwell For: J. Parker

IV

D. G. Schueler, 6220 J. V. Otts, 6222 R. S. Claassen, 8000; Attn: D. Olson, 8100 A. N. Blackwell, 8200 D. L. Hartley, 8300 C. S. Selvage, 8000A (2) L. D. Bertholf, 8120; Attn: R. J. Gallagher, 8124 M. J. Fish, 8125 L. Napolitano, 8122 L. Gutierrez, 8400; Attn: R. A. Baroody, 8410 J. B. Barham, 8460 J. B. Wright, 8450 A. F. Baker, 8452 A. C. Skinrood, 8452 W. C. Peila, 8453 (10) W. G. Wilson, 8453 J. B. Woodard, 8454 Publications Division 8265, for TIC (27) Publications Division 8265/Technical Library Processes Division, 3141 Technical Library Processes Division, 3141 (3) M. A. Pound, 8424, for Central Technical Files (3)

v